
MEETING

9 a.m.
Friday, November 23, 2018

Strand 12 Meeting Room 
2nd Floor, Hyatt Regency

 601 Loyola Avenue 
New Orleans, Louisiana 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

Committee of the Whole 

Friday, November 23, 2018 

9 a.m. 

Hyatt Regency 

601 Loyola Avenue- New Orleans, Louisiana 
 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Invocation 

2. Roll Call 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 

4. Public Comments 

5. Above and Beyond Award 

6. Special Presentation(s) 

A. Advanced BioMedics 

B. Dr. Kim Hunter Reed, Commissioner of Higher Education, LA Board of Regents 

C. Dr. Rani Whitfield and Atty. Edmond Jordan, LA State Representative District 29 

 

D. Dr. Dawn Mellion-Patin, 2018 George Washington Carver Distinguished Service Award 

Iowa State University, College of Agriculture and Life Sciences 

E. Presentation of Scholarship in Memory of Marquita Christy 

F. Presentation by Mr. D. L. Wallace of the Success Training Institute, Dallas, Texas 

G. Board Chair Ann A. Smith and Vice Chair Donald Ray Henry 

 

7. Election of Board Officers for 2018 

A. Chairman 

B. Vice Chairman 

8. Action Items 

A. Approval of Minutes of the October 26, 2018, regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

B. Approval of Minutes of the November 8, 2018 special meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

C. Request Approval of Certification of SUBR Candidates for Graduation (Fall 2018) 

D. Request Approval of Certification of SULC Candidates for Graduation (Fall 2018) 

E. Request Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between the Southern 

University System (SUS) and the Bernhard Group for Energy Conservation 

F. Request Approval of Cooperative Endeavor Agreement SUNO and LCMC Health Clinical 

Services, LLC D/B/A NOLA Physicians Group 

G. Request Approval of the SU System Strategic Plan 



Page 2 

Board of Supervisors Meeting 

November 23, 2018 

 

 

H. Request Approval of Personnel Action on positions equal to or greater than $60,000 

 

 

I. Leave Requests 
 

1. Sharon Williams Chriss, medical leave 
2. Stanley Halpin, medical leave 

3. Russell Jones, sabbatical Leave 

 

J. Resolutions 

 

9. Informational Items 

A. Priority Projects Updates, SUS 

B. Interim Financial Report as of October 31, 2018 

C. System President's Report 

D. Campus Reports 

 

10. Other Business 

 

11. Adjournment 

Name 
Position/Campus Salary 

 
  

1. Dawn Harris Director of Human Resources (SUBR) 

(New Appointment) 

$ 90,000.00 

2. Stephen Findley Director of Facilities & Risk Management (SUSLA)  

(New Appointment) 

$ 63,000.00 

3. Tiffany Freeman Director of Student Life (SUBR) 

(New Appointment) 

$ 62,000.00 

4. Leslie McClellon Special Assistant to the Chancellor for Economic Development (SUSLA) 

(title change only) 

$ 84,048.00 

5. Kerri Landry Thomas Title IX Coordinator/Director of Career Services (SULC) 

(New Appointment) 

$ 90,000.00 

6. Tavares Walker System Director of Compliance and Ethics and Associate General Counsel (SUS) 

(new appointment) 

$105,000.00 



Minutes
October 26, 2018 

Regular Board Meeting



Southern University and A&M College System 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, LA 

9:00 a.m. 

Friday, October 26, 2018 

 

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board 

Chair Mrs. Ann A. Smith. The invocation was given by Rev. Kenneth York pastor of the Faith 

A.M.E. Zion Church of Baker, LA.

PRESENT 

Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. 

Raymond Fondel, Dr. Curman Gaines, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Ms. Xavieria 

Jeffers, Atty. Patrick Magee, Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Mr. Mike Small, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, 

and Dr. Rani Whitfield 

ABSENT 

Atty. Tony Clayton and Rev. Samuel Tolbert 

UNIVERSITY PERSONNEL ATTENDING 

System President Ray Belton, Chief of Staff Katara Williams, Executive Vice 

President/Executive Vice Chancellor James Ammons, Vice President for Finance and 

Business Affairs Flandus McClinton, Vice President for Strategic Planning, Policy and 

Institutional Effectiveness Vladimir Appeaning, Vice President for External Affairs Robyn 

Merrick, Dr. David Adegboye, (SUNO), Dr. Bobby Phills (SUAREC), Dr. Rodney Ellis 

(SUSLA), and Atty. John Pierre (SULC). 

BOARD COUNSEL 

Attys. Winston DeCuir, Jr., and Deidre Robert 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QMME4LTwaTk


Page 2 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

Friday, October 26, 2018 

Southern University Board of Supervisors’ Meeting 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, LA 

Minutes 

Board Chair Mrs. Ann A. Smith announced the convening of the Academic Affairs Committee. 

Academic Affairs Committee Chair Dr. Curman Ganies called the committee meeting to order. 

Present: Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. John Barthelemy, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Dr. Leon R. Tarver, Dr. Leroy 

Davis, Ms. Xavieria Jeffers, and Mrs. Ann A. Smith 

Absent: Atty. Tony Clayton

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe Gant and seconded by Dr. Leon R. Tarver the agenda was 

recommended for adoption. 

Motion passed 

AGENDA ITEMS 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEMS 

A. Request to Establish a Tuition-Fee Discount Policy for Law Students over 55 and who are

Louisiana Residents

Chancellor John Pierre stated that the law center experienced an influx of students over 55 and 

because of a provision in LA Title 17 of the LRS (Louisiana Revised Statutes) regarding benefits to 

persons over the age of 55 the policy is being presented.  The cost of attendance is $3,000 per 

semester for students in that category.  He stated that there would be a $15-$18K loss in revenue.    

As it relates to enrollment, for many students the out of state fees are doubled the in- state fee. The 

SU Law Center is competitive because it has the authority to offer waivers and partial waivers to out 

of state students.  It is also competitive because it practices wholistic admissions. 

Board member Xavieria Jeffers questioned who would assume the loss in revenue. Chancellor Pierre 

stated that the Law Center would be responsible for the loss in revenue.   



Page 3 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

Upon the motion by Dr. Leon R. Tarver II and seconded by Dr. Leroy Davis the tuition discount 

policy for law students over the age of 55 was recommended for approval. 

Motion passed. 

AGENDA ITEM 6: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

B. Dual Enrollment

Dr. Belton stated that dual enrollment is a priority and invited each Chancellor to provide an update 
on their efforts to increase dual enrollment at their respective campuses.

SUNO Chancellor Lisa Mims-Devezin stated that 189 students are enrolled in dual enrollment and 

hired a dual enrollment coordinator who works actively with principals at the high schools.  Also, 

SUNO will hire a retention counselor for dual enrollment students who will work with guidance 

counselors at the high schools to ensure that students receive the support services that they need.

SUSLA Chancellor Ellis stated that dual enrollment is 558 students which is a decrease from previous 

years.  Changes made include moving the dual enrollment department from academic affairs to the 

division of student affairs because of the synergy that exists. He stated that since student affairs is 

responsible for recruiting the goal is to align dual enrollment with student affairs. 

SUBR – Dr. Ammons thanked Dr. Gaines for ensuring that dual enrollment is a priority and 

encouraging the University to focus on dual enrollment because it is a high priority for the state of 

Louisiana. SUBR has 188 students participating in dual enrollment for the Fall 2018 semester with 12 

high schools participating.  Efforts to increase dual enrollment at SUBR include hiring a dual 

enrollment counselor in the Spring 2018.  Rev. Gant had a concern that the students participating in 

dual enrollment are not becoming students at SU System campuses. 

 Dr. Gaines would like to establish a timeline on progress reports to the Board and encouraged Dr. 

Ammons to continue his efforts in dual enrollment. 

AGENDA ITEM 8: OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 9: ADJOURNMENT 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Dr. Leroy Davis the Academic Affairs 

Committee adjourned. 

Motion passed 



Page 4 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 

(Following the Academic Affairs Committee) 

Friday, October 26, 2018 

Southern University Board of Supervisors’ Meeting 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, LA 

Minutes 

The Facilities and Property Committee was called order by Committee Chair Rev. Donald R. Henry. 

Present: Dr. Rani Whitfield, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Mr. 

Richard Hilliard, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, and Mrs. Ann A. Smith 

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Mr. Raymond Fondel and seconded by Mr. Richard Hilliard the agenda was 

recommended for adoption. 

Motion passed. 

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 5: INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S) 

A. Priority Project Updates (per campus)

Mr. Eli Guillory, System Facilities Planning Director updated Board members on the status of 

projects at each campus.  A written report was included in the meeting packet.  Several items were 

added including the repairs to the road near the dormitories.  He stated that the University received 

bids in the amount of $150,000.00.  He is working with Mr. Kestee Weir and Title III Director Huey 

Lawson to fund the project.  Because of the irregular weather patterns, clearing the ravines and bluff 

area has been stalled.  Mr. Guillory stated that the campus received funding for renovations to the 

roof and some interior repairs at the SU Laboratory School.  The SU Lab School locker room and 

parking lot also will be addressed.  Progress continues on deferred maintenance projects.   

Rev. Gant commended Mr. Guillory for his work and responsiveness. Board Member Fondel inquired 

about the various security gates that are broken on the Baton Rouge campus.  Mr. Guillory stated that 

the gates failed at certain weld connections and a structural engineer will be involved in repairing the 

gates. Board member Fondel requested an update at the next Board meeting on the access gate at 

Swan Street. 



Page 5 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

Board Chair Ann Smith also commended Mr. Guillory and asked Dr. Belton to work with SUNO 

Chancellor Lisa Mims-Devezin to arrange a campus visit for members of the Board during the 

November meeting. 

Board member Rutledge spoke about the concentration nationally on wild spaces that are student 

centered.  He explained that the literature has many examples of Universities that are investing in 

student unions, book stores and eating spaces and combining them for student use.  The concept is 

used to attract students.  He added that many of these spaces are funded by public-private 

partnerships.  Board member Rutledge challenged the SU System administration to begin exploring 

partnerships to create wild spaces especially at the Baton Rouge campus to enhance the student 

experience. 

AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT 

Upon the motion by Dr. Leroy Davis seconded by Mr. Raymond Fondel the Facilities and 

Property Committee adjourned. 

Motion passed. 



Page 6 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(Following the Facilities and Property Committee) 

Friday, October 26, 2018 

Southern University Board of Supervisors’ Meeting 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, LA 

Minutes 

The Finance Committee was called order by Committee Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge. 

Present: Att. Domoine Rutledge, Rev. Donald R. Henry,  Richard Hilliard, Atty. Tony Clayton, Rev. 

Joe Gant, Dr. Leon Tarver and Ann Smith 

Absent: Atty. Tony Clayton  

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Rev. Donald R. Henry seconded by Dr. Leon R. Tarver II the agenda was 

adopted. 

Motion passed

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM (S) 

A. Request Approval of the SUS Financial Management Plans

1. Southern University and A&M College at Baton Rouge (SUBR)

2. Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO)

3. Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA)

4. Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center (SUAREC)

5. Southern University Law Center (SULC)

Committee Chair Domoine Rutledge stated that the financial management plans do not augment the 

budget adopted in August.  The documents presented are done so in response to the Board’s request 

from each campus to provide areas where savings can be realized.  Vice President Flandus 

McClinton provided a schedule for each campus and the amount of money that will be saved over a 

period of three years.  The intent is to review in December and June to determine projected savings 

and ultimately to determine how the savings that are realized will be redirected.  Many of the 

campuses have plans to support the Academy and Enrollment Management. 

Upon the motion by Dr. Leon R. Tarver II and second by Rev. Gant that the financial management 

plans would be presented for consideration during the October meeting. 



Page 7 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

Motion passed 

B. Request Approval for FY 19-20 Budget Requests

1. Southern University and A&M College at Baton Rouge (SUBR)

2. Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO)

3. Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA)

4. Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center (SUAREC)

5. Southern University Law Center (SULC)

Budget request to the Board of Regents, operational and expanded need request, continuation,

sunset review budget request and workforce development request.  It is a wish list that is

submitted to the state to show where the funds would be appropriated if they were available.

Upon the motion by Rev. Donald Henry and seconded by Mr. Richard Hilliard the budget 

request was recommended for approval. 

Motion passed. 

C. Request Approval to Increase Student Identification Fee (SUBR)

Committee Chair Domoine Rutledge stated that the students are currently charged $5.00 for 
fall and spring $2.50 for the summer.  The office that manages the student identification cards 
would like to increase the fee to $15 for Fall and Spring and increase the fees in summer to

$7.50.  The office has been operating with a budget shortfall. Committee Chair Rutledge 
invited student Board member to discuss the matter.  Committee Chair Rutledge invited 
Student Board Member Xavieria Jeffers to give comments on the request.  She asked what 
other revenue sources are available and where did the University find funds to supplement the 
budget previously. Vice Chancellor for Finance Ben Pugh was called forward to explain how 
the office has been sustained previously.  He advised that the office had generated enough 
funds to cover any deficits until recently when technological upgrades were made to the 
operation.  He explained that there is $75,000 in maintenance fees.  Bartholomew asked if the 
equipment services any other areas. Dr. Belton stated that the cards also provides a service for 
students to use in the dining hall and in the student union and other places on campus.  System 
Vice President Flandus McClinton stated that student attendance can be tracked at games. 
Fondel requested a list of fees for students at the SUBR campus and when they expire.

Dr. Davis stated that maybe the card should have a different name so that is indicative of the 
functions.

Upon the motion by Dr. Leon R. Tarver II and seconded by Mr. Richard Hilliard the fee 
increase for student identification cards was recommended for approval.

Motion passed.



Page 8 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM 6: INFORMATION ITEM (s) 

A. Interim Financial Report

Mr. McClinton provided the Interim Financial Report as of September 30, 2018 and fall semester 

revenue.  For the campuses with fees SUBR campus exceeded budet, SU Law Centers exceeded the 

budget; SUNO was less than the budget by $800,000 and SUSLA was less than the budget by 

$200,000.  He cautioned CFOs at Shreveport and SUNO to look at the budget for the Spring semester 

to increase revenue or reduce expenditures.  He advised CFOs to plan ahead and make adjustments 

and take precautions in order to have a balanced budget.  

AGENDA ITEM 7: OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 8: ADJOURNMENT 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe Gant and seconded by Dr. Leon Tarver the Finance Committee was 

adjourned. 



Page 9 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

(Following the Facilities and Property Committee) 

Friday, October 26, 2018 

Southern University Board of Supervisors’ Meeting 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, LA 

Minutes 

The Governance Committee was called to order by Committee Chair Dr. Leroy Davis 

Present: Mr. John L. Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Jr., Rev. Donald R. Henry, 

Ms. Xavieria Jeffers, Mr. Mike Small, and Mrs. Ann Smith 

Absent: Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert 

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Xavieria Jeffers the agenda was 

recommended for adoption. 

Motion passed 

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM (S) 

A. Request Approval of Substantive Change Policy (SUBR)

President-Chancellor Belton stated that the Principles of Accreditation prescribes that the

University establish a policy that provides procedures that conforms to its standards for

substantive changes.  The policy indicates that the University is aware of its responsibility

to report any substantive changes to the Southern Association of Colleges Commission on

Colleges.

Upon the motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and seconded by Ms. Xavieria Jeffers the

substantive change policy was recommended for approval.

Motion passed

B. Request Approval of Change of Major Policy (SUSLA)

Chancellor Richard Ellis explained that the proposed policy limits when and how often

students change their majors and puts parameters in so that students seek advisement prior

to making the change.



Page 10 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

Upon the motion by Rev. Donald R. Henry and seconded by Mrs. Ann Smith the substantive 

change policy for the Shreveport campus was recommended for adoption. 

Motion passed 

AGENDA ITEM 6: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS(S) 

A. Officers and Personnel of the Board

System Vice President Vladimir Appeaning presented scenarios to the Board as it relates to the 
election of officers.  A summary of the proposals was distributed to each Board member.  He 
explained that instead of having the election of a chair and vice chair, the proposal is to elect a 
chair-elect who assumes the chair position after 1 year.  The proposal also outlined a 2-year 
scenario for the chair-elect. The model is used nationally, regionally, and locally.  He presented 
comparisons of the UL System and LCTCS system. He said that the benefit of the model is that 
there is continuity and a seemless transition.

Dr. Leon R. Tarver, II questioned the attorney about making changes to by-laws. Before a 

change can be adopted, Atty. DeCuir stated that the Board must receive a 10-day notice prior to 

any changes are made to by-laws. 

Rev. Gant stated that if the Board adopts the 2-year plan for chair-elect.  Then the chair would be 

selected for 4 years. 

Dr. Tarver asked that a brief synopsis of each system that was referenced in the presentation be 

provided to members of the Board. 

B. Proposed Amendment of Board Regulations Regarding Consideration of Employee Appeals

Information that was presented in March a proposed amendment to the termination clause of the

by-laws.  A redline version of the proposed changes was distributed to members of the Board.

For an at-will employee, the appeal would end at the President. Employees will have all other

employment rights.  Atty. DeCuir stated that the University has a grievance process that is

available to employees. Dr. Davis asked for a list of positions that will be impacted by the

change.

AGENDA ITEM 7:  OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT 

Upon the motion by Rev. Gant and seconded by Dr. Davis the Governance Committee adjourned. 

Motion passed. 



Page 11 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

INTERNAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(Following the Governance Committee) 

Friday, October 26, 2018 

Southern University Board of Supervisors’ Meeting 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, LA 

Minutes 

The Internal Affairs Committee was called to order by Committee Chair Mike Small 

Present: Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Mr. John L. Barthelemy, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Jr., Dr. Curman L. Gaines, and 

Mrs. Ann A. Smith  

Absent: Atty. Tony Clayton 

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe Gant and seconded by Mr. John Barthelemy the agenda was recommended 

for adoption. 

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(S) 

A. Request Approval of the Annual Risk Assessment and Audit Plan (SUS)

B. Request Approval of the Internal Audit Charter (SUS)

Executive Internal Auditor Brian Adams provided hard copies of the annual risk assessment and audit 

plan and the internal audit charter to members of the Board.  In response to a question from Board 

Chair Ann Smith concerning checks and balances, Mr. Adams summarized the materials that were 

presented. 

Atty. Rutledge questioned the reporting structure that was included in the documents and reiterated 

that the structure would not change.  The President and the Board Chair will have oversight of the 

internal audit department. 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant, Jr. and seconded by Dr. Leon R. Tarver II the action items A 

and B were recommended for approval in globo. 



Page 12 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT 

Upon the motion by Rev. Gant and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines the Governance Committee 

adjourned. 

Motion passed. 



Page 13 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(Following the Governance Committee) 

Friday, October 26, 2018 

Southern University Board of Supervisors’ Meeting 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, LA 

Minutes 

The Personnel Affairs Committee was called to order by Committee Chair Atty. Patrick Magee 

Present: Atty. Patrick Magee, Dr. Curman Gaines, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Dr. 

Leon R. Tarver II, and Mrs. Ann A. Smith  

Absent: Atty. Tony Clayton 

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe Gant and seconded by Dr. Leon R. Tarver II the agenda was 

recommended for adoption. 

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Sheila Swift, President of the SUSLA Faculty Senate and SUSLA Faculty Senate Vice President 

Latanya Brittantine spoke about personnel action item 5 A 6.  Faculty members are concerned that 

there is a proposed hiring freeze for faculty and has concerns about the title change for item 5 A 6. 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEMS 

A. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions greater than $60.000



Page 14 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

Discussion: Board Chair Smith asked for an explanation for Action Item 5A5-Dawn Harris and 5 A 

10-Tavares Walker. Dr. Belton stated that the University would like to provide operational guidance

for the Baton Rouge land mass.  The unit was recently reorganized and much of the work is

facilitated manually and the department is a department of transactions but should also provide

training and professional development.  The Associate VP of HR would provide guidance and

shaping, but the director would provide operational guidance on the Baton Rouge land mass. Dr.

Tarver asked if the function was being performed currently.  Dr. Belton stated that no one is

performing that function and it is a new position.  HR Vice President Tracie Woods provided

information regarding the position. Rev. Gant asked if the position was advertised.

Atty. Woods stated that it was not. He stated that the item should be pulled because the item did not 

follow policy or procedure.  Dr. Tarver stated that there is an exception to the policy if a request is 

made to waive the  

Upon the motion by Rev. Gant and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines that action item 5A5 is tabled 

until the November Board meeting. 

Motion passed. 

Discussion of 5A 10:  Dr. Belton stated that there is a structure to address Title IX allegations and 

complaints and to provide support to the General Counsel.  The University has been asked to respond 

to an inordinate number of Title IX issues.  University has gaps in making responses to the 

allegations and the new appointment will provide the infrastructure that is needed. 

Name Position/Campus Salary 

1. John Barrileaux Assistant Professor Tenure-Track (SUNO) 
(12-month to 9-month) 

$ 70,000.00 

2. Kelly Carmena Clinical Assistant Professor/Supervisor of the Criminal Law Clinic 
(12-month stipend of $30K via grant renewal) 

$91,880.00 

3. Laura Douresseaux Assistant Professor Tenure-Track (SUNO) 
(12-month to 9-month) 

$ 70,000.00 

4. Yun Doo Lee Assistant Professor of Business Administration (SUNO) 
(new appointment) 

$78,000.00 

5. Dawn Mitchell Harris Director of Human Resources (SUBR) 
(new appointment) 

$90,000.00 

6. Leslie McClellon Special Assistant to the Chancellor for Economic Development (SUSLA) 
(title change only) 

$84,048.00 

7. Jason Ordogne Senior Banner Systems Analyst (SUBR) 
(new appointment) 

$75,000.00 

8. Yolander Smith Project Manager (DXC) 
(new appointment) 

$108,000.00 

9. Kerii Landry Thomas Title IX Coordinator/Director of Career Services (SULC) 
(new appointment) 

$90,000.00 

10. Tavares Walker Executive Director for Compliance and Ethics (SUS) 
(new appointment) 

$105,000.00 



Page 15 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

Upon the motion by Rev. Gant and seconded by Chair Smith action item 5A10 was tabled until the 

November meeting. 

Motion passed. 

Dr. Tarver asked if the position was a new position. Dr. Belton stated that it is a new postion.  Dr. 
Tarver also asked if the position was advertised.  Dr. Belton stated that it was not advertised.

Dr. Leroy Davis wanted to know if item 5A4 was a previous employee and grew to that $70,000 

salary over time. Chancellor Mims Devezin stated that the salary meets the requirements of the 

accrediting body AACSB and that the appointment is a replacement for a professor who passed away. 

Dr. Davis asked for an explanation about DXC.  Dr. Ammons stated that the company has moved 

part of the operations to NOLA it is one of the largest IT companies in the world.  They have 

partnered with LCTCS to build a workforce for its digital transformation center.  2,000 people will be 

hired.  They have $25 million invested in the partnership and $5 million will be given to Southern 

University System to build the workforce.  There are several positions that will be filled.  The project 

director will work at the SUNO and SUBR campuses. 

Upon the motion by Board Chair Smith and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines item 5A 9 Kerri Landry 

Thomas was recommended to be tabled until the November meeting. 

Motion passed 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Dr. Leon R. Tarver II Items 5 A 1, 2, 3, 4, 7 

and 8 were recommended for approval. 

Motion passed. 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant Jr. and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines action item 5A6 was 

deferred until the November board meeting. 

Motion passed. 

In presenting personnel actions to members of the Board, Dr. Curman Gaines encouraged 

administrators to inform Board members about searches being waived 

AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe Gant and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines the personnel committee 

adjourned. 

Motion passed. 



Page 16 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

(Following the Personnel Affairs Committee) 

Friday, October 26, 2018 

Southern University Board of Supervisors’ Meeting 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, LA 

Minutes 

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board Chair 

Ann Smith. 

Present: Mrs. Ann Smith, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Mr. John L. Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. 

Raymond Fondel, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Jr., Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Ms. Xavieria 

Jeffers, Atty. Patrick Magee, Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Mr. Mike Small, Dr. 

Rani Whitfield  

Absent: Atty. Tony Clayton and Rev. Samuel Tolbert 

UNIVERSITY PERSONNEL ATTENDING 

System President Ray Belton, Chief of Staff Katara Williams, Executive Vice President/Executive 

Vice Chancellor James Ammons, Vice President for Finance and Business Affairs Flandus 

McClinton, Vice President for Strategic Planning, Policy and Institutional Effectiveness Vladimir 

Appeaning, Vice President for External Affairs Robyn Merrick, Dr. David Adegboye, (SUNO), Dr. 

Bobby Phills (SUAREC), Dr. Rodney Ellis (SUSLA), and Atty. John Pierre (SULC). 

BOARD COUNSEL 

Attys. Winston DeCuir, Jr., and Deidre Robert 

AGENDA ITEM 3: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 4: SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITION 

A. Above and Beyond Award

The Above and Beyond award was presented to Mr. Robert Lawrence custodian in facilities services. 

Mr. Cordell Veal supervisor introduced Mr. Lawrence who has more than 18 years of service on the 

Baton Rouge campus.  He received a plaque and certificate from Board Chair Ann Smith and 

President-Chancellor Belton. 

Additionally, The Above and Beyond award was presented to Ms. Rosa Robbins, administrative 

assistant in International Affairs and Outreach. She was presented a plaque and certificate from Board 



Page 17 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

Chair Ann Smith and President-Chancellor Belton. Immediate supervisor Dr. Barbara Carpenter 

introduced the honoree. 

Rev. Donald R. Henry recognized Board Chair Ann Smith and presented the Above and Beyond 

award to her along with Dr. Ray Belton. 

Dr. Leroy Davis announced that Board Chair Smith was inducted into the Kentwood High School 

Hall of Fame. 

AGENDA ITEM 6: ACTION ITEM (s) 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe Gant and second by Atty. Patrick Magee items 6A, 6 B, and 6C, 6D, 

6E, 6F, 6G were recommended for approval in globo. 

Motion passed 

A. Approval of Minutes- September 21, 2018 Meeting of the Southern University Board of

Supervisors

B. Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe Gant and seconded Atty. Patrick Magee the committee reports of 

the Academic Affairs Committee, Facilities and Property Committee, Finance Committee, 

Governance Committee, Internal Audit Committee, and Personnel Affairs Committee were 

recommended for approval. 

Motion passed. 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the actions taken by 

the Athletics Committee, Governance Committee, and Personnel Affairs Committee be and 

they are hereby approved. 

1. Academic Affairs

A. Request Approval Establish a Tuition-Fee Discount Policy for Law Students over 55

and who are Louisiana Residents (SULC)

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the tuition fee 

discount policy for law students over age 55 and who are Louisiana Residents (SULC) be and 

it hereby is approved. 

2. Governance Committee

A. Request Approval of Uniform Policy on Free-Speech (SUS)



Page 18 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the Uniform Policy 

on Free-Speech for the Southern University System (SUS) be and it hereby is approved. 

B. Request Approval of Child Abuse Reporting Policy (SUSLA)

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the Child Abuse 

Reporting Policy for Southern University Shreveport (SUSLA) be and it hereby is approved. 

3. Personnel Affairs Committee

A. Approval of Personnel Actions on positions greater than $60,000

1. RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the appointment of

John Barrileaux as assistant professor tenure track, 9 months (SUNO) at a salarty of $70,000

be and it hereby is approved

2. RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the appointment of

Laura Douresseaux as Assistant Professor tenure-track, 9-months at Southern University at

New Orleans (SUNO) at the salary of $70,000 be and it hereby is approved

3. RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the appointment of

Kelly Carmena as Clinical Assistant Professor/Supervisor of the Criminal Law Clinic (12-

month stipend of $30,000 via grant renewal), SULC, at the salary of $91,880 be and it hereby

is approved

4. RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the new appointment

of Yun Doo Lee as assistant professor of Business Administration Southern University at New

Orleans (SUNO) at the salary of $78,000 be and it hereby is approved.

5. RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the appointment of

Jason Ordogne as senior banner systems analyst (SUBR) at the salary of $75,000 be and it

hereby is approved.

6. RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the new appointment

of Yolander Smith as project director at XCorp at the salary of $108,000 be and it hereby is

approved.

C. Request Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between the Southern

University Law Center and the Chitimacha Tribe of Louisiana (SULC)



Page 19 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the Memorandum of 

Understanding between the Southern University Law Center and the Chitimacha Tribe of 

Louisiana (SULC) be and it is hereby approved. 

D. Request Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between the Southern

University Law Center and the Governor's Office of Indian Affairs (SULC)

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the Memorandum of 

Understanding between the SU Law Center and the Governor’s Office of Indian Affairs be 

and it is hereby approved.  

E. Request Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding between the Southern

University Law Center and the Federation of Southern Cooperatives

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the Memorandum of 

Understanding between the Southern University Law Center and the Federation of Southern 

Cooperatives be and it is hereby approved.  

F. Request Approval of Proposed Memorandum of Understanding Between the

Southern University Law Center and the Federation of Southern Cooperatives

(SULC) Request Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between the Southern

University System and SU Foundation Enterprise partners for the purpose of

developing, operating and managing two programs: (1) the SU Center for Corporate

Strategy Solutions (SUCCESS) a Center of Excellence in Cyber Security Training

and Certification and; (2) the SU Center for Corporate Strategy Solutions

(SUCCESS) a Center of Excellence for Federal Procurement Services (SUS)

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the Memorandum of 

Understanding between the SU System and the SU Foundation Enterprise Partners for the purpose of 

developing, operating and managing two programs: (1) the SU Center for Corporate Strategy 

Solutions (SUCCESS) a Center of Excellence in Cyber Security Training and Certification and; (2) 

the SU Center for Corporate Strategy Solutions (SUCCESS) a Center of Excellence for Federal 

Procurement Services be and it is hereby approved.  

G. Request Approval of Grant/Contract with East Baton Rouge Parish Office of the Public

Defender (SULC)

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the Grant/Contract with East 

Baton Rouge Parish Office of the Public Defender for the SU Law Center (SULC) be and it is hereby 

approved.  



Page 20 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

October 26, 2018 

H. Resolutions

Condolences

The Ruth M. Hall Family 

The Wayde K. Sims Family 

The Beverly Powell Family 

The Sheila Finch Family 

The Victor Earl West Family 

The Nita Ridley Family 

The Naquail Brooks Family 

The Eddie Hildreth Family  

The Raymond Lockett Family 

AGENDA ITEM 7: INFOMATIONAL ITEM(S) 

A. System President’s Report

Dr. Ray Belton thanked Board members for their support with the action items presented during 
the meeting.  The MOU between the SU System and SU Foundation Enterprise partnership will 
allow the University to be a center of excellence in Cyber Security.  Dr. James Ammons stated 
that Southern University will be the sole education partner with EXCorp located in Quantico 
Virginia.  Dr. Ammons invited General (retired) James Ballard to speak.  Mr. Ballard stated that 
the partnership will be an opportunity for Southern to work with the Federal Government.

B. Campus Reports (All reports were included in the meeting packet)

SUNO- Dr. Lisa Mims-Devezin invited members to the The Bash which is being held later this 

evening.

SUSLA- Chancellor Ellis’s announced the coronation of Miss SUSLA on November 1
SULC- Chancellor Pierre SULC will host the first in South East Louisiana Tribal Law and Tribal 

Sovereignty Symposium, thanked Board member Fondel for working with the SU Law Center on 

voter education initiatives.

SUBR-Dr. Ammons thanked the Board for supporting the partnership with ExCorp. He 
recognized Nicole Preister of Encore Solutions, Incorporated and Rob Stewart, a procurement 
expert who assisted in developing the MOU.

AGENDA ITEM 8: OTHER BUSINESS 

Board member Fondel stressed the importance of students knowing about voting. He invited Vice 

Chancellor for Student Affairs Kim Scott to provide a synopsis of activities planned for students as it 

relates to voting. He also announced that Dr. Whitfield participated in an event at the SU Law Center 

supporting the unanimous jury decision.   

Also Rev. Henry acknowledged Louisiana Representative Ken Brass of the 58th district.  

AGENDA ITEM 9: ADJOURNMENT 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant, Jr. and seconded by Atty. Patrick Magee the meeting 

adjourned. 

Motion passed 



Minutes 
 November 8, 2018 

Special  Board Meeting



Southern University and A&M College System 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
9 a.m. 

Friday, November 8, 2018 
 

Minutes 

 

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board Chair Mrs. Ann A. 

Smith. The invocation was given by Rev. Roederick White, Pastor of Jesus Christ is Lord Ministries, Baton 

Rouge, LA. 

 

PRESENT 

Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Mr. John Barthelemy, Atty. Tony Clayton, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. 

Raymond Fondel, Dr. Curman Gaines, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Jr., Mr. Richard Hilliard, Atty. Patrick Magee, Atty. 

Domoine Rutledge, and Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, and Dr. Rani Whitfield 

 

ABSENT 

Ms. Xavieria Jeffers, Mr. Mike Small, and Rev. Samuel Tolbert 

UNIVERSITY PERSONNEL ATTENDING 

System President Ray Belton, Chief of Staff Katara Williams, Executive Vice President/Executive Vice 

Chancellor James Ammons, Vice President for Finance and Business Affairs Flandus McClinton, Vice 

President for Strategic Planning, Policy and Institutional Effectiveness Vladimir Appeaning, Vice President for 

External Affairs Robyn Merrick, Chancellors Dr. Lisa Mims Devezin (SUNO), Dr. Bobby Phills (SUAREC), 

Dr. Rodney Ellis (SUSLA), and Atty. John Pierre (SULC). 

 
BOARD COUNSEL 

Attys. Winston DeCuir, Jr., and Deidre Robert 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Dr. Tarver the agenda was recommended for adoption. 

 

Motion passed.  

 

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Iam Tucker Chief Operating Officer of Southern Roots spoke about the fact that Advanced Biomedics received 

the award 3 years ago and has not fulfilled their obligations to the University and the company materially 

represented who they are.  She also said that if Illera healthcare comes in and assume majority ownership of 

Advanced Biomedics they have circumvented the entire application process that other vendors had to go 

through.  She said that Southern Roots Therapeutics stands ready to work with the University. 

 



Page 2 of 6 
November 8, 2018 Special Meeting of the SU Board of Supervisors 

 

Jacob Irving, local attorney who is affiliated with some of the competitive teams for this process, but he stated 

that he attended the meeting because he has a cerebral palsy and he is disappointed in the process.  He said the 

that the delay is disappointing for people who need the medication.  

 

Atty. Clayton asked Board Chair Smith to make a statement.  He said that what Advanced Biomedics did to 

Southern University is a travesty.  He said that Mr. Castille should take the money and do something for the 

students at the University because Advanced Biomedics and their lawyers should be ashamed of themselves.  

The Board and President joined forces to make sure that Southern University’s interests are protected.  

Commended President Belton and Board Chair Smith for standing up for Southern University.  Many rules on 

contracts was violated by Advanced Biomedics and stated that it is difficult to fight people who have bad 

intentions from the onset. 

 

Dr. Leroy Davis stated that the Board operated in good faith and with integrity and the Board believed that they 

were working with a corporation that operated the same way.  The Board acted with good intentions to help the 

students, the University and the community. He said that everything the Board did was forthright and 

honorable. Critics, should look at the facts, minutes and documentation to observe the actions of the Board 

because the Board did its due diligence. 

 

Board member Fondel reflected about the passing of his mother who had cancer and the need she had for 

medicine to make her transition comfortable.  Medical marijuana is important for persons who are in their last 

stages of life.  The University has been slowly dragged their feet.  It feels as though they misrepresented 

themselves and they were given three ultimatums.  Now someone else is coming in as majority owner.  He is 

uncomfortable and does not feel like he can trust Advanced Biomedics because they have not been truthful up 

to this point.   

 

Atty. Clayton asked the attorneys if Board members may be assured that the University won’t be in litigation 

again.  What protections are in the contract to protect the University?  There was no response. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEMS 

A. Update Regarding SUAREC Medicinal Marijuana Program and Ownership of Advanced Biomedics, 

LLC. 

Board Chair Smith invited Dr. Belton to introduce the initiative. Dr. Belton stated that the journey began in 

September 2017 when Advanced Biomedics was selected as the vendor for the University’s medical marijuana 

initiative. He said that the Department of Agriculture and Forestry granted the University permission to grow 

marijuana for research and development purposes. In mid-October, the University was informed by the former 

owner of his intent to sell his interest in Advanced Biomedics.  President Belton along with University counsel, 

Board members and administrators worked together to make sure that the initiative moves forward.  He stated 

that instead of focusing on what “was,” the focus should now be on what “is.”  He invited Atty. Winston 

DeCuir to provide an update regarding the University’s medicinal marijuana program and ownership of 

Advanced Biomedics.  Dr. Belton stated that Atty. DeCuir will introduce the new majority owners who now 

have a 68% interest in Advanced Biomedics. 

 

 



Page 3 of 6 
November 8, 2018 Special Meeting of the SU Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Dr. Tarver questioned whether the discussion had begun for action item A. 

 

Board Chair Smith announced that each Board member should have an opportunity to voice their opinions 

because of the very nature of this project.  

 

Atty. Winston DeCuir stated that the majority interest in Advanced Biomedics held by Mr. Carrol Castille has 

been purchased by Illera Holistic Healthcare.  He said that in September 2017 following regulatory delays the 

University received permission to grow on a research basis in a temporary facility.  Advanced Biomedics 

attended the meeting and for the next 3-4 weeks said that they would begin work on a temporary basis but never 

did.  In mid-October Atty. DeCuir was informed that Mr. Caroll Castille would sell his interest to a Lafayette 

business man and the sale was supposed to happen by October 19 and the temporary facility would be started 

soon after.  The sale never occurred so the attorneys sent the company a deadline of November 15.  Advanced 

Biomedics reached out to Illera Healthcare.  The company offered to pick up where the other group stalled.  The 

representatives are prepared to give its first financial commitment of $2.15 million and will issue payment every 

January 1st.  The company purchased Carroll Castille’s 68% interest 

 

They want the Board to adopt a resolution recognizing them as the new majority owner.  One amendement to 

the contract is that if more than 50% of the company is sold then it would require Board approval. 

 

The company also asked if the University would agree to a change in location The company has a purchase 

agreement for property at 14200 Scenic Highway which is a space adjacent to the University’s experiment 

station and farm. 

 

Atty. DeCuir outlined the changes to the payment schedule.  He said there is a $1 million signing bonus, $1 

million annual fee for 2019 and a $150,000 contribution to the medicinal plant institute which would go the SU 

Foundation.  Then every January beginning January 1, 2020 the company will make the payment of a minimum 

of $1 million or 5% commission whichever is greater.  

 

He invited Dr. Chanda Macias and Mr. Gregory Rochlin, of Ilera Healthcare to the podium to introduce 

themselves.  Atty. DeCuir stated that the difference with this company is that it is in the business of cultivating 

medicinal marijuana and they are not investment bankers or real estate investors.  He said the vendor is not 

changing; Advanced Biomedics has gone through a change in majority ownership. 

 

He stated that the Board must do several things including the approval of the amendments to the services 

agreement. The changes include a change in the payment schedule, change in the location and a condition that if 

there is a change in the controlling interest greater than 50%, the Board must approve it. 

 

Tarver asked whether Illera would be required to go through a vetting process. Atty. DeCuir stated that anybody 

with 5% or more interest must go through 2 vetting processes: a criminal background check and a suitability 

background check. He informed board members that part of the delay is that the process and the fees for the 

suitability background check were still being determined by the LA State police.  

 

Dr. Chanda Macias spoke to members of the Board stating that she had been working in the medical marijuana 

industry for over 5 years and operational for the last 3 years.  She has worked with cancer patients and 

infectious diseases.  She is the director of STEM education at Howard University and has brought over $10  



Page 4 of 6 
November 8, 2018 Special Meeting of the SU Board of Supervisors 

 

 

million in grants from federal entities to the University. She has a PhD in cell biology and an MBA in supply 

chain management.  She is active with the minority cannabis business association.  She has a dispensary in 

Washington, D.C. focusing on an ailment string alignment or condition to find methods to treat patients so that 

they can reap the benefits of the medicine. She spoke about the difficulties of being an African American 

woman in the industry because there are fewer than 4% of minorities in programs in ownership positions. There 

are fewer than 26% of women of color that participate in medical cannabis programs.  Said that she is a part of 

the Women Grow organization which helps auxiliary businesses to become a part of the cannabis community.  

She stated that she looks forward to the opportunity to be a part of the industry. 

 

Dr. Davis where the dispensary is located. She stated that it is in Dupont Circle. 

 

She has worked with the University over the last year in an advisement capacity.  She offers internships to 

students to work in Washington DC and worked with SUNO writing grants. 

 

Atty. Clayton asked if the company has a temporary growth plan and pods to begin growing.  Dr. Macias stated 

that she does have a plan and will operate the Pods on the same site as the permanent facility.  

 

Atty. Magee asked if she had any Louisiana ties.  She stated that she is part of the Guillory family and she is the 

niece of Louis Atkins the postmaster in Baton Rouge. 

 

Fondel asked if she had visited the University previously.  She stated that she has worked with SUNO in her 

capacity as Director of STEM education mentoring students and providing internships. 

 

Board member Whitfield asked about her role in Advanced Biomedics.  She explained that she is the person on 

the ground, watching day-to-day operations and developing the program from the beginning to end.  

 

Dr. Whitfield asked if there were plans in place to educate the community and physicians.  She stated that there 

are plans and she has been at Temple University, Medical University of South Carolina and Howard University 

conducting symposia to educate physicians on the benefits of medical cannibas. She stated that education is an 

integral part of their operation. 

 

She spoke about the medical disparities in the African American community as it relates to medical marijuana. 

 

Rev. Henry asked Dr. Macias would sell her interest if approached by another buyer.  She stated that she 

respects the proposed partnership 

 

Mr. Greg Rockland CEO of Illera Healthcare introduced himself and said that he was appreciateive of the 

opportunity.  He informed Board members that Illera won the medical marijuana license in Pennsylvania last 

July and there were 12 licenses awarded and of the 12 only 5 groups were awarded the super license to do 

cultivation, processing, and dispensing.  He stated that he is not a medical professional or attorney; He is a serial 

entrepreneur.  He serves as Chairman of the Board of Sinai Hospital and is a 2-time cancer survivor. He also 

said that they are confident that the operation can be moved forward  

 

 

Atty. Clayton questioned the amount of money that was paid to Mr. Castille. 



Page 5 of 6 
November 8, 2018 Special Meeting of the SU Board of Supervisors 

 

The confidentiality agreement prevents Mr. Rockland from disclosing the amount of money that was spent to 

purchase the majority ownership.   

 

Upon the motion by Atty. Domoine Rutledge and seconded by Dr. Leroy Davis action items B and C were 

recommended for approval in globo. 

 

Board member Fondel asked to include an amendment to the motion that includes a statement that if there is 

controversy or litigation that would delay the program that the University will have the authority to move to the 

next responsive vendor. 

 

Board member Rutlledge stated that there is a dispute resolution process included in the contract that states that 

there would be some mandatory mediation before any lawsuits could be filed.  He also said that Board member 

Fondel’s motion may undermine provisions that are already in the agreement. He asked that the amendment be 

withdrawn because the current agreement protects the University and any changes or controversy would be 

brought before the Board anyway.  Atty. Rutledge stated that if anyone questions the sincerity of the company, 

the company is prepared to present certified funds in the amount of $1.25 million 

B. Consideration of Amendments to Services Agreement with Advanced Biomedics, LLC 

C.     Consideration of Location for Temporary Medicinal Marijuana Cultivation 

 

Dr. Belton stated that a yes vote would be in favor of Board member Fondel’s amendment to the motion. 

 

Upon the motion by Board member Raymond Fondel and seconded by Dr. Rani Whitfield that action items B 

and C be approved with the condition that if controversy, litigation, or any other matter delays progress that the 

contract would be voided and the University would move to the next responsive vendor. 

Roll Call: 

Yeas: Clayton, Fondel, Whitfield  

Nays: Smith, Henry, Barthelemy, Davis, Gaines, Gant, Magee, Rutledge, Tarver  

Motion failed 

Board member Rutledge clarified his motion to include the approval of the resolution and action item A. 

Upon the motion by Atty. Domoine Rutledge and seconded by Dr. Leroy Davis that action items A, B and C be 

approved in globo. 

 

Roll Call: 

Yeas: Smith, Henry, Barthelemy, Clayton, Davis, Gaines, Gant, Magee, Rutledge, Small, Tarver, Whitfield 

Nays: None 

Abstention:  Fondel 

Motion passed. 



Page 6 of 6 
November 8, 2018 Special Meeting of the SU Board of Supervisors 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Mrs. Smith had several housekeeping items.  She thanked Board members for their patience with the 

process. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT 
 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant, Jr. and seconded by Dr. Tarver the meeting adjourned. 

Motion passed 

 

 

 

 

 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552 

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray Belton 

President/Chancellor 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

November 7, 2018 

Southern University and A&M System 

J. S. Clark Annex 

4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: Presentation of Scholarship in honor and memory of Marquita Christy 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

Approximately one year ago, Ms. Marquita Christy who was on her path to earning a law degree from the 

Southern University Law Center died unexpectedly and prematurely. The Southern University System 

Board of Supervisors graciously granted a request to award a degree posthumously to Ms. Christy. Ms. 

Christy was an outstanding student and leader. Her family was moved by the gracious support of the Law 
Center and the Board of Supervisors. The family of Ms. Christy has created a foundation in her memory 

and have contributed $10,000 to endow a scholarship for a deserving law student. 

I respectfully request that the Board allow the family of Ms. Christy to make a brief scholarship presentation 

at the November 23, 2018 Board of Supervisors meeting in honor of her memory. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



Southern UniversilV and A&M College at Baton Rouge 

P/(� 

� Fall Commencement Exercises are scheduled for the campus of
Southern University and A&M College at Baton Rouge on Friday, December 14, 2018 at
9:30 a. m. in the F. G. Clark Activity Center; and

� there are approximately 459 prospective graduates at Southern
University at Baton Rouge, who are to receive Bachelor's degrees, Master's degrees and
Ph.D. degrees.

� � 6tJ /,t � that the degrees conferred upon the
candidates for graduation at the Commencement Exercises at Southern University and
A&M College at Baton Rouge submitted by President-Chancellor Ray L. Belton, upon the
approval and recommendation of the Faculty, Council of Academic Deans, and
appropriate administration be, and they are hereby approved.

� /,t� � that the list of graduates may be supplemented or
modified as is necessary to carry out the intent of this resolution.

We, the duly qualified and acting officers of the Board of Supervisors of the
Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Southern University
Board of Supervisors as its regular meeting on the 23rd day of November, 2018.

Ray L. Belton, Secretary 
Board of Supervisors, Southern University
and Agricultural and Mechanical College

Ann A. Smith, Chair 
Board of Supervisors, Southern University
and Agricultural and Mechanical College



Southern. University Law Center 

�, Mid-year Hooding and Commencement Exercises are scheduled for
the Southern University Law Center on Friday, January 11, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. in the
Smith-Brown Memorial Student Union Ballroom.

�, there are approximately 32 prospective graduates at the Southern
University Law Center who are to receive Juris Doctor Degrees.

� � 6c i.t � that the degrees conferred upon the
candidates for graduation at the Hooding and Commencement Exercises for the
Southern University Law Center submitted by Chancellor John K. Pierre, upon the
approval and recommendation of the Faculty and appropriate administration be, and
they are hereby approved.

{{jfJ i.t � � that the list of graduates may be supplemented or
modified as is necessary to carry out the intent of this resolution.

We, the duly qualified and acting officers of the Board of Supervisors of the
Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College, do hereby certify that
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Southern
University Board of Supervisors at its regular meeting on the 23rd day of November
2018.

Ray L. Belton, Secretary 
Board of Supervisors, Southern University
And Agricultural and Mechanical College

Ann A. Smith, Chair 
Board of Supervisors, Southern University
And Agricultural and Mechanical College











COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY NEW ORLEANS 

AND 

LCMC HEALTH CLINICAL SERVICES, LLC 

D/B/A NOLA PHYSICIAN GROUP 

THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into 

on this 1 day of October 2018 (the "Effective Date"), by and between the Southern University 

New Orleans (the "University"), and LCMC Health Clinical Services, LL dba NOLA Physician Group 

(hereafter "NOLA Physician Group"). 

WHEREAS, pursuant Article 7, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of1974, and related 
statutes, the University, as a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana, may enter into 

cooperative endeavors for any public purpose; and 

WHEREAS, University is in need of a primary care clinic on its premises to provide its students, 

faculty, employees, and the surrounding community with access to primary care services; and 

WHEREAS, NOLA Physician Group desires to provide accessible healthcare on the University's 
campus and is willing to provide clinical and administrative staff to establish clinic on University's 
campus; and 

NOW THEREFORE, the University and the NOLA Physician Group, each having the authority 
to do so, agree as follows: 

I. OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES.

A. Obligations of the NOLA Physician Group. NOLA Physician Group will provide the

following services:

1. Primary Care Ginic: Establish and operate a NOLA Physician Group

primary care clinic on University's campus five (5) days per week (the "Clinic"). 

2. Staffing: In connection with establishing and operating the Clinic, NOLA

Physician Group will make available, on an independent contractor basis, the services of at least 
one (1) certified nurse practitioner specializing in primary care (the "Provider") to provide 

primary care services to Clinic patients. NOLA Physician Group will also make available staff to 

meet the administrative needs of the Clinic, as determined by NOLA Physician Group. At least 



one certified nurse practitioner, registered nurse or physician will be present at all times the clinic 

is open. 

3. Equipment & Supplies: NOLA Physician Group will provide the initial basic

equipment and supplies necessary for the clinic to open and provide basic primary care services, 
as determined by NOLA Physician Group. After the opening, SUNO will replace and restock all 

disposal medical and clinic supplies. 

4. Medical Records: NOLA Physician Group will document all professional

medical services provided to patients in NOLA Physician Group's medical record. NOLA Physician 

Group will provide all computer equipment necessary for NOLA Physician Group to register 
patients and document services provided in its medical record. 

5. Billing: NOLA Physician Group will bill the patients or the appropriate

third-party payers directly for patient services rendered by Provider at the Clinic in amounts not 

to exceed the usual and customary fees charged by providers in the specialty within the 

community and shall not seek any reimbursement from University for such services. 

6. Marketing: NOLA Physician Group will conduct marketing and advertising

to build awareness of the new Clinic within the community. 

B. Obligations of the University. The University will:

1. Provide NOLA Physician Group with appropriate clinic and office space in
which NOLA Physician Group may operate the Clinic. 

2. Provide all utilities, phone, internet connectivity, maintenance, repairs,
and janitorial services in connection with the clinic, office space, and the common areas where 

the Clinic will be located. 

3. Provide one (1) nurse to assist the Provider in the Clinic.

II. DURATION. This Agreement will be effective for one (1) year, from the Effective Date.

Thereafter, ttiis Agre.ement will automatically renew for one additional one year unless and until

terminated in accordance herewith. Following the second year, the parties must jointly agree in

writing to continue the agreement for any additional renewal year by providing notice not less

than 60 days prior to the end of the contract year.

Ill. TERMINATION. 

A. Termination Without Cause. Either Party may, in its sole discretion, terminate

this Agreement without cause by giving the other Party at least ninety (90) days' prior written 

notice. 

Cooperative Endeavor Agreement Page 2 of6 
Southern University New Orleans and NOLA Physician Group 



B. Termination for Breach. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon breach
by the other Party of any material provision of this Agreement, provided such breach continues 
for fifteen (15) days after receipt by the breaching Party of written notice of such breach from 
the non-breaching Party. 

C. Termination for Changes in Law. In the event that any governmental or
nongovernmental agency, or any court or administrative tribunal passes, issues or promulgates 
any new, or change to any existing, law, rule, regulation, standard, interpretation, order, decision 

or judgment (individually or collectively, "Legal Event"), which a Party (the "Noticing Party") 
reasonably believes (i) materially and adversely affects either Party's licensure, accreditation, 
certification, or ability to refer, to accept any referral, to present a bill or claim, or to receive 
payment or reimbursement from any governmental or non-governmental payor, or (ii) indicates 
a legal Event with which the Noticing Party desires further compliance, then, in either event, the 
Noticing Party may give the other Party thirty (30) days prior written notice of its intent to amend 
or terminate this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Noticing Party may propose an 
amendment to the Agreement to account for the legal Event, and, if accepted by the other Party 
prior to the end of the thirty (30) day notice period, the Agreement shall be amended as of the 
date of such acceptance and if not amended shall automatically terminate. 

D. Referral Following Termination: In the event of a termination, NOLA Physician
Group will be solely responsible for notifying patients undergoing treatment of an alternative 
treatment location/physician group to continue treatment. 

IV. NOLA PHYSICIAN GROUP'S STATUS. In performing the services described hereunder,
NOLA Physician Group and its Provider are acting as independent contractors as to University,
and neither NOLA Physician Group nor its Provider shall be considered employees of University.
Further, NOLA Physician Group shall operate the Clinic as a NOLA Physician Group clinic and shall
maintain all medical records and patient information in compliance with the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 together with its implementing regulations ("HIPM").
University shall not exercise any control or direction over the manner or method by which NOLA
Physician Group or its Provider provides the services. As independent contractors, NOLA
Physician Group and its Providers retain the right to engage in the private practice of medicine,

and nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted as limiting or restricting that right in any way.
The provisions set forth herein shall survive expiration or other termination of this Agreement,
regardless of the cause of such termination.

V. INSURANCE.

A. During the term of this Agreement, NOLA Physician Group shall, at all times, (a)
maintain adequate workers' compensation and unemployment insurance coverage for its 

employees in accordanc_e with state law (bl maintain comprehensive general liability insurance 
in commercially reasonable amounts, and (c) cause all Providers to be enrolled as a health care 
provider with the Louisiana Patient's Compensation Fund pursuant to the Louisiana Medical 

Malpractice Act, Louisiana Revised Statutes 40:1299.41, et seq. and maintain professional liability 

Cooperative Endeavor Agreement Page 3 of6 
Southern University New Orleans and NOLA Physician Group 



coverage in accordance with the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statutes 40:1299.39 et 
seq. NOLA Physician Group will provide University with proof of all required insurance coverage 
not later than the first day of each contract year. 

B. During the term of this Agreement, University shall maintain policies of
comprehensive general liability insurance against claims for bodily injury or death and property 
damage occurring on the premises through the Louisiana Office of Risk management in the same 
manner and in the same amounts as for all of University owned buildings. University shall provide 

NOLA Physicians Group with proof of coverage through ORM at the commencement of each 
contract year. 

VI. INDEMNITY. Both parties mutually agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless
from and against all liability, losses, damages, claims, causes of action, cost or expenses (including
reasonable attorneys' fees), which directly or indirectly arise from the performance of the
obligations hereunder by the indemnifying Party, its agents, servants, Personnel, representatives
and/or employees. The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Vil. NOTICES. 

Except for any routine communication, any notice, demand, communication, or request 
required or permitted under this Agreement will be given in writing and delivered in person or 
by certified mail, return receipt requested as follows: 

To the University: 
Chancellor Lisa Mims-Devezin 
6400 Press Drive 
New Orleans, LA 70126 
Phone: (504) 284-5117 
Fax: (504) 284-5473 

To the NOLA Physician Group: 
NOLA Physician Group 
5620 Read Blvd. 
New Orleans, LA 70127 

With a copy to: 
LCMCHealth 
210 State Street 
New Orleans, LA 70118 
Attn: Chief Legal Officer 

Notices are effective when received, except any notice that is not received due to the intended 
recipient's refusal or avoidance of delivery is deemed received as of the date of the first 
attempted delivery. Each party is responsible for notifying the other in writing that references 

this Agreement of any changes in its address(es) set forth above. 

Cooperative Endeavor Agreement Page4of6 
Southern University New Orleans and NOLA Physician Group 



VIII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

A. Rules of Construction. This Agreement has been reviewed by all parties and shall be

construed and interpreted according to the ordinary meaning of the words used so as to fairly 

accomplish the purposes and intentions of all parties. The headings and captions of this 

Agreement are provided for convenience only and are not intended to have effect in the 

construction or interpretation of this Agreement. The singular number includes the plural, where 

appropriate. Neither this Agreement nor any uncertainty or ambiguity herein shall be construed 

or resolved in favor of or against either party on the basis of which party drafted the language. 

B. Severability. The parties intend all provisions of this Agreement to be enforced to the
fullest extent permitted by law. Accordingly, if a court of competent jurisdiction finds any 

provision to be unenforceable as written, the court should reform the provision so that it is 

enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law. If a court finds any provision is not subject 
to reformation, that provision shall be fully severable and the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be construed and enforced as if such 

illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision was never included, and the remaining provisions of 

this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

C. Survival of Provisions. All representations and warranties and all responsibilities

regarding record retention, access, and ownership, cooperation with Office of Inspector General 

investigations, and indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement and continue 
in full force and effect. 

D. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into for the exclusive benefit of

the University and the NOLA Physician Group, and the parties expressly disclaim any intent to 

benefit any person that is not a party to this Agreement. 

E. Non-Waiver. The failure of either party to insist upon strict compliance with any provision

of this Agreement, to enforce any right, or to seek any remedy upon discovery of any default or 

breach of the other party shall not affect or be deemed a waiver of any party's right to insist upon 

compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, to exercise any rights, or to seek 

any available remedy with respect to any default, breach, or defective performance. 

F. Agreement Binding. This Agreement is not assignable by either party unless authorized

by a validly executed amendment. 

G. Modifications. This Agreement shall not be modified except by written amendment

executed by authorized representatives of the parties. 

H. Voluntary Execution. Each party has read and fully understands the terms, covenants and

conditions set forth in this Agreement and is executing the same willingly and voluntarily of its 

Cooperative Endeavor Agreement Page 5 of6 
Southern University New Orleans and NOLA Physician Group 



own volition. 

I. Complete Agreement. This Agreement supersedes and replaces any and all prior

agreements, negotiations, and discussions between the parties with regard to the terms, 

obligations, and conditions of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the University and the NOLA Physician Group, through their duly
authorized representatives, execute this Agreement. 

Cooperative Endeavor Agreement 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY NEW ORLEANS

BY:c:?(__. J?e-•-�
Name: Lisa Mims-Devezin, PhD 

Title: Chancellor 

LCMC HEALTH CLINIC SERVICES, LLC D/B/A NOLA 
PHYSICIAN GROUP 

/\/ 0\ . 
¼--j o)� l,_ Q, 'UJ»a, fil.G.� 

Name: Takeisha C. Davis, MD. MPH 
Title: President & Chief Executive Officer 

Page 6 of6 
Southern University New Orleans and NOLA Physician Group 



1 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

FULFILLING 

THE PROMISE: 
A PATHWAY TO EXCELLENCE 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

2025 
 

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 

President-Chancellor 

Southern University and A&M College System 



2 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

_______________________________________________ 
 

We want to express our deepest appreciation and gratitude to the following individuals for their 

tremendous contributions to advancing strategic planning throughout the Southern University 

and A&M College System culminating in the completion of the SYSTEM’S STRATEGIC PLAN 2025 

- FULFILLING THE PROMISE: A PATHWAY TO EXCELLENCE. 

 
Southern University System 

• Dr. Ray L. Belton, President-Chancellor 
• Dr. Katara A. Williams, Chief of Staff 
• Dr. Vladimir A. Appeaning, Vice President, Strategic Planning, Policy, & IE 
• Dr. Toni Manogin, Executive Director, Institutional Effectiveness, Strategic Planning & Policy  
• Mr. Flandus McClinton, Vice President, Finance & Administration 
• Dr. Robyn Merrick, Vice President, External Affairs 
• Attorney Tracie Woods, Associate Vice President, Human Resources 
• Attorney Deidre Robert, General Counsel 
• Dr. Gabriel Fagbeyiro, Associate Vice President/Chief Information Officer 
• Attorney Cedric Upshaw, Director, Title IX & ADA Director 
• Mr. Michael Wells, Board Officer 
• Ms. Maya Banks, Board Officer 
• Dr. Moustapha Diack, Associate Vice President, Online Learning Services 
• Mr. Alfred Harrell III, Chief Executive Officer, Southern University System Foundation 
• Mr. Brian Adams, Executive Director, Internal Audit 
• Ms. Michelle Briscoe-Long, Special Assistant, Office of the President 
• Mr. Graylin Hammond, Special Assistant, Office of the President 
 

Southern University and A & M College 

• Dr. James H. Ammons, Executive Vice President-Executive Vice Chancellor 
• Ms. Sharon Saunders, Special Assistant to EVP-EVC 
• Mr. Benjamin Pugh, Vice Chancellor, Finance & Administration  
• Dr. Bijoy Sahoo, Senior Associate Vice Chancellor, Academic Affairs 
• Dr. Kimberly Scott, Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs & Enrollment Management 
• Dr. Michael Stubblefield, Vice Chancellor, Research & Economic Development 
• Mr. Edward Willis, Assistant Vice Chancellor, Student Success 
• Dr. Manicia Finch, Associate Vice Chancellor, Enrollment Management 
• Dr. Anthony Jackson, Associate Vice Chancellor, Student Affairs 
• Dr. Kelvin Francois, Director, Financial Aid 
• Mrs. Tracy Abraham, Housing & Residential Services 
• Mr. Willie Francois, Director, of ERP Services 
• Mr. Lloyd Allen, Division of Infrastructure & Network Operations 
• Mr. Clourth Wilson, Assistant Director of Information Technology 
• Dr. Raymond Sumo, Data & Research Analyst, Institutional Research & Assessment  
• Mr. LaShawn Thompson, ERP Lead Coordinator 
• Mr. Darrell K. Street, Doctoral Student 
• Mr. Nolan Johnson III, Network Engineer 



3 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Southern University at New Orleans 

• Dr. Lisa Mims Devezin, Chancellor 
• Dr. David Adegboye, Vice Chancellor & Accreditation Liaison, Academic Affairs, Evening & 

Weekend Program 
• Mrs. Gloria Moultrie, Chief Administrative Officer, Community Outreach, Alumni Affairs & 

Public Relations 
• Dr. Brenda Jackson, Vice Chancellor, Research/Strategic Initiatives & Executive Director of Title 

III Programs 
• Mr. Jullin Renthrope, Vice Chancellor, Administration & Finance 
• Mr. Harry Doughty, Executive Associate to the Chancellor 
• Dr. Murky Kambhampati, Professor of Biology 
• Ms. Shannon Jones, Director 
• Ms. Ada Kwanbunbumpen, Director, Institutional Effectiveness 

 

Southern University at Shreveport 

• Dr. Rodney A. Ellis, Chancellor 
• Dr. Melva Williams, Vice Chancellor, Student Affairs & Enrollment Management 
• Dr. Regina Robinson, Vice Chancellor, Research, Sponsored Programs & Institutional 

Effectiveness 
• Dr. Sharron Herron-Williams, Vice Chancellor, Academic Affairs 
• Ms. Leslie R. McClellon, Chief Administrative & Operations Management/Chief of Staff 
• Ms. Brandy Jacobsen, Chief Financial Officer 
• Ms. Charlotte Ashley, Director, Institutional Research  

 

Southern University Law Center 

• Attorney John Pierre, Chancellor 
• Attorney Roderick White, Vice Chancellor, Academic & Student Affairs 
• Terry Hall, Vice Chancellor, Finance  
• Attorney Alfreda Diamond, Vice Chancellor, Institutional Accountability & Accreditation 
• Attorney Regina James, Associate Vice Chancellor 
• Attorney Layla Johnson, Associate Vice Chancellor 
• Attorney Shawn Vance, Associate Vice Chancellor, Academic Support 

 

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center 

• Dr. Bobby R. Phills, Chancellor-Dean 
• Dr. Retia Walker, Vice Chancellor, Academic & Student Support Services/Associate Dean 
• Dr. Dawn Mellion-Patin, Vice Chancellor, Extension & Outreach 
• Dr. Andra Johnson, Vice Chancellor, Research & Technology Development 
• Dr. Calvin Reuben Walker, Associate Vice Chancellor, Auxiliary Affairs & External Engagement 
• Dr. Oscar Udoh, Director, Grants & Facility Program Management 
• Ms. Linda Batiste, Director, Finance 
• Ms. Aymbriana Campbell, Executive Assistant to the Chancellor-Dean 

 
       Vladimir Alexander Appeaning                                            Toni Manogin 
_______________________________________                ________________________________________ 
Dr. Vladimir A. Appeaning, Vice President                                        Dr. Toni Manogin, Executive Director 
Strategic Planning, Policy, & Institutional Effectiveness                   Institutional Effectiveness, Strategic Planning, & Policy  



4 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Acknowledgements ...................................................................................................................................................... 2 
Board of Supervisors  ................................................................................................................................................... 5 
A Message from the President – Chancellor ................................................................................................................ 6 
A Message from the Campus Chancellors ................................................................................................................... 7 
Louisiana Map of System Campuses ........................................................................................................................... 9 
Why Education Matters Now More Than Ever ............................................................................................................ 10 
Southern University and A&M College System: At a Glance ..................................................................................... 15 
Fulfilling the Promise  .................................................................................................................................................. 16 
Mission ......................................................................................................................................................................... 17 
Vision ........................................................................................................................................................................... 17 
Core Values  ................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

Excellence and Integrity .................................................................................................................................. 18 
Student-Centered ............................................................................................................................................. 18 
Accountability and Effectiveness .................................................................................................................... 18 
Innovation and Creativity ................................................................................................................................ 18 
Diversity and Respect ...................................................................................................................................... 18 
Collaboration and Teamwork .......................................................................................................................... 18 
Advocacy and Open Communication .............................................................................................................. 18 

Goal I: Commitment to Student Access and Affordability .......................................................................................... 19 
SMART Objectives ......................................................................................................................................... 19 
Strategies ......................................................................................................................................................... 19 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) ................................................................................................................ 19 

Goal II: Commitment to Academic Excellence and Student Success .......................................................................... 25 
SMART Objectives ......................................................................................................................................... 25 
Strategies ......................................................................................................................................................... 25 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) ................................................................................................................ 25 

Goal III: Commitment to Institutional Effectiveness and Accountability .................................................................... 33 
SMART Objectives ......................................................................................................................................... 33 
Strategies ......................................................................................................................................................... 33 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) ................................................................................................................ 33 

Goal IV: Commitment to Scholarly Research, Discovery and Entrepreneurship  ....................................................... 36 
SMART Objectives ......................................................................................................................................... 36 
Strategies ......................................................................................................................................................... 36 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) ................................................................................................................ 36 

Goal V: Commitment to Fundraising and Philanthropic Support ................................................................................ 39 
SMART Objectives ......................................................................................................................................... 39 
Strategies ......................................................................................................................................................... 39 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) ................................................................................................................ 39 

Goal VI: Commitment to Improve Campus Life through Infrastructural Development .............................................. 41 
SMART Objectives ......................................................................................................................................... 41 
Strategies ......................................................................................................................................................... 41 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) ................................................................................................................ 41 

Goal VII: Commitment to Promote the Southern University Brand through Outreach and Global Engagement........ 42 
SMART Objectives ......................................................................................................................................... 42 
Strategies ......................................................................................................................................................... 42 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) ................................................................................................................ 42 

 
APPENDIX A – SCORE CARD  
APPENDIX B – DATA FOR GOAL 1  
APPENDIX C – DATA FOR GOAL 2  
APPENDIX D – DATA FOR GOAL 3  
APPENDIX E – DATA FOR GOAL 4 
APPENDIX F – DATA FOR GOAL 5 
APPENDIX G – DATA FOR GOAL 6  
APPENDIX H – DATA FOR GOAL 7 



5 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM 

  

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

• The Honorable Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Chair 
 

• The Honorable Reverend Donald R. Henry, Vice Chair 
 

• The Honorable Dr. Leon R. Tarver II 
 

• The Honorable Dr. Leroy Davis  
 

• The Honorable Dr. Curman L. Gaines 
 

• The Honorable Attorney Domoine Rutledge 
 

• The Honorable Attorney Tony M. Clayton 
 

• The Honorable Attorney Patrick D. Magee 
 

• The Honorable Reverend Joe R. Gant, Jr 
 

• The Honorable Reverend Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr 
 

• The Honorable Mr. Raymond M. Fondel, Jr 
 

• The Honorable Mr. John L. Barthelemy 
 

• The Honorable Mr. Richard T. Hilliard 
 

• The Honorable Dr. Rani G. Whitfield 
 

• The Honorable Mr. Mike A. Small 
 

• The Honorable Ms. Xavieria Jeffers 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM 

A MESSAGE FROM DR. RAY L. BELTON 

PRESIDENT-CHANCELLOR 

_________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM  

 

SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION 

______________________________________ 
 

• Dr. Ray L. Belton, President-Chancellor 
 

• Dr. Katara A. Williams, Chief-of-Staff 
 

• Dr. James H. Ammons, Executive Vice President-Executive Vice Chancellor 
 

• Dr. Vladimir A. Appeaning, Vice President, Strategic Planning, Policy & Institutional Effectiveness 
 

• Mr. Flandus McClinton, Vice President, Finance and Administration 
 

• Dr. Robyn Merrick, Vice President, External Relations 
 

• Dr. Gabriel Fagbeyiro, Associate Vice President, Chief Information Officer 
 

• Attorney Tracie Woods, Associate Vice President, Human Resources 
 

• Attorney Deidre Robert, General Counsel 
 

• Dr. Toni Manogin, Executive Director, Strategic Planning, Policy & Institutional Effectiveness 
 

• Mr. Brian Adams, Internal Auditor 
 
 

CAMPUS CHANCELLORS 

_______________________________________________________ 

 

• Dr. Ray L. Belton, President-Chancellor 
Southern University and A&M College  
 

• Dr. Lisa Mims Devezin, Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans 
 

• Dr. Rodney A. Ellis, Chancellor 
Southern University at Shreveport  
 

• Dr. Bobby R. Phills, Chancellor- Dean 
Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center 
 

• Attorney John Pierre, Chancellor 
Southern University Law Center 



8 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM 

CAMPUS MISSION STATEMENTS 

____________________________________________________ 
 

 

Dr. Lisa Mims Devezin, Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans 

 
Southern University at New Orleans, a public, historically black university, 

empowers and promotes the upward mobility of diverse populations of 

traditional and nontraditional students through quality academic programs 

and service to achieve excellence in higher education. 

 

 
Dr. Rodney A. Ellis, Chancellor 

Southern University at Shreveport 
 

Southern University at Shreveport is a comprehensive community college 

that affords opportunities for teaching, service, workforce development and 

life-long learning, while embracing a culture of self-discovery, collaboration, 

civic engagement, and excellence. 

 

 

               Dr. Bobby R. Phills, Chancellor - Dean 
                    Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center 

 

The Land-Grant Campus of the Southern University and A&M College System 

embraces a mission consistent with the University's tripartite mission of 

teaching, research, and extension/public service. To effectively serve the 

agricultural and food science industry, we conduct basic and applied 

research and disseminate information statewide. This allows us to better 

serve the citizens of Louisiana in a manner that is useful in addressing their 

scientific, technological, social, economic and cultural needs. 

 

Attorney John Pierre, Chancellor 
Southern University Law Center 

 

The mission and tradition of the Law Center is to provide access and 

opportunity to a diverse group of students from underrepresented racial, 

ethnic, and socio-economic groups to obtain a high-quality legal education 

with special emphasis on the Louisiana civil Law.  Additionally, our mission 

is to train a cadre of lawyers equipped with the skills necessary for the 

practice of law and for positions of leadership in society. 

 

 

http://www.suagcenter.com/page/chancellors-biographical-resume


9 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Southern University and A&M College System  
 

FULFILLING THE PROMISE: 

A PATHWAY TO EXCELLENCE 
“Five Campuses, One Vision, … Global Excellence” 

#We Are Southern! 
 

 



10 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

FULFILLING THE PROMISE: 

A PATHWAY TO EXCELLENCE 
 “Five Campuses, One Vision, … Global Excellence” 

#We Are Southern! 

______________________________________________________ 
 

Why Education Matters Now More Than Ever 
 

A Global Perspective on Education  

The 2018 World Conference held in Washington DC on July 14-17, re-emphasized a known universal truth – 
education is the key driver to economic and community development, and that the return-on-education is 
priceless. Simply put, there is no development without education.  Therefore, we must continue to make 
strategic investments in education. 
 
Education is a prerequisite for short and long-term economic growth: No country has achieved continuous and 
rapid economic growth without at least 40 percent of adults being able to read and write. A person’s earnings 
increase by 10 percent for each year of schooling they receive, translating to a one percent annual increase in 
Gross Domestic product (GDP) if good quality education is offered to the entire population.  
 

A National Perspective on Education 

Today, college remains the greatest driver of socioeconomic mobility in America, but if we don’t do more to 
keep it within reach for middle-class families and those striving to get into the middle class, it could have the 
opposite effect - serving as a barrier, instead of a ticket to the American Dream. Every student deserves a real 
opportunity to earn an affordable, high-quality degree or credential that offers a clear path to civic engagement, 
economic security, and success. 
 
The United States has transformed from a manufacturing-based economy to a knowledge-based economy. 
Three-quarters of the fastest-growing occupations require education and training beyond a high school 
diploma. Simply put, in today’s economy, higher education is no longer a luxury for the privileged few, but a 
necessity for individual economic opportunity and America’s competitiveness in the global economy.  
 
Creating a clear path to the middle class and ensuring our nation’s economic prosperity means opening the 
doors of higher education to more Americans. At a time when jobs can go anywhere in the world, skills and 
education will determine success for individuals and for nations.   
 
In effect, a college education remains the best investment a student can make in his or her future. 
 

• College graduates with a bachelor’s degree typically earn 66 percent more than those with only a high 
school diploma; and are also far less likely to face unemployment.  

• Over the course of a lifetime, the average worker with a bachelor’s degree will earn approximately $1 
million more than a worker without a postsecondary education. 



11 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

A Regional Perspective on Education 

The Southern Regional Education Board (SREB) is a nonprofit, nonpartisan organization that works with states 
to improve public education at every level, from early childhood through doctoral education. The 16 member 
states of SREB are Alabama, Arkansas, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maryland, 
Mississippi, North Carolina, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia and West Virginia. 
According to the 2018 SREB State Progress Report – Looking Closer – SREB states will need to increase 
college enrollment substantially in the coming years if they are to achieve the Challenge to Lead 2020 Goal - 
that 60 percent of working-age adults have a postsecondary degree or certificate.  

 

SREB – Educational Attainment and Poverty 

Across the SREB region, adults who graduated from high school earned an average of $6,300 more in 2016 
than those without a high school credential. Also, in 2016: 
 

• In the SREB, on average, adults with bachelor’s degrees earned $20,500 more than those with only 
high school credentials. 

• In Louisiana, on average, adults with bachelor’s degrees earned $18,167 more than those with only 
high school credentials. 

• In Louisiana, with respect to educational attainment and employment: 
o 43 percent of adults with no high school credential were employed. 
o 63 percent of adults with only a high school credential were employed. 
o 72 percent of adults with some college or an Associate’s degree were employed. 
o 82 percent of adults with a Bachelor’s degree were employed. 

• In Louisiana, with respect to educational attainment and poverty: 
o 34 percent of adults with no high school credential were below the federal poverty level. 
o 18 percent of high school graduates were below the federal poverty level. 
o 13 percent of adults with some college or an Associate’s degree were below the federal poverty 

level. 
o 5 percent of adults with a Bachelor’s degree were below the federal poverty level. 

 

SREB – Affordability and Student Debt 

The 2016 SREB Affordability Commission addressed the critical challenge of increasing degree completion - 
one that becomes more difficult as escalating tuition and fees price students out of postsecondary education 
and better careers. In 2016: 
 

• Approximately 60 percent of U.S. college seniors graduated with student debt.  
• Approximately 50 percent of Louisiana’s Bachelor’s degree completers had debt. 
• Across SREB states, student debt ranged from $24,461 to $33,838, with an average debt of $28,446.  
• The average student loan debt in Louisiana was $27,138.  
• Between 2012-2016, the average student loan debt for Bachelor’s degree completers increased by 

$4,439 or 19 percent. 
 
Faced with the prospect of so much debt, many families may decide that college is just too expensive. Most 
SREB states provide some combination of need-based and merit-based aid.  Need-based financial aid helps 
cover the cost of attendance at public postsecondary institutions for students who meet admission standards, 
but who may not qualify for merit-based scholarships. While state aid in SREB programs varies considerably, 
need-based financial aid remains an important tool to help students and their families overcome the 
affordability gap.  



12 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Increasing overall postsecondary enrollment rates is a critical step in closing college completion gaps. As 
postsecondary institutions try to attract a greater percentage of students, states will need to provide increased 
support for them, particularly those from low-income families and those who are first in their families to 
consider postsecondary education. Federal Pell Grants assist students from low-income families by providing 
funding support that they do not have to re-pay. In 2016: 
 

• Average Pell Grant award in SREB states ranged from $3,310 to $4,046.  
• Average Pell Grant award in Louisiana was $3,793. 

 

SREB – Enrollment Rates 

In fall 2016, 69 percent of the recent high school graduates in SREB states enrolled in postsecondary education, 
ranging from 62 to 88 percent across the SREB region.  
 

• For the High School Class of 2016, in Louisiana, there were: 
o 46,534 high school seniors in fall 2015. 

▪ 36,576 or 78 percent graduated from high school in 2016. 
✓ 32,456 or 88 percent enrolled in a post-secondary institution within a year.  

 
From 2012 to 2016, post-secondary enrollment in SREB states decreased for African American students by 13 
percentage points, with double-digit decreases in 15 SREB states. Conversely, enrollment increased for 
Hispanic students by 21 percentage points in the region, with gains ranging from 11 to 59 percentage points 
across the SREB region.  
 
In 2016, almost half of the baccalaureate recipients nationwide had been enrolled in a two-year college at some 
point over the prior ten-year period. Clearly, two-year colleges play a role in the success of four-year colleges. 
In 2016: 
 

• In the SREB, 53 percent of the baccalaureate recipients had previously enrolled in a two-year college. 
• In Louisiana, 46 percent of the baccalaureate recipients had previously enrolled in a two-year college. 

 

SREB – Persistence/Retention Rates 

SREB states monitor their college freshmen persistence rate as a predictor of college completion. This rate 
measures the percentage of first-year, full-time students who return to their colleges for a second year of study. 
States submit these data sets to the SREB State Data Exchange – first-year persistence rate – is the percentage 
of freshmen in the first-time, fulltime bachelor’s degree-seeking cohort who were enrolled at the institution 
they first attended or who transferred to another college or university the next fall. In 2015: 
 

• Across the SREB region, persistence rates ranged from 77 percent to 92 percent.  
• SREB’s average persistence rate at public four-year institutions was 85 percent. 
• Louisiana’s average persistence rate at public four-year institutions was 80 percent.  

 
SREB – Graduation Rates 

A key performance outcome measure for SREB states is the six-year graduation rate for four-year colleges 
and universities and the three-year graduation rate for two-year colleges. Institutions report these rates to the 
U.S. Department of Education. Federal law defines college graduation rates as the percentage of first-time 
freshmen who enter college in the fall term and remain at the same institution and graduate within six years 
(four-year institutions) and three years (two-year institutions).  



13 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

In 2016:  
 

• U.S. six-year college graduation rate was 59 percent for the fall 2010 cohort. 
• SREB’s six-year college graduation rate was 56 percent for the fall 2010 cohort. 
• Louisiana’s six-year college graduation rate was 47 percent for the fall 2010 cohort. 

 
o U.S. six-year graduate rate for White students was 62 percent. 
o SREB’s six-year graduate rate for White students was 61 percent. 
o Louisiana’s six-year graduate rate for White students was 53 percent. 

 
o U.S. six-year graduate rate for Hispanic students was 54 percent. 
o SREB’s six-year graduate rate for Hispanic students was 52 percent. 
o Louisiana’s six-year graduate rate for Hispanic students was 48 percent. 

 
o U.S. six-year graduate rate for Black students was 40 percent.  
o SREB’s six-year graduate rate for Black students was 41 percent. 
o Louisiana’s six-year graduate rate for Black students was 33 percent. 

 
SREB encourages states to consider creative ways to better support all students, including adult learners, so 
that they graduate, earn good salaries and are less dependent on state and federal aid programs.  

• SREB states should provide greater support for Pell Grant recipients to ensure their success.  
• SREB states should provide support for transfer students to ensure they graduate. 
• SREB states should provide rewards for postsecondary institutions that meet or exceed completion 

performance targets.  
• SREB states should align postsecondary education and workforce needs to incentives students. 

 
SREB – Adult Learners 

The Challenge 2020 Adult Educational Attainment Goal Calls for 60 Percent of Working-Age Adults in SREB 
States to Earn a Postsecondary Credential by 2020. Postsecondary certificates, as well as Associate and 
Bachelor’s degrees, count toward the goal.  In 2016:    
 

• In U.S., 41 percent of working-age adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or higher.  
• In SREB, 38 percent of working-age adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or higher.  
• In Louisiana, 31 percent of working-age adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or higher.  

 
o US - 46 percent of working-age White adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or higher.  
o SREB - 43 percent of working-age White adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or 

higher.  
o Louisiana - 36 percent of working-age White adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or 

higher.  
 

o US - 22 percent of working-age Hispanic adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or 
higher.  

o SREB - 24 percent of working-age Hispanic adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or 
higher.  

o Louisiana - 23 percent of working-age Hispanic adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree 
or higher.  
 



14 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

o US - 30 percent of working-age Black adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or higher.  
o SREB - 30 percent of working-age Black adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or 

higher.  
o Louisiana – 21 percent of working-age Black adults, ages 25-64, earned an Associate degree or 

higher.  
 
SREB encourages its member states to consider creative programs that can help three specific groups of adults 
increase their attainment levels: 1) Adults without a high school credential; 2) Adults with a high school 
credential, but no postsecondary education; and 3) Adults with some postsecondary education, but no 
credential.  
 
In 2016: 

• In the SREB, between 55 and 74 percent of the adult population were: 1) Adults without a high school 
credential, 2) Adults with a high school credential, but no postsecondary education; and 3) Adults with 
some postsecondary education, but no credential.  

• In Louisiana, 71 percent or 2,176,845 of the adult population were: 1) Adults without a high school 
credential, 2) Adults with a high school credential, but no postsecondary education; and 3) Adults with 
some postsecondary education, but no credential.  

• In Louisiana, 55 percent or 1,686,288 of the adult population were: 1) Adults with a high school 
credential, but no postsecondary education; 2) Adults with some postsecondary education, but no 
credential.  

 
In 2017, SREB states received approximately $227 million, or 39 percent of the funds allocated to states 
nationwide to provide Adult Basic Education (ABE) programs. Federal funding helps states to provide basic 
literacy, math skills, and English instruction.  

 

A Louisiana Perspective on Education 

 
According to the Preamble contained in Article VIII of the 1974 Louisiana Constitution:  
 

The goal of the public educational system is to provide learning environment and experiences, at all 
stages of human development, that are humane, just, and designed to promote excellence in order that 
every individual may be afforded an equal opportunity to develop to his full potential. 

 
In 2018, excerpts from the public statement released by the chairs of Louisiana’s four public postsecondary 
systems, in conjunction with the Louisiana Board of Regents, stated: 
 

“Our institutions are part of the fabric of their respective communities. Throughout the state, from 
philanthropic activities to business partnerships, we aim to strengthen each area of the state through 
learning, research and teaching. We are proud to be in the communities, working daily to improve 
Louisiana.”   

 
In effect: 

• Higher education is talent development 
 

• Higher education is economic development 
 

• Higher education is community development 



15 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Southern University and A&M College System 

At A Glance 
 
Section seven (7) of Article VIII of the 1974 Louisiana Constitution: Board of Supervisors of Louisiana State 
University and Agricultural and Mechanical College: Board of Supervisors of Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College: 
 

(A) Creation; Powers. The Board of Supervisors of Louisiana State University and Agricultural and 
Mechanical College and the Board of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and 
Mechanical College are created as bodies corporate. Subject to powers vested by this Article in the 
Board of Regents, each shall supervise and manage the institutions, statewide agricultural programs, 
and other programs administered through its system. 

 
In 1974, a special session in the Louisiana Legislature established the Southern University and A&M College 
System with Jesse N. Stone of Shreveport as its President. The Southern University System consists of five 
campuses, namely: Southern University and A&M College (SUBR), Southern University at New Orleans 
(SUNO), Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA), Southern University Law Center (SULC), and Southern 
University Agriculture Research and Extension Center (SUAREC). Today, the Southern University and A&M 
College System is managed by a 16-member Board. 15 members are appointed by the Governor with consent 
from the Louisiana Senate plus one (1) student member.  
 
For more than a century, America’s great public universities have promoted: 

• Education of their state’s citizens 
• Investment in state and regional economies 
• Workforce planning and development 
• Scientific research, inventions and innovation 

 
The Southern University and A&M College System has a long-standing legacy of more than 130 years of 
excellence in higher education. In the second decade of the 21st century, and more than ever, the economic 
impact of the Southern University System is central to Louisiana’s achievements at every level - from the state 
capital in Baton Rouge to all corners of the state and beyond. Our alumni live, work, and contribute to the 
state, nation and world.  
 
The System’s future will be defined by a bold strategic vision and a clear path for achieving it. Strategic 
planning asks and answers five basic questions:  
 

• Who Are We? 
• Where Are We Now? 
• Where Do We Want to Be? 
• How Do We Get There? 
• How Do We Measure Our Progress?  

 
In 2015, Dr. Ray L. Belton became the 10th President-Chancellor of the Southern University and A&M 
College System. In April 2018, Dr. Belton charged the System’s Office of Strategic Planning, Policy and 
Institutional Effectiveness with developing the System’s Strategic Plan in conjunction with the Leadership 
Team. The result is a Southern University System Strategic Plan that is founded on the overarching principles 
contained in our shared vision, mission, and core values.  

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Special_session
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Southern_University_System
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Southern_University_System
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jesse_N._Stone


16 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Fulfilling the Promise: A Pathway to Excellence represents the 
System’s “public agenda” for higher education. It establishes a direct link 
between the state’s economic development and its educational system, with the 
overarching goal of raising Louisiana Educational Attainment Levels.  
 
 

✓ Fulfilling the Promise: A Pathway to Excellence provides a powerful vision 
for the next seven (7) years to raise Louisiana’s educational attainment levels 
and become a leader in workforce solutions, community and economic 
development. We embrace our vital role in promoting economic success in 
Louisiana and beyond. 
 

✓ Fulfilling the Promise: A Pathway to Excellence is Outcomes-Driven and 
defines the future with great momentum. It removes obstacles to education, 
promotes diversity, provides advocacy, secures and distributes resources, 
ensures accountability, produces work‐ready graduates, generates premier 
research, and engages innovation in ways more vitally needed than ever.  
 

✓ Fulfilling the Promise: A Pathway to Excellence will provide a steady 
pipeline of qualified workforce-ready graduates to meet the emerging 
occupational and intellectual needs of the state and beyond.  

 
✓ Fulfilling the Promise: A Pathway to Excellence emerges at a pivotal time 

for higher education in Louisiana and the United States. Ambitious national 
and state agendas are driving bold efforts to raise enrollment and graduation 
rates, ensure student achievement and success, expand economic and 
workforce development, and respond to the urgent challenges and 
opportunities posed by globalization.  

 
✓ Fulfilling the Promise: A Pathway to Excellence will align the strategic 

plans of each campus within the System, thereby operationalizing the motto, 
“Five Campuses, One Vision, … Global Excellence.” 
 

 

 



17 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

Mission 

____________________________ 

 
The Southern University and A&M College System exists to 
support, protect, and advance the unique missions of its member 
institutions by offering quality educational programs, innovative 
research, and community engagement opportunities that prepare 
students to become global leaders.  
 

Vision 

____________________________ 
 
The Southern University and A&M College System strives to 
achieve global recognition as a premiere university system of 
choice for all students who seek exceptional educational 
opportunities.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



18 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Core Values 
_______________________________________________________ 

 
• Excellence and Integrity:  Excellence will always serve as the hallmark of our 

endeavors. We commit to conducting ourselves in an honest, ethical, and credible 
manner with an unwavering commitment to fairness and doing what is in the best interest 
of our students, faculty, and staff.  
 

• Student-Centered: We commit to being relentlessly student-centered. We want our 
students, wherever they come from, to experience our university system as the place 
where they can pursue their dreams and become global leaders. 
 

• Accountability and Effectiveness: We commit to accountability, fiscal responsibility, 
and transparency, because these are the requirements of sound stewardship. 
Additionally, we commit to advancing an evidence-based planning and assessment 
culture that is focused on continuous improvement and centered on the mission.  
 

• Innovation and Creativity:  We commit to pushing the boundaries of knowledge and 
possibility as we celebrate fundamental discoveries and practical applications alike. We 
recognize the linkage between a quality system of higher education and future economic 
opportunities for our students.  
 

• Diversity and Respect: We commit to honor and preserve the individual dignity of 
everyone across all levels of the university system. We recognize that diversity is the 
foundation of our university system and we acknowledge that differing viewpoints can 
help us anticipate and solve problems. We leverage our differences as strengthens in a 
continuous, fully engaged quest for improvement and innovation. 
 

• Collaboration and Teamwork: We commit to professionalism, civility, and cooperation 
across the university system to ensure success in achieving our stated common goals. 
We recognize that we are stronger and more effective when we work together as a team.  
  

• Advocacy and Open Communication: We commit to promote a culture of openness 
where individuals are encouraged to offer suggestions for improvement. We encourage 
courteous, ethical, and proactive two-way communication. We will always actively 
advocate for our member institutions.  
 
 

 



19 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

System Goals, Objectives, Sample 

Strategies and Performance Indicators  

_______________________________________ 
 

GOAL I 
Commitment to Student Access and Affordability 

 
As a System, we support our campuses in their efforts to attract and retain a diverse population of traditional 
and non-traditional students. To increase student access, our campuses offer multiple entry pathways that 
include dual enrollment, evening and weekend college, online/distance education, cross enrollment through 
SUSLA Connect, conditional admissions, regular admissions, and transfer opportunities from community and 
technical colleges. Every student enrolled at one of our campuses deserves an opportunity to earn a high-
quality technical, undergraduate, graduate or professional academic credential at an affordable price. To further 
overcome the affordability gap, our campuses provide students with some combination of merit-based and 
need-based financial aid.   
 
Objective I.1: 

To increase End-of-Semester Fall Head Count Enrollment by 98% from baseline 12,595 in Fall 2017 to 
25,000 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of students enrolled 
 

• Strategy I.1.1: Develop and implement campus-specific Comprehensive Enrollment Management 
Plans that include the following components: 

o A detailed Recruitment Plan 
o A detailed Marketing and Communication Plan 
o A detailed Financial Aid Plan 
o A detailed Retention Plan 
o A detailed Academic Advisement and Mentorship Plan 
o A detailed Campus/Student Life Plan 

• Strategy I.1.2: Expand the use of University Centers within the Southern University System, where: 
o SUBR can offer programs at SUNO and SUSLA 
o SUNO can offer programs at SUBR and SUSLA 
o SUSLA can offer programs at SUBR and SUNO 
o SULC can offer programs at SUNO and SUSLA 
o SUAREC can offer programs at SUNO and SUSLA 

• Strategy I.1.3: Increase enrollment of high school students by strengthening relationships with high 
school counselors using innovative approaches like high school counselor luncheons to educate them 
about the quality educational programs, innovative research, and community engagement opportunities 
throughout the Southern University System that will prepare their students to become global leaders. 

• Strategy I.1.4: Strengthen faculty and staff development opportunities, both on and off campus, that 
address best practices in educational pedagogies and technology-enhanced learning. 



20 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy I.1.5: Monitor and revise curricular offerings (degrees, certificates) that are aligned with 
workforce and economic development needs to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.6: Expand high-wage, high-demand (4 & 5 Stars) undergraduate academic programs to 
increase enrollment.  

• Strategy I.1.7: Expand graduate education opportunities to include new masters and doctoral programs 
to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.8: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 
undergraduate education to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.9: Promote dual-enrollment by expanding relationships and developing articulation 
agreements with high schools to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.10: Expand the recruitment of traditional students – first-time full-time students (18 - 25 
years) to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.11: Expand the recruitment of non-traditional students – adult learners (25 years and 
above) to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.12: Expand the recruitment of transfer students by developing articulation agreements 
with community colleges to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.13: Increase the recruitment of out-of-state students with assistance from the Southern 
University National Alumni Federation and Alumni Chapters across the country to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.14: Increase the recruitment of international students with leadership provided by our 
offices of international affairs to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.15: Increase the re-admission of students who have completed courses but exited prior to 
completion to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy I.1.16: Increase cross-enrollment within the Southern University System by strengthening 
the SUSLA-Connect program and launching the use of University Centers. 

• Strategy I.1.17: Increase the recruitment of first-generation students to increase enrollment. 
• Strategy I.1.18: Increase student diversity across the Southern University System by aligning 

recruitment plans to reflect state, national and global demographics to increase enrollment. 
• Strategy I.1.19: Develop and implement a plan for increasing need- and merit-based funding through 

private funding sources to increase access and ensure a Southern University education remains 
affordable to students. 

• Strategy I.1.20: Schedule a Southern University System Annual Data Summit, where enrollment 
outcomes data and best practices are shared, and campus leaders are recognized for their achievements. 

• Strategy I.1.21: Establish a dynamic and efficient digital marketing plan for recruiting students. Such 
efforts should include the use of interactive websites, digital advertising, email marketing, social media, 
blogging, and promotional videos. 

 

Objective I.2: 

To increase Undergraduate Enrollment by 99% from baseline 10,779 in Fall 2017 to 21,494 in Fall 2025 
across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Undergraduate students enrolled 
 

• Strategy I.2.1: Improve undergraduate enrollment by offering additional sections of general education, 
courses. 

• Strategy I.2.2: Expand co-curricular programs and student support services, such as advising, 
counseling, and career services. 



21 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy I.2.3: Promote innovative uses of instructional technology to enrich classroom teaching and 
student engagement. 

• Strategy I.2.4: Increase resources available for scholarships and need-based financial aid. 
• Strategy I.2.5: Sharpen our competitive edge for the most highly qualified students by providing merit 

aid needed to recruit more highly qualified freshmen. 
• Strategy I.2.6: Strengthen the first-year experience program to include exciting new student 

orientation programs designed to seamlessly transition students to college, thereby improving student 
access and success. 
 

Objective I.3: 

To increase Graduate Enrollment by 92% from baseline 1,239 in Fall 2017 to 2,381 in Fall 2025 across 
the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Graduate students enrolled 
 

• Strategy I.3.1: Provide adequate resources needed to support graduate education, research capacity, 
compensation for faculty and staff, and stipends for graduate students.  

• Strategy I.3.2: Recruit and mentor graduate students representing a variety of academic perspectives 
and racial, ethnic, gender, and geographic backgrounds.   

• Strategy I.3.3: Develop more masters programs using online and face-to-face modalities in high 
demand disciplines.  

• Strategy I.3.4: Develop more doctoral programs using online and face-to-face modalities in high 
demand disciplines.  

• Strategy I.3.5: Engage faculty and staff in graduate recruitment by linking recruiting activities with 
their involvement in professional associations and other venues. 

• Strategy I.3.6: Ensure that research and service are central components of all graduate programs.  
 

Objective I.4: 

To increase Online Enrollment by 3,268% from baseline 188 in Fall 2017 to 6,331 in Fall 2025 across the 
SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Online students enrolled 
 

• Strategy I.4.1: Develop a detailed plan of action for online education. 
• Strategy I.4.2: Hire a campus leader for online education. 
• Strategy I.4.3: Establish a dynamic and efficient digital marketing plan for recruiting students to online 

programs and courses to include the use of digital advertising, email marketing, social media, blogging, 
and promotional videos. 

• Strategy I.4.4: Collaborate with the Office of the Registrar to remove barriers for online students when 
completing the registration process. 

• Strategy I.4.5: Provide guidance for training topics and opportunities concerning instructional 
technology and sound pedagogy. 

• Strategy I.4.6: Ensure online faculty, students, technology, and staff support scales appropriately to 
meet the needs of online courses and program growth. 

• Strategy I.4.7: Provide initial and continuous training opportunities for online faculty. 
• Strategy I.4.8: Evaluate the current online course rubric and revise as necessary according to best 

practices. 



22 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy I.4.9: Identify programs where at least 50% of their major plan of study is currently being 
offered online. Once these programs are identified, approach department chairs/directors about the 
possibility of offering a fully online degree option in addition to their face-to-face degree. 

• Strategy I.4.10: Work with faculty and departments to convert courses and programs to 100% online. 
• Strategy I.4.11: Outline additional budget requirements needed by departments and support units as 

courses and programs are converted to an online platform. 
• Strategy I.4.12: Identify and convert courses that can be used across multiple degrees and programs. 
• Strategy I.4.13: Evaluate current policies and plans for online learning. 
• Strategy I.4.14: Continuously assess all online courses and programs.  
• Strategy I.4.15: Provide equitable, engaging, and comprehensive academic support for online learners. 
• Strategy I.4.16: Provide equitable, engaging, and comprehensive student support for online learners. 
• Strategy I.4.17: Create specific opportunities for online learners to become involved in campus 

activities. 
• Strategy I.4.18: Initiate peer mentoring for online learners  
• Strategy I.4.19: Increase availability of online tutoring in online courses  
• Strategy I.4.20: Collaborate with specific Student Affairs entities to offer workshops, career fairs, and 

student organization memberships for online learners. 
• Strategy I.4.21: Create an online presence in the Student Government Association and offer voting for 

online students. 
 

Objective I.5: 

To increase Dual Enrollment by 126% from baseline 1,264 in Fall 2017 to 2,851 in Fall 2025 across the 
SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Dual enrollment students 
 

• Strategy I.5.1: Expand interactions with area high schools using articulation agreements to provide 
high school students with the opportunity to take college-level courses and earn credit toward high 
school completion and their future college degrees. 

• Strategy I.5.2: Provide courses through an online platform or a blend of online and in-person/face-to-
face instruction.  

• Strategy I.5.3: Expand educational sites/locations for teaching dual-enrollment courses.  
• Strategy I.5.4: Provide stipends to high school instructors who wish to become certified to teach dual 

enrollment courses.  
 
Objective I.6: 

To increase New First-Time Full-Time Student Enrollment by 164% from baseline 2,075 in Fall 2017 to 
5,481 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of New First-Time Full-Time students enrolled 
 

• Strategy I.6.1: Recruit Generation Y students (Millennials) and Generation Z students using dynamic 
and interactive digital marketing plans that include the use of digital advertising, email marketing, 
social media, blogging, interactive websites, and promotional videos. 

• Strategy I.6.2: Integrate the use of online and hybrid modalities to face-to face instruction to ensure a 
plethora of instructional delivery options are available. 

• Strategy I.6.3: Routinely update the content on all institutional websites. 



23 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy I.6.4: Develop bridge programs for students who may benefit from additional educational 
preparation.    

• Strategy I.6.5: Refine and offer orientation programs to freshmen, transfer students, and graduate 
students that effectively prepare them for the Southern University educational experience.  

• Strategy I.6.6: Utilize a one-stop enrollment services model that includes the entire array of student 
enrollment services (admissions, advising, registration, financial assistance, and student life) to reduce 
attrition that may result from factors that could be addressed. 

• Strategy I.6.7: Encourage academic programs to create learning communities. 
• Strategy I.6.8: Encourage residential programs to create living-learning communities. 

 
Objective I.7: 

To increase Transfer-In Enrollment by 227% from baseline 796 in Fall 2017 to 2,606 in Fall 2025 across 
the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Transfer-In students enrolled 
 

• Strategy I.7.1: Develop institution and program specific articulation agreements to facilitate the 
transfer of students. 

• Strategy I.7.2: Develop orientation and student support programs designed for transfer students. 
• Strategy I.7.3: Offer resources to support the financial aid needs of transfer students. 
• Strategy I.7.4: Take deliberate steps to improve retention and graduation rates of transfer students. 
• Strategy I.7.5: Offer more degree programs online to benefit transfer students.   

 
Objective I.8: 

To increase Re-Admit Enrollment by 197% students from baseline 677 in Fall 2017 to 2,011 in Fall 2025 
across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Re-Admit students enrolled 
 

• Strategy I.8.1: Develop plans in each college or program to recruit-back students who were previously 
enrolled but did not return. 

• Strategy I.8.2: Review the current academic clemency / amnesty policies and revise as appropriate to 
support the student readmission process. 

• Strategy I.8.3: Develop and implement a plan for increasing need- and merit-based funding through 
private funding sources to increase access and ensure a Southern University education remains 
affordable to students seeking readmission. 

 

Objective I.9: 

To increase Cross-Enrollment by 321% from baseline 670 in Fall 2017 to 2,820 in Fall 2025 across the 
SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Cross-Enrolled students 
 

• Strategy I.9.1: Increase cross-enrollment within the Southern University System by strengthening the 
SUSLA-Connect program and University Centers. 

• Strategy I.9.2: Promote transfer between and among campuses and colleges through cross-enrollment 
agreements. 



24 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy I.9.3: Develop and implement a Southern University System Master Course Articulation 
Matrix that will allow for the seamless transfer of students and acceptance of courses across campuses.   
 

Objective I.10: 

To increase the percentage of First-Generation Students (Pell-Eligible Students) by 8% from baseline 
62% in Fall 2017 to 70% in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Percentage of First-Generation (Pell-Eligible)  students enrolled 
 

• Strategy I.10.1: Increase the recruitment of first-generation students in accordance with our historical 
mission. 

• Strategy I.10.2: Provide ongoing training and professional development opportunities for financial aid 
counselors to ensure that they are up-to-date on applicable federal laws, policies and procedures. 

• Strategy I.10.3: Ensure all prospective applicants have completed their FAFSAs in a timely manner.  
 

Objective I.11: 

To increase the percentage of Adult Learners (25 years and older) by 12% from baseline 30% in Fall 
2017 to 42% in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Percentage of Adult Learners enrolled 
 

• Strategy I.11.1: Offer more courses and academic programs through evening and weekend programs. 
• Strategy I.11.2: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 

undergraduate education for the convenience of adult learners. 
• Strategy I.11.3: Explore venues for supporting continuing education opportunities for lifelong and 

non-degree seeking learners. 
 

Objective I.12: 

To increase the average Financial Aid Award (Pell Grants & Scholarships) by 20% from baseline $5,345 
in Fall 2017 to $6,400 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Average Financial Aid Award 
 

• Strategy I.12.1: Develop and implement a plan for increasing need- and merit-based funding through 
private funding sources to increase access and ensure a Southern University education remains 
affordable to all students. 

• Strategy I.12.2: Streamline the financial aid awarding process to best match students to grants, 
scholarships, and work-study opportunities. 

• Strategy I.12.3: Increase the number and amounts of graduate assistantship opportunities. 
• Strategy I.12.4: Offer financial literacy seminars and workshops to help reduce student indebtedness.  

 

 
 
 
 



25 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Goal II 
Commitment to Academic Excellence and Student Success 
 
As a System, we support our campuses in their efforts to develop and offer outstanding technical and academic 
undergraduate, graduate, and professional programs that respond to local, regional and statewide workforce 
needs and promote student success and achievement. From the humanities, social sciences, education, and the 
arts to the sciences, engineering, business, healthcare, and agriculture, our campuses are fast becoming the 
places where the world looks to first for new ideas, creativity, and innovation. Recognizing the highly mobile 
nature of traditional and non-traditional student populations, our campuses offer an optimal mix of courses and 
programs using a variety of course delivery modalities to facilitate timely completion of graduation 
requirements. 
 
Objective II.1: 

To decrease the average Student-Faculty Ratio by 16% from baseline 21:1 in Fall 2017 to 18:1 in Fall 
2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Average Student-Faculty Ratio  
 

• Strategy II.1.1: Offer more course sections based on enrollment demand. 
• Strategy II.1.2: Hire more qualified full-time faculty based on enrollment demand. 
• Strategy II.1.3: Hire more qualified part-time faculty based on enrollment demand. 

 
Objective II.2: 

To increase First-to-Second Year Fall to Fall Same Institution Retention Rate by 12% from baseline 51% 
in Fall 2017 to 63% in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: First-to-Second Year Fall-to-Fall Same Institution Retention 
Rate   

 
• Strategy II.2.1: Develop an Early-Alert-System to identify students at risk of dropping courses for 

academic and non-academic reasons. 
• Strategy II.2.2: Offer an array of academic support programs and services such as tutorial programs 

across majors, supplemental instruction opportunities, etc. 
• Strategy II.2.3: Implement a Freshman Academy.    
• Strategy II.2.4: Offer an array of student support services such as counselling and mentoring programs 

to help with student success and completion.  
• Strategy II.2.5: Implement living and learning communities in residential life.   
• Strategy II.2.6: Develop and implement a plan for increasing need- and merit-based funding through 

private funding sources to increase student success, thereby decreasing the affordability gap and 
improving student retention. 

• Strategy II.2.7: Develop intervention programs as necessary. 
• Strategy II.2.8: Increase resources for academic advising. 
• Strategy II.2.9: Increase student engagement and involvement in campus life programs and student 

organizations.  
• Strategy II.2.10: Practice active teaching and learning in the classroom by increasing student-faculty 

engagement.  



26 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Objective II.3: 

To increase the 4-Year Graduation Rate (100% or normal time to completion) by 14% from baseline 6.5% 
in Fall 2017 (2013 cohort) to 20.5% in Fall 2025 (2021 cohort) for 4-Year SU System institutions (SUBR 
and SUNO). 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: 4-Year Graduation Rate (100% or normal time to completion)   
 

• Strategy II.3.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.3.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.3.3: Advise students to complete 15 credits per semester or 30 credits per year to facilitate 

on-time completion. 
• Strategy II.3.4: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.3.5: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

 
Objective II.4: 

To increase the 6-Year Graduation Rate (150% of normal time to completion) by 14% from baseline 25.0% 
in Fall 2017 (2011 cohort) to 39.0% in Fall 2025 (2019 cohort) for 4-Year SU System institutions (SUBR 
and SUNO). 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: 6-Year Graduation Rate (150% of normal time to completion) 
 

• Strategy II.4.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.4.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.4.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.4.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 
  

Objective II.5: 

To increase the 8-Year Graduation Rate (200% of normal time to completion) by 10% from baseline 27% 
in Fall 2017 (2009 cohort) to 37.0% in Fall 2025 (2017 cohort) for 4-Year SU System institutions (SUBR 
and SUNO). 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: 8-Year Graduation Rate (200% of normal time to completion)  
 

• Strategy II.5.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.5.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.5.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 



27 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy II.5.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 
 

Objective II.6: 

To increase the 2-Year Graduation Rate (100% or normal time to completion) by 9.5% from baseline 4.0% 
in Fall 2017 (2015 cohort) to 13.5% in Fall 2025 (2023 cohort) for the 2-Year SU System institution 
(SUSLA). 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: 2-Year Graduation Rate (100% or normal time to completion)   
 

• Strategy II.6.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.6.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.6.3: Advise students to complete 15 credits per semester or 30 credits per year to facilitate 

on-time completion. 
• Strategy II.6.4: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.6.5: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 
 

Objective II.7: 

To increase the 3-Year Graduation Rate (150% of normal time to completion) by 11% from baseline 9% 
in Fall 2017 (2014 cohort) to 20% in Fall 2025 (2022 cohort) for the 2-Year SU System institution 
(SUSLA). 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: 3-Year Graduation Rate (150% of normal time to completion)   
 

• Strategy II.7.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.7.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.7.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.7.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

 
Objective II.8: 

To increase the 4-Year Graduation Rate (200% of normal time to completion) by 4% from baseline 16% 
in Fall 2017 (2013 cohort) to 20% in Fall 2025 (2021 cohort) for the 2-Year SU System institution 
(SUSLA). 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: 4-Year Graduation Rate (200% of normal time to completion)   
 

• Strategy II.8.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.8.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 



28 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy II.8.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 
in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.8.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 
 

Objective II.9: 

To increase the total number of Awards (Completers) by 73% from baseline 1,981 awards in Fall 2017 to 
3,430 awards in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Awards (Completers) 
 

• Strategy II.9.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.9.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.9.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.9.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

• Strategy II.9.5: Offer more courses and academic programs through evening and weekend programs. 
• Strategy II.9.6: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 

undergraduate education for the convenience of adult learners. 

Objective II.10: 

To increase the total number of Diplomas awarded by 700% from baseline 10 awards in Fall 2017 to 80 
awards in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total of number of Diplomas awarded 
 

• Strategy II.10.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.10.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.10.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.10.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

• Strategy II.10.5: Offer more courses and academic programs through evening and weekend programs. 
• Strategy II.10.6: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 

undergraduate education for the convenience of adult learners. 

Objective II.11: 

To increase the total number of Certificates awarded by 159% from baseline 85 awards in Fall 2017 to 
220 awards in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Certificates awarded 



29 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 
• Strategy II.11.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 

on-time completion. 
• Strategy II.11.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.11.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.11.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

• Strategy II.11.5: Offer more courses and academic programs through evening and weekend programs. 
• Strategy II.11.6: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 

undergraduate education for the convenience of adult learners. 

Objective II.12: 

To increase the total number of Associate degrees awarded by 43% from baseline 224 awards in Fall 
2017 to 320 awards in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total of number of Associate degrees awarded 
 

• Strategy II.12.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.12.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.12.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.12.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

• Strategy II.12.5: Offer more courses and academic programs through evening and weekend programs. 
• Strategy II.12.6: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 

undergraduate education for the convenience of adult learners. 

Objective II.13: 

To increase the total number of Baccalaureate degrees awarded by 94% from baseline 1,032 awards in 
Fall 2017 to 2,000 awards in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total of number of Baccalaureate degrees awarded 
 

• Strategy II.13.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.13.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.13.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.13.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

• Strategy II.13.5: Offer more courses and academic programs through evening and weekend programs. 



30 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy II.13.6: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 
undergraduate education for the convenience of adult learners. 

Objective II.14: 

To increase the total number of Master’s degrees awarded by 29% from baseline 464 awards in Fall 2017 
to 600 awards in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total of number of Master’s degrees awarded 
 

• Strategy II.14.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.14.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.14.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.14.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

• Strategy II.14.5: Offer more courses and academic programs through evening and weekend programs. 
• Strategy II.14.6: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 

undergraduate education for the convenience of adult learners. 

Objective II.15: 

To increase the total number of Doctoral degrees awarded by 114% from baseline 14 awards in Fall 2017 
to 30 awards in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total of number of Doctoral degrees awarded 
 

• Strategy II.15.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 
on-time completion. 

• Strategy II.15.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.15.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.15.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

• Strategy II.15.5: Offer more courses and academic programs through evening and weekend programs. 
• Strategy II.15.6: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 

undergraduate education for the convenience of adult learners.  
• Strategy II.15.7: Explore the possibility for SUBR to move up to the Carnegie Doctoral Level 

classification options.  
• Strategy II.15.8: Explore the possibility for SUBR to move up to the SREB 4 Year 2 classification. 

 

 

 

 

 



31 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Objective II.16: 

To increase the total number of Professional degrees (Juris Doctorate) awarded by 18% from baseline 
152 awards in Fall 2017 to 180 awards in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator(s): Total of number of Professional degrees (Juris Doctorate) 
awarded 

 
• Strategy II.16.1: Explore the use of course planning tools such Degree Works to assist students with 

on-time completion. 
• Strategy II.16.2: Align academic support programs with gateway courses such as mathematics. 
• Strategy II.16.3: Implement structured schedules to accommodate adult learners and working students 

in maintaining a healthy balance between work, life and school, thereby enabling more students to 
attend college full-time and shorten their time to completion. 

• Strategy II.16.4: Implement guided pathways with defined plans of study for each semester, thereby 
ensuring on time completion. 

• Strategy II.16.5: Offer more courses and academic programs through evening and weekend programs. 
• Strategy II.16.6: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 

undergraduate education for the convenience of adult learners. 

Objective II.17: 

To increase the National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX) Passage Rate for Baccalaureate 
Degree Programs by 8% from baseline 89% in Fall 2017 to 97% awards in Fall 2025 across the SU 
System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX) Passage 
Rate for Baccalaureate Degree Programs  

 
• Strategy II.17.1: Provide academic support services to include, advising, test-taking, critical thinking, 

and practice with computer testing. 
• Strategy II.17.2: Encourage the use of a predictor examination as tool for student preparation. 
• Strategy II.17.3: Encourage students to complete tutorial programs as needed.   

 
Objective II.18: 

To increase the National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX) Passage Rate for Associate Degree 
Programs by 16% from baseline 73% in Fall 2017 to 89% awards in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX) Passage 
Rate for Associate Degree Programs 

 
• Strategy II.18.1: Provide academic support services to include, advising, test-taking, critical thinking, 

and practice with computer testing. 
• Strategy II.18.2: Encourage the use of a predictor examination as tool for student preparation. 
• Strategy II.18.3: Encourage students to complete tutorial programs as needed.   

 
 

 

 



32 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Objective II.19: 

To maintain 100% passage rate on the PRAXIS Examination (American Teacher Certification 
Examination) across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: PRAXIS Examination Passage Rate  
 

• Strategy II.19.1: Provide academic support services to include, advising, test-taking, critical thinking, 
and practice with computer testing. 

• Strategy II.19.2: Encourage the use of a predictor examination as tool for student preparation. 
• Strategy II.19.3: Encourage students to complete tutorial programs as needed.   

 

Objective II.20: 

To increase the Louisiana Bar Association Passage Rate for First-Time July Test-Takers by 22% from 
baseline 58% in Fall 2017 to 80% in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Louisiana Bar Association Passage Rate for First-Time July 
Test-Takers 

 
• Strategy II.20.1: Provide academic support services to include, advising, test-taking, critical thinking, 

and practice with computer testing. 
• Strategy II.20.2: Encourage the use of a predictor examination as tool for student preparation.  
• Strategy II.20.3: Encourage students to complete tutorial programs as needed.   

 

Objective II.21: 

To increase the percentage of Law Graduates placed in Jobs at 10-Months after Graduation by 9% from 
baseline 73% in Fall 2017 to 82% in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Percent of Law Graduates placed in Jobs at 10-Months after 
Graduation 

 
• Strategy II.21.1: Expand relationships with potential employers in the legal profession.  
• Strategy II.21.2: Seek the assistance from successful alumnus to open doors of employment 

opportunities for new graduates. 
• Strategy II.21.3: Produce top performing graduates who are highly sought by potential employers in 

the legal profession.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



33 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Goal III 
Commitment to Institutional Effectiveness 

and Accountability 
 
As a System, we implement institutional effectiveness by promoting an evidence-based planning and 
assessment culture that is focused on continuous improvement and centered on each institution’s mission. 
Accountability is demonstrated on each campus through annual assessments designed to measure progress 
towards the achievement of goals, objectives, and expected outcomes. Our campuses routinely monitor and 
evaluate progress toward the accomplishment of strategic goals.  A strong emphasis continues to be placed on 
quality service across all campus operations. To this end, data and policies are consistently employed to ensure 
informed decision-making. Finally, operating efficiencies are realized through responsible management of 
human, financial, and physical resources. 
 
Objective III.1: 

To maintain 100% Compliance with the Accreditation Standards contained in the Principles of 
Accreditation by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools – Commission on Colleges (SACS-COC) 
for the degree granting institutions across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: 100% Compliance with SACS-COC Principles of Accreditation 
Standards   

 
• Strategy III.1.1: Hire an experienced SACS-Accreditation Liaison.  
• Strategy III.1.2: Ensure compliance with the SACS-COC 2018 Principles of Accreditation. 
• Strategy III.1.3: Develop an institutional effectiveness model designed to promote an evidence-based 

planning and assessment culture that is focused on continuous improvement and institutional mission. 
• Strategy III.1.4: Prepare for the SACS-COC off-site review by submitting a quality Compliance 

Certification report that addresses all fourteen sections and core requirements contained in the 2018 
Principles of Accreditation.  

• Strategy III.1.5: Prepare for the SACS-COC on-site review by submitting a quality focused report and 
Quality Enhancement Plan (QEP). 

• Strategy III.1.6: Ensure arrangements are in place when hosting the SACS-COC on-site review team.   
 

Objective III.2: 

To maintain 100% Compliance with individual Programmatic Accreditation Standards for educational 
programs that have an accrediting body across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: 100% Compliance with Programmatic Accreditation Standards 
for eligible educational programs 

 
• Strategy III.2.1: Ensure compliance with the accreditation standards for each program that has an 

accrediting body. 
• Strategy III.2.2: Ensure that each program has a clearly defined mission, goals, and objectives that are 

aligned to the institution’s mission, goals and objectives. 
• Strategy III.2.3: Assess student and program learning outcomes through a comprehensive planning 

and assessment process.  



34 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Objective III.3: 

To strengthen the Financial Health Index of the SU System by increasing Current Ratios by 131% from 
baseline 1.88 in Fall 2017 to 4.35 in Fall 2025. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Current Financial Ratios  
 

• Strategy III.3.1: Strive to increase the value of current assets.  
• Strategy III.3.2: Strive to decrease current liabilities.  
• Strategy III.3.3: Divide current assets by current liabilities to establish the current ratio as a measure 

of an institution’s fiscal health.   
 

Objective III.4: 

To strengthen the Financial Health Index of the SU System by increasing Working Capital by 197% from 
baseline $8,023,057 in Fall 2017 to $23,850,000 in Fall 2025. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Working Capital Dollar Value  
 

• Strategy III.4.1: Strive to increase the value of current assets.  
• Strategy III.4.2: Strive to decrease current liabilities.  
• Strategy III.4.3: Subtract current liabilities from current assets to establish the working capital as a 

measure of an institution’s fiscal health.   
 

Objective III.5: 

To strengthen the Financial Health Index of the SU System by increasing Quick Ratios (Acid Test Ratios) 
by 138% from baseline 1.88 in Fall 2017 to 4.35 in Fall 2025. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Quick Ratios / Acid Test Ratios 
 

• Strategy III.5.1: Strive to increase the value of total current assets.  
• Strategy III.5.2: Strive to reduce pre-paid expenses.   
• Strategy III.5.3: Subtract pre-paid expenses from total current assets (difference).  
• Strategy III.5.4: Divide the difference by current liabilities to establish quick ratio as a measure of an 

institution’s fiscal health.  
 

Objective III.6: 

To strengthen the Financial Health Index of the SU System by increasing Unrestricted Net Position by 
1,657% from baseline -$767,473 in Fall 2017 to $11,950,000 in Fall 2025. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Unrestricted Net Position Dollar Value  
 

• Strategy III.6.1: Strive to increase the value of total current assets.  
• Strategy III.6.2: Maintain positive unrestricted net assets after adjusting for pensions, compensated 

absences, and OPEB. 
 

 

 



35 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Objective III.7: 

To increase the total number of Internal Audits completed annually by 1000% from baseline 1 completed 
audit in Fall 2017 to 11 completed audits in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Audits completed annually  
 

• Strategy III.7.1: Provide the resources to support the internal audit function. 
• Strategy III.7.2: Work collaboratively with institutional units to complete the audit process. 
• Strategy III.7.3: Reduce repeat audit findings.   
• Strategy III.7.4: Use audit results for continuous improvement.  

 
Objective III.8: 

To increase the Percentage of Budgets reviewed annually by 10% from baseline 1% in Fall 2017 to 11% 
in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Percent of Budgets reviewed annually  
 

• Strategy III.8.1: Provide the resources to support the internal audit function. 
• Strategy III.8.2: Work collaboratively with institutional units to complete the audit process. 
• Strategy III.8.3: Reduce repeat audit findings.   
• Strategy III.8.4: Use audit results for continuous improvement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



36 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Goal IV 
Commitment to Scholarly Research, Discovery,  

and Entrepreneurship 
 
As a System, we support our campuses in their efforts to engage students, faculty, and staff in solving critical 
societal problems, expanding economic development opportunities, and enhancing quality of life in Louisiana, 
nation and the world. To this end, our campuses serve as incubators and champions for applied research and 
entrepreneurial endeavors that produce knowledge of intrinsic and practical value. With an emphasis on 
partnerships, community-based research and service projects, our campuses employ emerging technology to 
prepare students to contribute to the well-being of all communities.   
 
Objective IV.1: 

To increase the Dollar Value of Grant Proposals Submitted by 142% from baseline $30,984,682 in Fall 
2017 to $75,000,000 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Dollar value of Grant Proposals Submitted 
 

• Strategy IV.1.1: Develop and implement a comprehensive plan to build and expand research capacity 
throughout the Southern University System. 

• Strategy IV.1.2: Grow and diversify extramural research funding.  
• Strategy IV.1.3: Develop plans to generate revenue from royalties, expedite the awards of patents, 

execution of licenses and commercial agreements, and the creation of new start-up companies through 
business incubators. 

• Strategy IV.1.4: Develop and implement plans to encourage scholarship productivity such as the 
publication of books, peer-reviewed articles, etc.   

• Strategy IV.1.5: Incentivize faculty and staff research productivity by increasing the threshold in the 
extra-compensation policy from 20 percent to up to 25 percent. 

• Strategy IV.1.6: Reward academic programs for their research productivity by re-distributing a portion 
of the in-direct cost back to the academic programs of the Principal Investigators (PIs). 

• Strategy IV.1.7: Develop and implement a comprehensive workforce and economic development 
solutions plan aimed at responding to the workforce needs of business and industry at the local, 
regional, and/or state levels.  

• Strategy IV.1.8: Quantify the collective economic value and impact of the Southern University System 
and its individual campuses on the local, regional, and/or the state’s economy. 

• Strategy IV.1.9: Develop support services and infrastructure that fuel a vibrant research culture across 
the Southern University System. 

 

Objective IV.2: 

To increase the total number of Grant Proposals Submitted by 54% from baseline 91 in Fall 2017 to 140 
in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Grant Proposals Submitted 
  

• Strategy IV.2.1: Develop and implement a comprehensive plan to build and expand research capacity 
throughout the Southern University System. 



37 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy IV.2.2: Grow and diversify extramural research funding.  
• Strategy IV.2.3: Develop plans to generate revenue from royalties, expedite the awards of patents, 

execution of licenses and commercial agreements, and the creation of new start-up companies through 
business incubators. 

• Strategy IV.2.4: Develop and implement plans to encourage scholarship productivity such as the 
publication of books, peer-reviewed articles, etc.   

• Strategy IV.2.5: Incentivize faculty and staff research productivity by increasing the threshold in the 
extra-compensation policy from 20 percent to up to 25 percent. 

• Strategy IV.2.6: Reward academic programs for their research productivity by re-distributing a portion 
of the in-direct cost back to the academic programs of the Principal Investigators (PIs). 

• Strategy IV.2.7: Develop and implement a comprehensive workforce and economic development 
solutions plan aimed at responding to the workforce needs of business and industry at the local, 
regional, and/or state levels.  

• Strategy IV.2.8: Quantify the collective economic value and impact of the Southern University System 
and its individual campuses on the local, regional, and/or the state’s economy. 

• Strategy IV.2.9: Develop support services and infrastructure that fuel a vibrant research culture across 
the Southern University System. 
 

Objective IV.3: 

To increase the Dollar Value of Grant Proposal Awarded by 65% from baseline $21,150,957 in Fall 2017 
to $35,000,000 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Dollar value of Grant Proposals Awarded 
 

• Strategy IV.3.1: Develop and implement a comprehensive plan to build and expand research capacity 
throughout the Southern University System. 

• Strategy IV.3.2: Grow and diversify extramural research funding.  
• Strategy IV.3.3: Develop plans to generate revenue from royalties, expedite the awards of patents, 

execution of licenses and commercial agreements, and the creation of new start-up companies through 
business incubators. 

• Strategy IV.3.4: Develop and implement plans to encourage scholarship productivity such as the 
publication of books, peer-reviewed articles, etc.   

• Strategy IV.3.5: Incentivize faculty and staff research productivity by increasing the threshold in the 
extra-compensation policy from 20 percent to up to 25 percent. 

• Strategy IV.3.6: Reward academic programs for their research productivity by re-distributing a portion 
of the in-direct cost back to the academic programs of the Principal Investigators (PIs). 

• Strategy IV.3.7: Develop and implement a comprehensive workforce and economic development 
solutions plan aimed at responding to the workforce needs of business and industry at the local, 
regional, and/or state levels.  

• Strategy IV.3.8: Quantify the collective economic value and impact of the Southern University System 
and its individual campuses on the local, regional, and/or the state’s economy. 

• Strategy IV.3.9: Develop support services and infrastructure that fuel a vibrant research culture across 
the Southern University System. 
 

 

 

 



38 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Objective IV.4: 

To increase the total number of Grant Proposals Awarded by 25% from baseline 64 in Fall 2017 to 80 in 
Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Grant Proposals Awarded 
 

• Strategy IV.4.1: Develop and implement a comprehensive plan to build and expand research capacity 
throughout the Southern University System. 

• Strategy IV.4.2: Grow and diversify extramural research funding.  
• Strategy IV.4.3: Develop plans to generate revenue from royalties, expedite the awards of patents, 

execution of licenses and commercial agreements, and the creation of new start-up companies through 
business incubators. 

• Strategy IV.4.4: Develop and implement plans to encourage scholarship productivity such as the 
publication of books, peer-reviewed articles, etc.   

• Strategy IV.4.5: Incentivize faculty and staff research productivity by increasing the threshold in the 
extra-compensation policy from 20 percent to up to 25 percent. 

• Strategy IV.4.6: Reward academic programs for their research productivity by re-distributing a portion 
of the in-direct cost back to the academic programs of the Principal Investigators (PIs). 

• Strategy IV.4.7: Develop and implement a comprehensive workforce and economic development 
solutions plan aimed at responding to the workforce needs of business and industry at the local, 
regional, and/or state levels.  

• Strategy IV.4.8: Quantify the collective economic value and impact of the Southern University System 
and its individual campuses on the local, regional, and/or the state’s economy. 

• Strategy IV.4.9: Develop support services and infrastructure that fuel a vibrant research culture across 
the Southern University System. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



39 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Goal V 
Commitment to Fundraising and Philanthropic Support 

 
As a System, we support our campuses in their efforts to launch fund-raising campaigns designed to increase 
overall giving in support of student access, success, and completion; faculty and staff recruitment, retention, 
and professional development; capital improvements and deferred maintenance projects.  
 
Objective V.1: 

To increase the total number of Donors by 24% from baseline 1,327 in Fall 2017 to 1,645 in Fall 2025 
across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Donors 
 

• Strategy V.1.1: Develop and implement an Annual Giving Campaign. 
• Strategy V.1.2: Expand the list of donors to include: 

o Corporations 
o Foundations  
o Business and Industry 
o Alumni  
o Employees  
o Board members  
o Celebrities 
o Individuals 

• Strategy V.1.3: Mobilizing and incentivize donors.  
• Strategy V.1.4: Launch donor recognition programs. 

 

Objective V.2: 

To increase the total number of Gifts by 12% from baseline 1,986 in Fall 2017 to 2,220 in Fall 2025 across 
the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Gifts 
 

• Strategy V.2.1: Develop and implement an Annual Giving Campaign. 
• Strategy V.2.2: Expand the list of gifts to include: 

o Major Gifts 
o Endowments  
o Scholarships 
o Need-Based Gifts 
o Special Gifts 
o One-Time Gifts 

 
 

 

 



40 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Objective V.3: 

To increase the Dollar Value of Gifts by 75% from baseline $2,466,058 in Fall 2017 to $4,310,000 in Fall 
2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Dollar value of Gifts 
 

• Strategy V.3.1: Execute strategic investments. 
• Strategy V.3.2: Facilitate grassroots fundraising. 
• Strategy V.3.3: Execute sophisticated advertisements. 
• Strategy V.3.4: Make the “ask” explicit. 
• Strategy V.3.5: Identify matching gift opportunities. 
• Strategy V.3.6: Streamline operations to maximize efficiencies.  
• Strategy V.3.7: Attract appropriate advertisers and convince them that Southern University websites 

are the spaces where they should purchase advertising space to sell their products. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



41 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Goal VI 
Commitment to Improve Campus Life through  

Infrastructural Development 
 
As a System, we support our campuses in their efforts to provide an aesthetically pleasing, safe, secure, and 
comfortable campus environment that promotes student access (enrollment) and measures of student success 
(retention and graduation rates). Campuses are developing comprehensive campus master plans which are used 
to guide improvements to campus infrastructure designed to meet the living, learning and working needs of 
students, faculty, and staff. Satisfaction surveys will be developed and deployed system-wide in 2019, 
which will allow for the development, implementation, and tracking of SMART objective(s) for this goal. 
 
Strategy VI.1.1: Each campus shall develop a Campus Master Plan.  

o An inclusive Campus Master Plan includes assessments of building locations, student housing, academic 
buildings including classrooms, research buildings including laboratories, vehicular and pedestrian 
routing assessment, parking lot needs, recreational improvements, athletic facilities, and campus utilities 
designed to ultimately enhance campus safety and security and improve student access, success, and 
completion.  

o Implement Beautification, Image-Building, Gateway-Projects, and Deferred Maintenance for the 
following campus spaces: 

▪ Campus Housing and Related Living and Learning Communities 
▪ Campus Academic Classrooms and Related-Study Spaces 
▪ Campus Research Laboratories and Related-Spaces  
▪ Campus Library and Learning Resources 
▪ Campus Athletic Facilities 
▪ Campus Recreation, Events Facilities, and Student Union 
▪ Campus Roads, Sidewalks, and Parking Spaces 
▪ Campus Bridges and Connecting Walkways  
▪ Campus Utility Distribution Systems, including: 

• Campus Drinking Water Plumbing System; Sanitary Sewer System, including 
collection lines, manholes and lift-stations; Storm Water System 

• Electrical System & HVAC Demands and Chill Water Distribution System 
• Data/Information Technology/Telecommunications System Expansion 

o Address routine Deferred Maintenance projects: 
▪ HVAC, Electrical, Plumbing, Roofing, Windows and Weatherization, Flooring 
▪ Sheetrock/Drywall Repairs, Painting  

Strategy VI.1.2: Ensure that the Student Life experience on Southern University Campuses is student-centered 
and focused on the development the “whole person” through a transformative learning process. 
Strategy VI.1.3: Student Life units will seek and promote greater collaboration with academics in enhancing 
student learning, thereby facilitating student retention and academic progress by removing barriers for student 
success and completion. 
Strategy VI.1.4: Student Life will deliver programs and services to facilitate a culture of health, safety, and 
wellbeing amongst students. 
Strategy VI.1.5: Student Life will empower students to have a voice/platform regarding larger social issues, 
thereby ensuring that service and civic engagement are central to programs and activities. 
Strategy VI.1.6: Encourage residential programs to create living-learning communities. 



42 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Goal VII 
Commitment to Promote the Southern University Brand 

through Outreach and Global Engagement 
 
As a System, we support our campuses in their efforts to promote the Southern University Brand using Social 
Media, Institutional Website, Print Media, Public Service Announcements (PSAs), Radio Ads, TV Ads, Web 
Ads, and Billboard Ads. Additionally, the System helps to coordinate Signature Engagement Events such as 
Town-Gown Meetings, Advocacy Tours, Alumni Chapter Meetings, and Governmental Relations. 
 
Objective VII.1: 

To increase International Student Enrollment by 24% from baseline 339 in Fall 2017 to 420 in Fall 2025 
across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of International Students enrolled 
 

• Strategy VII.1.1: Establish a dynamic and efficient digital marketing plan for recruiting students. Such 
efforts should include the use of digital advertising, an interactive website, email marketing, social 
media, blogging, and promotional videos. 

• Strategy VII.1.2: Expand high-wage, high-demand (4 & 5 Stars) undergraduate academic program 
offerings to increase enrollment.  

• Strategy VII.1.3: Expand graduate education opportunities to include new in-demand masters and 
doctoral programs to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy VII.1.4: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 
undergraduate education to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy VII.1.5: Develop and implement a plan for increasing need- and merit-based funding through 
private funding sources to increase access and ensure a Southern University education remains 
affordable to students. 

• Strategy VII.1.6: Offer more graduate assistantship opportunities to international graduate students. 
 

Objective VII.2: 

To increase Out-of-State Student Enrollment by 26% from baseline 1,242 in Fall 2017 to 1,562 in Fall 
2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Out-of-State Students enrolled 
 

• Strategy VII.2.1: Establish a dynamic and efficient digital marketing plan for recruiting students. Such 
efforts should include the use of digital advertising, an interactive website, email marketing, social 
media, blogging, and promotional videos. 

• Strategy VII.2.2: Expand high-wage, high-demand (4 & 5 Stars) undergraduate academic program 
offerings to increase enrollment.  

• Strategy VII.2.3: Expand graduate educational opportunities to include new in-demand masters and 
doctoral programs to increase enrollment. 

• Strategy VII.2.4: Promote online/distance education as a viable option to deliver graduate and 
undergraduate education to increase enrollment. 



43 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy VII.2.5: Develop and implement a plan for increasing need- and merit-based funding through 
private funding sources to increase student access and ensure a Southern University education remains 
affordable to students. 

• Strategy VII.2.6: Offer more graduate assistantship opportunities to out-of-state students. 
• Strategy VII.2.7: Enlist the support and assistance of the Southern University National Alumni 

Federation and Alumni Chapters to help recruit and retain out-of-state students to Southern University 
campuses. 
 

Objective VII.3: 

To increase the total number of Paid Alumni Memberships (Annual and Life Memberships) by 13% from 
baseline 4,375 in Fall 2017 to 4,950 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Paid Alumni Memberships – Annual and Life 
 

• Strategy VII.3.1: Incentivize alumni to stay current with their annual membership dues. 
• Strategy VII.3.2: Increase the conversion of paid annual members to life members. 

 
Objective VII.4: 

To increase the total number of Fans/Followers (Social Media Audience Growth) by 274% from baseline 
80,122 in Fall 2017 to 300,000 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Social Media Fans/Followers  
 

• Strategy VII.4.1: Reinforce the Southern University BRAND.  
• Strategy VII.4.2: Integrate social media into overall marketing and communications strategies.  
• Strategy VII.4.3: Increase social media mentions to ensure that the Southern University BRAND has 

been shared and talked about online on social media. For example, review how many times our 
Facebook post has been shared; how many re-tweets we received for a recent tweet promotion. 

• Strategy VII.4.4: Use social media to share top web content created by university units. 
• Strategy VII.4.5: Share institutional accomplishments, awards and rankings via social media.  
• Strategy VII.4.6: Monitor and respond to all comments, mentions and shares, when appropriate.  
• Strategy VII.4.7: Increase likes, fans, followers and subscribers.  
• Strategy VII.4.8: Use monitoring tools to measure engagement and reach.  
• Strategy VII.4.9: Link all social media profiles to the websites.   
• Strategy VII.4.10: Add social media icons to all outgoing emails.  
• Strategy VII.4.11: Optimize social media accounts using critical keywords that are best aligned to the 

trigger key words prospective students would utilize during college searches.   
• Strategy VII.4.12: Apply the same keywords in posts. 
• Strategy VII.4.13: Use hashtags often to bring more prospective students to our blogs and websites.  
• Strategy VII.4.14: Share all social media accounts with everyone. This will inform our internal and 

external constituencies that we have an active presence on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Pinterest, and 
Google Plus etc. and they, in turn, can share our social media accounts with everyone they know. This 
is a simple way to get the “word” out.  

• Strategy VII.4.15: Always publicize up-to-date informative content. 
• Strategy VII.4.16: Develop effective research tools for engaging and motivating target audiences and 

to define key social media messages sent. 
• Strategy VII.4.17: Consistently post at a comfortable rate. 



44 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

Objective VII.5: 

To increase the total number of Messages Sent (Social Media Message Volume) by 2,497% from baseline 
1,925 in Fall 2017 to 50,000 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Social Media Messages Sent 
 

• Strategy VII.5.1: Reinforce the Southern University BRAND.  
• Strategy VII.5.2: Create and execute an integrated social media approach.  
• Strategy VII.5.3: Link all social media profiles to the websites.   
• Strategy VII.5.4: Add social media icons to all outgoing emails.  
• Strategy VII.5.5: Optimize social media accounts using critical keywords that are best aligned to the 

trigger key words prospective students would utilize during college searches.   
• Strategy VII.5.6: Apply the same keywords in posts. 
• Strategy VII.5.7: Use hashtags often to bring more prospective students to our blogs and websites.  
• Strategy VII.5.8: Share all social media accounts with everyone. This will inform our internal and 

external constituencies that we have an active presence on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Pinterest, and 
Google Plus etc. and they, in turn, can share our social media accounts with everyone they know. This 
is a simple way to get the “word” out.  

• Strategy VII.5.9: Always publicize up-to-date informative content. 
• Strategy VII.5.10: Develop effective research tools for engaging and motivating target audiences and 

to define key social media messages sent. 
• Strategy VII.5.11: Consistently post at a comfortable rate. 
• Strategy VII.5.12: Share institutional accomplishments, awards and rankings via social media.  

 

Objective VII.6: 

To increase the total number of Messages Received (Social Media Message Volume) by 1,062% from 
baseline 8,609 in Fall 2017 to 100,000 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Social Media Messages Received 
 

• Strategy VII.6.1: Reinforce the Southern University BRAND.  
• Strategy VII.6.2: Create and execute an integrated social media approach.  
• Strategy VII.6.3: Develop effective research tools for engaging and motivating target audiences and 

to define key social media messages received. 
• Strategy VII.6.4: Link all social media profiles to the websites.   
• Strategy VII.6.5: Use hashtags often to bring more prospective students to our blogs and websites.  
• Strategy VII.6.6: Share all social media accounts with everyone. This will inform our internal and 

external constituencies that we have an active presence on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Pinterest, and 
Google Plus etc. and they, in turn, can share our social media accounts with everyone they know. This 
is a simple way to get the “word” out.  

• Strategy VII.6.7: Always publicize up-to-date informative content. 
• Strategy VII.6.8: Develop effective research tools for engaging and motivating target audiences and 

to define key social media messages sent. 
• Strategy VII.6.9: Consistently post at a comfortable rate. 

 
 



45 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 
Objective VII.7: 

To increase the total number of Impressions (Social Media Impressions) by 435% from baseline 
18,700,000 in Fall 2017 to 100,000,000 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Social Media Impressions 
 

• Strategy VII.7.1: Focus on impressions since they are the metric used most widely in public relations 
to disseminate organizational content that is timely, relevant, and engaging. The media then picks the 
content and drives impressions for the Brand. 

• Strategy VII.7.2: Continue to drive impressions to bring awareness to the Southern University Brand. 
Brand awareness is often a leading objective of social media in order to drive new consumers. Increased 
impressions will lead to increased engagement and community size. 

• Strategy VII.7.3: Link all social media profiles to the websites.   
• Strategy VII.7.4: Use hashtags often to bring more prospective students to our blogs and websites.  
• Strategy VII.7.5: Share all social media accounts with everyone. This will inform our internal and 

external constituencies that we have an active presence on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Pinterest, and 
Google Plus etc. and they, in turn, can share our social media accounts with everyone they know. This 
is a simple way to get the “word” out.  

• Strategy VII.7.6: Always publicize up-to-date content. 
 

Objective VII.8: 

To increase the total number of Engagements (Social Media Engagements) by 1,721% from baseline 
109,800 in Fall 2017 to 2,000,000 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Social Media Engagements 
 

• Strategy VII.8.1: Utilize research-based decision-making processes to make media and message 
decisions for promoting Southern University’s Brand, institutional reputation, community engagement 
and engaging key stakeholders. 

• Strategy VII.8.2: Create and execute an integrated social media approach.  
• Strategy VII.8.3: Develop effective research tools for engaging and motivating target audiences and 

to define key social media messages received. 
• Strategy VII.8.4: Link all social media profiles to the websites.   
• Strategy VII.8.5: Use hashtags often to bring more prospective students to our blogs and websites.  
• Strategy VII.8.6: Share all social media accounts with everyone. This will inform our internal and 

external constituencies that we have an active presence on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Pinterest, and 
Google Plus etc. and they, in turn, can share our social media accounts with everyone they know. This 
is a simple way to get the “word” out.  

• Strategy VII.8.7: Always publicize up-to-date informative content. 
• Strategy VII.8.8: Consistently post at a comfortable rate. 

 

 

 

 

 



46 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Objective VII.9: 

To increase the total number of Link Clicks (Social Media Link Clicks) by 2,386% from baseline 20,114 
in Fall 2017 to 500,000 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Link Clicks 
 

• Strategy VII.9.1: Link all social media profiles to the websites.  
• Strategy VII.9.2: Use hashtags often to bring more prospective students to our blogs and websites.  
• Strategy VII.9.3: Share all social media accounts with everyone. This will inform our internal and 

external constituencies that we have an active presence on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Pinterest, and 
Google Plus etc. and they, in turn, can share our social media accounts with everyone they know. This 
is a simple way to get the “word” out.  

• Strategy VII.9.4: Always publicize up-to-date informative content. 
• Strategy VII.9.5: Consistently post at a comfortable rate. 

 
Objective VII.10: 

To increase the average Session Duration (Website Traffic) by 43% from baseline 2.56 minutes in Fall 
2017 to 3.66 minutes in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Average Website Session Duration (minutes) 
 

• Strategy VII.10.1: First impressions also count on the Internet. Make sure that websites are user 
friendly and interactive.  

• Strategy VII.10.2: Make sure that website content is current, informative, and up-to-date.  
• Strategy VII.10.3: Link all social media profiles to the websites.  
• Strategy VII.10.4: Generate web traffic by adding targeted keywords to the website’s articles, product 

titles, product descriptions and text links. 
• Strategy VII.10.5: Make institutional websites “sticky,” make visitors stick around, by having great 

product offerings and enhancing content. Use more appealing photographs, add polls or questionnaires, 
add a blog with a base of useful articles on subjects relevant to SU stakeholders that will maximize 
clicks and build loyal site visitors at the same time. 

• Strategy VII.10.6: Perform “search engine optimization” by ensuring that institutional web content is 
properly optimized for search engines to land in the top page position of major search engines, thereby 
exposing our information to millions of internet users. 

• Strategy VII.10.7:  Use web analytics tools to track site visitors’ habits as they work their way through 
our web content. Monitoring these patterns will provide a clear picture of what’s working on our 
websites and what isn’t. 
 

Objective VII.11: 

To increase the average number of Sessions per User (Website Traffic) by 3% from baseline 3.05 in Fall 
2017 to 3.13 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Average number of Website Sessions per User 
 

• Strategy VII.11.1: Make institutional websites “sticky,” make visitors stick around, by having great 
product offerings and enhancing content. Use more appealing photographs, add polls or questionnaires, 



47 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

add a blog with a base of useful articles on subjects relevant to SU stakeholders that will maximize 
clicks and build loyal site visitors at the same time. 

• Strategy VII.11.2: Perform “search engine optimization” by ensuring that institutional web content is 
properly optimized for search engines to land in the top page position of major search engines, thereby 
exposing our information to millions of internet users. 

• Strategy VII.11.3:  Use web analytics tools to track site visitors’ habits as they work their way through 
our web content. Monitoring these patterns gives us a clear picture of what’s working on our websites 
and what isn’t. 

• Strategy VII.11.4: Link all social media profiles to the websites.  
• Strategy VII.11.5: Generate web traffic by adding targeted keywords to the website’s articles, product 

titles, product descriptions and text links. 
• Strategy VII.11.6: First impressions also count on the Internet. Make sure that websites are user 

friendly and interactive.  
• Strategy VII.11.7: Make sure that website content is current, informative, and up-to-date.  

 

Objective VII.12: 

To increase the average number of Pages Viewed per Session (Website Traffic) by 7% from baseline 2.82 
in Fall 2017 to 3.01 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Average number of Website Pages Viewed per Session 
 

• Strategy VII.12.1: Perform “search engine optimization” (SEO) by ensuring that institutional web 
content is properly optimized for search engines to land in the top page position of major search 
engines, thereby exposing our information to millions of internet users. 

• Strategy VII.12.2:  Use web analytics tools to track site visitors’ habits as they work their way through 
our web content. Monitoring these patterns gives us a clear picture of what’s working on our websites 
and what isn’t. 

• Strategy VII.12.3: Link all social media profiles to the websites.  
• Strategy VII.12.4: Generate web traffic by adding targeted keywords to the website’s articles, product 

titles, product descriptions and text links. 
• Strategy VII.12.5: First impressions also count on the Internet. Make sure that websites are user 

friendly and interactive.  
• Strategy VII.12.6: Make sure that website content is current, informative, and up-to-date.  
• Strategy VII.12.7: Make institutional websites “sticky,” make visitors stick around, by having great 

product offerings and enhancing content. Use more appealing photographs, add polls or questionnaires, 
add a blog with a base of useful articles on subjects relevant to SU stakeholders that will maximize 
clicks and build loyal site visitors at the same time. 
 

Objective VII.13: 

To decrease the average Bounce Rate (Website Traffic) by 2.4% from baseline 49.65% in Fall 2017 to 
47.25% in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Average Website Bounce Rate 
 

• Strategy VII.13.1: Link all social media profiles to the websites.  
• Strategy VII.13.2: Generate web traffic by adding targeted keywords to the website’s articles, product 

titles, product descriptions and text links. 



48 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

• Strategy VII.13.3: First impressions also count on the Internet. Make sure that websites are user 
friendly and interactive.  

• Strategy VII.13.4: Make sure that website content is current, informative, and up-to-date.  
• Strategy VII.13.5: Make institutional websites “sticky,” make visitors stick around, by having great 

product offerings and enhancing content. Use more appealing photographs, add polls or questionnaires, 
add a blog with a base of useful articles on subjects relevant to SU stakeholders that will maximize 
clicks and build loyal site visitors at the same time. 

• Strategy VII.13.6: Perform “search engine optimization” by ensuring that institutional web content is 
properly optimized for search engines to land in the top page position of major search engines, thereby 
exposing our information to millions of internet users. 

• Strategy VII.13.7:  Use web analytics tools to track site visitors’ habits as they work their way through 
our web content. Monitoring these patterns will provide a clear picture of what’s working on our 
websites and what isn’t. 
 

Objective VII.14: 

To increase the total number of Press Releases by 100% from baseline 24 in Fall 2017 to 48 in Fall 2025 
across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Press Releases 
 

• Strategy VII.14.1: Generate and distribute press releases in a cost-effective manner. 
• Strategy VII.14.2: Press releases can boost Brand awareness and boost visibility to the campuses 

within the Southern University System. 
• Strategy VII.14.3: Well written press releases can spread far and wide. 
• Strategy VII.14.4: Investors keep up with the news too. Web advertising could serve a new revenue 

source. 
 
Objective VII.15: 

To increase the total number of Television Ads by 267% from baseline 3 in Fall 2017 to 11 in Fall 2025 
across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Television Ads 
 

• Strategy VII.15.1: Use TV advertising as a compliment (Public Service Announcements) to 
advertising on other media, such as websites and social media. 

• Strategy VII.15.2: Be strategic (time, day, month) in the use of TV ads to optimize impact and reduce 
cost. 

• Strategy VII.15.3: TV advertising allows for mass advertising opportunities. Television commercials 
are seen and heard by anyone tuned into the television channel at the time of airing. While many call 
this a shotgun approach, there is a strong branding message that happens when you have a good 
commercial seen by tens of thousands of people. 

• Strategy VII.15.4: Use TV advertising as a compliment to advertising on other media. 
• Strategy VII.15.5: Cross-Promote on Digital Platforms, where the production value of a professional 

commercial is generally much higher than the commercial videos put together for digital media.  
 

 

 



49 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

Objective VII.16: 

To increase the total number of Radio Ads by 1,500% from baseline 1 in Fall 2017 to 16 in Fall 2025 
across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Radio Ads 
 

• Strategy VII.16.1: Radio sells with immediacy. Research proves that radio regularly reaches 
consumers within two hours of their largest purchase of the day.  

• Strategy VII.16.2: Radio sells everywhere. Radio is the only true mobile medium. In the car, at work, 
and at play, radio is there - the advertising force your customers take with them wherever they go.  

• Strategy VII.16.3: Radio sells with intimacy. It can personalize the Southern University Brand.  
• Strategy VII.16.4: Radio escapes advertising’s clutter. Today’s radio, at about 10 minutes of 

advertising per hour, devotes less than 20 percent of its time to ads. Radio is the uncluttered medium. 
• Strategy VII.16.5: Radio is the cost effective medium. Radio advertising costs grew less than any 

other major form of advertising. 
• Strategy VII.16.6: Radio is an active medium in an active society. Passive forms of advertising simply 

list merchandise or tell you where a product is available. Today’s hotly competitive marketplace 
demands an active medium.  

 

Objective VII.17: 

To increase the total number of Billboard Ads (Static and Digital) by 80% from baseline 10 in Fall 2017 
to 18 in Fall 2025 across the SU System. 
 

o Key Performance Indicator: Total number of Bill Board Ads – Static and Digital 
 

• Strategy VII.17.1: Billboards ads will allow the Southern University Brand to reach a Mobile 
Audience - placing an ad on a billboard that includes a company name and a memorable image of a 
product or service stays visible 24 hours a day, every day of the week. 

• Strategy VII.17.2: Be strategic with billboard content - because consumers usually get just a fleeting 
glimpse of a billboard, therefore the advertisement must be simple and bold. A picture showing the 
biggest benefit of a product or service along with up to seven words is most effective in billboard 
advertising. 
 

 



50 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

 

SCORE CARD 
 
 

 

 

 



51 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
STRATEGIC PLAN - 2025 

 

2018 SCORE CARD 
 

Goal #___________ Objective # __________________ 
 

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR / 

OUTCOMES METRIC 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA SULC SUAREC SU SYSTEM 

 Target Actual Diff % Target Actual Diff % Target Actual Diff % Target Actual Diff % Target Actual Diff % Target Actual Diff % 

                         
                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         

 



52 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

 

Goal I 
Commitment to Student Access  

and Affordability 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA SULC

SU 

System

SU System 

Annual 

Headcount 

Enrollment 

Growth #

SU System 

Annual 

Growth %

SU System Fall 

2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

SU System % 

Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 6,459 2,546 3,013 577 12,595

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 6,732 2,341 2,619 619 12,311 -284 -2%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 7,360 2,594 2,793 599 13,345 1,034 8%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 7,967 2,825 3,042 652 14,485 1,140 9%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 8,745 3,101 3,339 716 15,900 1,415 10%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 9,625 3,413 3,675 788 17,500 1,600 10%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 10,780 3,822 4,116 882 19,600 2,100 12%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 12,183 4,319 4,652 997 22,150 2,550 13%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 13,750 4,875 5,250 1,125 25,000 2,850 13% 12,405 98%

SU SYSTEM HEADCOUNT ENROLLMENT PROJECTION                                                                               

FALL 2017 - FALL 2025

% SUBR 

Campus 

Enrollment as 

Percentage of 

SU System 

Enrollment

% SUNO 

Campus 

Enrollment as 

Percentage of 

SU System 

Enrollment

% SUSLA 

Campus 

Enrollment as 

Percentage of 

SU System 

Enrollment

% SULC 

Campus 

Enrollment as 

Percentage of 

SU System 

Enrollment

SU System                

% TOTAL
Baseline Fall 2017 51.3% 20.2% 23.9% 4.6% 100%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 54.7% 19.0% 21.3% 5.0% 100%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 55.0% 19.5% 21.0% 4.5% 100%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 55.0% 19.5% 21.0% 4.5% 100%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 55.0% 19.5% 21.0% 4.5% 100%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 55.0% 19.5% 21.0% 4.5% 100%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 55.0% 19.5% 21.0% 4.5% 100%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 55.0% 19.5% 21.0% 4.5% 100%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 55.0% 19.5% 21.0% 4.5% 100%

SU SYSTEM HEADCOUNT ENROLLMENT PROJECTION                                                              

FALL 2017 - FALL 2025



54 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SU System 

Headecount 

Enrollment

SUBR 

Undergraduate 

Enrollment

SUNO 

Undergraduate 

Enrollment

SUSLA 

Undergraduate 

Enrollment

Total System 

Undergraduate 

Enrollment

% UnderGrad 

Enrollment of 

Total Headcount 

Enrollment

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 12,595 5,654 2,112 3,013 10,779 86%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 12,311 6,033 1,917 2,619 10,569 86%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 13,300 6,477 2,204 2,793 11,474 86%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 14,485 7,011 2,401 3,042 12,453 86%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 15,900 7,696 2,635 3,339 13,670 86%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 17,500 8,470 2,901 3,675 15,046 86%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 19,600 9,486 3,249 4,116 16,851 86%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 22,150 10,721 3,671 4,652 19,043 86%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 25,000 12,100 4,144 5,250 21,494 86% 10,715 99%

SU SYSTEM UNDERGRADUATE ENROLLMENT PROJECTION



55 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SU System 

Headecount 

Enrollment

SUBR Graduate-

Enrollment

SUNO 

Graduate-

Enrollment

SUSLA Graduate-

Enrollment

Total System 

Graduate-

Enrollment

% Graduate 

Enrollment of 

Total Headcount 

Enrollment

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 12,595 805 434 0 1,239 10%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 12,311 698 424 0 1,122 9%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 13,300 883 389 0 1,272 10%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 14,485 956 424 0 1,380 10%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 15,900 1,049 465 0 1,514 10%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 17,500 1,155 512 0 1,667 10%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 19,600 1,294 573 0 1,867 10%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 22,150 1,462 648 0 2,110 10%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 25,000 1,650 731 0 2,381 10% 1,142 92%

SU SYSTEM GRADUATE ENROLLMENT PROJECTION



56 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SU System 

Headecount 

Enrollment

SUBR Online 

Enrollment

SUNO Online 

Enrollment

SUSLA Online 

Enrollment

TOTAL System 

Online 

Enrollment

% Online 

Enrollment of 

Total Headcount 

Enrollment

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 12,595 148 20 20 188 1%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 12,311 141 30 13 184 1%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 13,300 368 130 140 637 5%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 14,485 797 212 228 1,237 9%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 15,900 1,312 310 334 1,956 12%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 17,500 1,925 410 441 2,776 16%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 19,600 2,695 497 535 3,727 19%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 22,150 3,655 605 651 4,911 22%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 25,000 4,813 731 788 6,331 25% 6,143 3268%

SU SYSTEM ONLINE ENROLLMENT PROJECTION



57 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SU System 

Headecount 

Enrollment

SUBR Dual 

Enrollment

SUNO Dual 

Enrollment

SUSLA Dual 

Enrollment

TOTAL System 

Dual 

Enrollment

% Dual 

Enrollment of 

Total Headcount 

Enrollment

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 12,595 166 200 898 1264 10%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 12,311 188 189 558 935 8%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 13,300 258 233 614 1105 8%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 14,485 319 282 700 1301 9%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 15,900 394 310 801 1505 9%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 17,500 481 341 919 1741 10%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 19,600 593 382 1070 2045 10%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 22,150 731 432 1256 2419 11%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 25,000 894 488 1470 2851 11% 1587 126%

SU SYSTEM DUAL ENROLLMENT PROJECTION



58 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SU System 

Headecount 

Enrollment

SUBR New First-

Time Freshman 

Enrollment

SUNO New 

First-Time 

Freshman 

Enrollment

SUSLA New First-

Time Freshman 

Enrollment

Total System 

New First-Time 

Freshman 

Enrollment

% New First-Time 

Freshman 

Enrollment of 

Total Headcount 

Enrollment

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 12,595 1,239 211 625 2,075 16%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 12,311 1,328 207 648 2,183 18%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 13,300 1,472 259 698 2,430 18%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 14,485 1,673 311 760 2,744 19%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 15,900 1,836 372 835 3,043 19%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 17,500 2,118 444 919 3,480 20%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 19,600 2,479 535 1,029 4,043 21%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 22,150 2,924 648 1,163 4,735 21%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 25,000 3,438 731 1,313 5,481 22% 3,406 164%

SU SYSTEM NEW FIRST-TIME FRESHMAN ENROLLMENT PROJECTION



59 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SU System 

Headecount 

Enrollment

SUBR Transfer-

In Enrollment

SUNO Transfer-

In Enrollment

SUSLA Transfer-

In Enrollment

Total System 

Transfer-In 

Enrollment

% Transfer-In 

Enrollment of 

Total Headcount 

Enrollment

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 12,595 336 284 176 796 6%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 12,311 296 256 198 750 6%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 13,300 368 285 223 877 7%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 14,485 478 311 243 1,032 7%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 15,900 612 341 267 1,220 8%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 17,500 818 375 294 1,488 9%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 19,600 1,024 420 329 1,774 9%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 22,150 1,340 475 372 2,187 10%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 25,000 1,650 536 420 2,606 10% 1,810 227%

SU SYSTEM TRANSFER-IN ENROLLMENT PROJECTION



60 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SU System 

Headcount 

Enrollment

SUBR                    

Re-Admits 

Enrollment

SUNO                  

Re-Admits 

Enrollment

SUSLA                         

Re-Admits 

Enrollment

Total System                

Re-Admits 

Enrollment

% Re-Admits 

Enrollment of 

Total Headcount 

Enrollment

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 12,595 219 201 257 677 5%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 12,311 175 211 323 709 6%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 13,300 258 259 335 852 6%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 14,485 319 282 365 966 7%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 15,900 394 310 401 1,104 7%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 17,500 481 341 441 1,264 7%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 19,600 593 382 494 1,469 7%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 22,150 731 432 558 1,721 8%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 25,000 894 488 630 2,011 8% 1,334 197%

SU SYSTEM RE-ADMITS ENROLLMENT PROJECTION



61 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SU System 

Headecount 

Enrollment

SUBR Cross-

Enrollment

SUNO Cross-

Enrollment

SUSLA Cross-

Enrollment

Total System 

Cross-

Enrollment

% Cross 

Enrollment of 

Total Headcount 

Enrollment

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 12,595 270 8 392 670 5%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 12,311 261 4 343 608 5%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 13,300 368 26 363 757 6%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 14,485 478 56 395 930 6%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 15,900 656 124 434 1,214 8%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 17,500 866 205 478 1,549 9%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 19,600 1,078 306 535 1,919 10%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 22,150 1,340 432 605 2,377 11%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 25,000 1,650 488 683 2,820 11% 2,150 321%

SU SYSTEM CROSS-ENROLLMENT PROJECTION



62 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA

SU 

SYSTEM

Fall 2025 

minus Baseline 

Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 69% 60% 56% 62%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 70% 61% 57% 63%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 71% 62% 58% 64%
Yr. 3 Fall 2020 72% 63% 59% 65%
Yr. 4 Fall 2021 73% 64% 60% 66%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 74% 65% 61% 67%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 75% 66% 62% 68%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 76% 67% 63% 69%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 77% 68% 64% 70% 8%

SU SYSTEM - PERCENT FIRST-GENERATION                                                                                

(PELL ELIGIBLE) STUDENTS PROJECTION



63 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA

SU 

SYSTEM

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 14% 47% 30% 30%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 15% 48% 31% 31%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 16% 49% 32% 32%
Yr. 3 Fall 2020 17% 50% 33% 33%
Yr. 4 Fall 2021 19% 52% 34% 35%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 21% 54% 35% 37%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 22% 56% 36% 38%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 23% 58% 37% 39%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 25% 60% 40% 42% 12%

SU SYSTEM - PERCENT ADULT LEARNERS                               

25 YEARS PLUS ELIGIBLE STUDENTS PROJECTION



64 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA

SU 

SYSTEM

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over Baseline 

Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 $6,215 $5,056 $4,765 $5,345

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 $6,250 $5,056 $4,800 $5,369

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 $6,500 $5,100 $4,900 $5,500
Yr. 3 Fall 2020 $6,750 $5,200 $5,000 $5,650
Yr. 4 Fall 2021 $7,000 $5,300 $5,100 $5,800

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 $7,250 $5,400 $5,200 $5,950

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 $7,500 $5,500 $5,300 $6,100

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 $7,750 $5,600 $5,400 $6,250

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 $8,000 $5,700 $5,500 $6,400 $1,055 20%

SU SYSTEM - AVERAGE AID AWARD PROJECTION 

COMPOSITE OF PELL PLUS SCHOLARSHIPS



65 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

  

APPENDIX C 
 
 
 

Goal II 
Commitment to Academic 

Excellence and Student Success 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



66 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA

SU 

SYSTEM

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Decrease Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 24 20 20 21

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 24 20 20 21

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 23 19 19 20
Yr. 3 Fall 2020 23 19 19 20
Yr. 4 Fall 2021 22 19 19 20

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 22 18 18 19

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 21 18 18 19

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 21 18 18 19

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 20 17 17 18 -3 -16%

SU SYSTEM STUDENT-FACULTY-RATIO PROJECTION



67 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA

SU 

SYSTEM

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 64% 52% 37% 51%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 65% 53% 38% 52%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 66% 55% 39% 53%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 67% 57% 40% 55%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 68% 59% 42% 56%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 69% 61% 44% 58%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 70% 63% 46% 60%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 71% 65% 48% 61%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 72% 67% 50% 63% 12%

SU SYSTEM 1ST-TO-2ND YEAR FALL-TO-FALL RETENTION PROJECTION                                                                        

SAME INSTITUTION



68 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SU SYSTEM

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 8.0% 5.0% 6.5%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 9.0% 6.0% 7.5%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 10.0% 7.0% 8.5%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 12.0% 9.0% 10.5%
Yr. 4 Fall 2021 14.0% 11.0% 12.5%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 16.0% 13.0% 14.5%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 18.0% 15.0% 16.5%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 20.0% 17.0% 18.5%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 22.0% 19.0% 20.5% 14.0%

SU SYSTEM  4-YEAR (100%) GRADUATION RATE                                                

(COHORT 2013) - SAME INSTITUTION



69 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SU SYSTEM

Fall 2025 

minus Baseline 

Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 29.0% 21.0% 25.0%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 30.0% 22.0% 26.0%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 31.0% 24.0% 27.5%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 32.0% 26.0% 29.0%
Yr. 4 Fall 2021 33.0% 28.0% 30.5%
Yr. 5 Fall 2022 34.5% 30.0% 32.3%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 36.0% 32.0% 34.0%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 37.5% 34.0% 35.8%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 40.0% 38.0% 39.0% 14.0%

SU SYSTEM  6-YEAR (150%) GRADUATION                                                 

(COHORT 2011) - SAME INSTITUTION



70 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SU SYSTEM

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 39.0% 15.0% 27.0%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 39.5% 17.0% 28.3%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 40.0% 19.0% 29.5%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 40.5% 21.0% 30.8%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 41.0% 23.0% 32.0%
Yr. 5 Fall 2022 41.5% 25.0% 33.3%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 42.0% 27.0% 34.5%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 42.5% 29.0% 35.8%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 43.0% 31.0% 37.0% 10.0%

SU SYSTEM  8-YEAR (200%) GRADUATION RATE                                          

(COHORT 2009) - SAME INSTITUTION



71 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

SUSLA SU SYSTEM

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 4.0% 4.0%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 4.5% 4.5%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 5.5% 5.5%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 6.5% 6.5%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 7.5% 7.5%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 9.0% 9.0%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 10.5% 10.5%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 12.0% 12.0%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 13.5% 13.5% 9.5%

SU SYSTEM  2-YEAR (100%) GRADUATION RATE                                                        

(COHORT 2015) - SAME INSTITUTION



72 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

SUSLA SU SYSTEM

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline                               

Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 9.0% 9.0%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 10.0% 10.0%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 11.0% 11.0%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 12.0% 12.0%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 13.5% 13.5%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 15.0% 15.0%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 16.5% 16.5%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 18.0% 18.0%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 20.0% 20.0% 11.0%

SU SYSTEM  3-YEAR (150%) GRADUATION RATE                                                                                 

(COHORT 2014) - SAME INSTITUTION



73 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

SUSLA SU SYSTEM

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 16.0% 16.0%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 16.5% 16.5%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 17.0% 17.0%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 17.5% 17.6%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 18.0% 18.0%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 18.5% 18.5%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 19.0% 19.0%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 19.5% 19.5%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 20.0% 20.0% 4.0%

SU SYSTEM  4-YEAR (200%) GRADUATION RATE 

(COHORT 2013) - SAME INSTITUTION



74 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

                        

 

 

Diploma Certificate Associate Bachelors Masters Doctoral Professional

SU 

SYSTEM

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 10 85 224 1,032 464 14 152 1,981

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 12 90 230 1,035 470 16 154 2,007

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 15 100 240 1,045 480 18 157 2,055
Yr. 3 Fall 2020 20 120 250 1,055 500 20 160 2,125
Yr. 4 Fall 2021 30 140 260 1,065 520 22 163 2,200

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 40 160 270 1,075 540 24 164 2,273

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 50 180 280 1,085 560 26 170 2,351

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 60 200 300 1,095 580 28 175 2,438

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 80 220 320 2,000 600 30 180 3,430 1,449 73%

SU SYSTEM - TOTAL AWARDS / COMPLETERS                                                                                               

DEGREES, DIPLOMAS & CERTIFICATES

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017 70 135 96 968 136 16 28
% Increase Fall 2025 

over Baseline Fall 

2017 700% 159% 43% 94% 29% 114% 18%



75 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

National Council 

Licensure Examination 

(NCLEX) Passage Rate 

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 89%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 90%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 91%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 92%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 93%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 94%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 95%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 96%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 97% 8%

SU SYSTEM - NATIONAL COUNCIL LICENSURE 

EXAMINATION (NCLEX-RN) PASSAGE RATE                                                  

BACCALAUREATE DEGREE PROGRAMS - SUBR



76 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

National Council 

Licensure Examination 

(NCLEX) Passage Rate 

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 73%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 75%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 77%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 79%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 81%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 83%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 85%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 87%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 89% 16%

SU SYSTEM - NATIONAL COUNCIL LICENSURE 

EXAMINATION (NCLEX-RN) PASSAGE RATE                                             

ASSOCIATE DEGREE PROGRAMS - SUSLA



77 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

PRAXIS - American 

Teacher Certification 

Examination

Baseline Fall 2017 100%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 100%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 100%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 100%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 100%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 100%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 100%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 100%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 100%

SU SYSTEM - PRAXIS - AMERICAN 

TEACHER CERTIFICATION 

EXAMINATION



78 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

Institutional Passage 

Rate on Louisiana Bar 

Exam - First Time July 

Test Takers

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline July 2017 58%

Yr. 1 July 2018 56%

Yr. 2 July 2019 59%

Yr. 3 July 2020 61%

Yr. 4 July 2021 65%

Yr. 5 July 2022 69%

Yr. 6 July 2023 73%

Yr. 7 July 2024 76%

Yr. 8 July 2025 80% 22%

SU SYSTEM - INSTITUTIONAL PASSAGE RATE ON                                                     

LOUISIANA BAR EXAM                                                   

FIRST-TIME JULY TEST TAKERS



79 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

Job Placement - % of 

Graduates Place in 

Jobs at 10 Months 

after Graduation

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline July 2017 73%

Yr. 1 July 2018 74%

Yr. 2 July 2019 75%

Yr. 3 July 2020 76%

Yr. 4 July 2021 78%

Yr. 5 July 2022 79%

Yr. 6 July 2023 80%

Yr. 7 July 2024 81%

Yr. 8 July 2025 82% 9%

SU SYSTEM - LAW SCHOOL JOB PLACEMENT                                                                                               

% OF GRADUATES PLACED IN JOBS AT                                                       

10 MONTHS AFTER GRADUATION



80 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX D 
 
 
 

Goal III 
Commitment to Institutional 

Effectiveness and Accountability 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 



81 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

100% Compliance 

with 73 SACS-COC 

Regional 

Accreditation 

Standards & 

Requirements

Baseline Fall 2017 100%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 100%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 100%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 100%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 100%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 100%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 100%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 100%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 100%

SU SYSTEM - REGIONAL ACCREDITATION                                                 

STANDARDS (SACS-COC)                                                           

100% COMPLIANCE 



82 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

100% Compliance 

with Programmatic 

Accreditation 

Standards & 

Requirements

Baseline Fall 2017 100.00%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 100.00%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 100.00%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 100.00%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 100.00%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 100.00%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 100.00%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 100.00%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 100.00%

SU SYSTEM - PROGRAMMATIC 

ACCREDITATION STANDARDS                              

100% COMPLIANCE 



83 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA SUAREC SULC SU System

SU System Fall 2025 

minus Baseline Fall 

2017

SU System % 

Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 1.94 0.25 1.08 1.36 4.78 1.88

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 2.00 0.50 1.25 1.50 5.00 2.05

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 2.25 0.75 1.50 1.75 5.15 2.28

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 2.50 1.00 1.75 2.00 5.25 2.50

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 2.75 1.50 2.00 2.25 5.35 2.77

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 3.00 2.00 2.50 2.50 5.45 3.09

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 3.50 2.50 3.00 3.00 5.55 3.51

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 4.00 3.00 3.50 3.50 5.65 3.93

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 4.50 3.50 4.00 4.00 5.75 4.35 2.47 131%

SU SYSTEM - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT                                                                                                                     

CURRENT RATIOS



84 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA SUAREC SULC SU System

SU System Fall 2025 

minus Baseline Fall 

2017

SU System % 

Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 $15,638,941.00 -$12,399,230.00 $654,920.00 $916,875.00 $3,211,551.00 $8,023,057.00

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 $15,800,000.00 -$11,000,000.00 $660,000.00 $925,000.00 $3,250,000.00 $9,635,000.00

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 $15,900,000.00 -$10,000,000.00 $670,000.00 $935,000.00 $3,300,000.00 $10,805,000.00

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 $16,000,000.00 -$8,000,000.00 $680,000.00 $945,000.00 $3,350,000.00 $12,975,000.00

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 $16,100,000.00 -$6,000,000.00 $690,000.00 $955,000.00 $3,400,000.00 $15,145,000.00

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 $16,200,000.00 -$4,000,000.00 $700,000.00 $965,000.00 $3,450,000.00 $17,315,000.00

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 $16,300,000.00 -$2,000,000.00 $710,000.00 $975,000.00 $3,500,000.00 $19,485,000.00

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 $16,400,000.00 $0.00 $730,000.00 $990,000.00 $3,550,000.00 $21,670,000.00

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 $16,500,000.00 $2,000,000.00 $750,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $3,600,000.00 $23,850,000.00 $15,826,943.00 197%

SU SYSTEM - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT                                                                                                                                                                 

WORKING CAPITAL



85 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA SUAREC SULC SU System

SU System Fall 2025 

minus Baseline Fall 

2017

SU System % 

Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 1.71 0.25 1.04 1.36 4.77 1.83

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 2.00 0.50 1.25 1.50 5.00 2.05

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 2.25 0.75 1.50 1.75 5.15 2.28

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 2.50 1.00 1.75 2.00 5.25 2.50

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 2.75 1.50 2.00 2.25 5.35 2.77

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 3.00 2.00 2.50 2.50 5.45 3.09

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 3.50 2.50 3.00 3.00 5.55 3.51

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 4.00 3.00 3.50 3.50 5.65 3.93

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 4.50 3.50 4.00 4.00 5.75 4.35 2.52 138%

SU SYSTEM - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT                                                                                                                                        

QUICK RATIOS / ACID TEST RATIOS



86 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA SUAREC SULC SU System

SU System Fall 2025 

minus Baseline Fall 

2017

SU System % 

Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 $7,722,347.00 -$10,299,541.00 -$47,171.00 $269,693.00 $1,587,199.00 -$767,473.00

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 $7,800,000.00 -$9,000,000.00 -$40,000.00 $280,000.00 $1,590,000.00 $630,000.00

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 $7,900,000.00 -$8,000,000.00 -$20,000.00 $290,000.00 $1,600,000.00 $1,770,000.00

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 $8,000,000.00 -$7,000,000.00 $0.00 $300,000.00 $1,620,000.00 $2,920,000.00

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 $8,100,000.00 -$5,000,000.00 $20,000.00 $310,000.00 $1,640,000.00 $5,070,000.00

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 $8,200,000.00 -$3,000,000.00 $40,000.00 $320,000.00 $1,660,000.00 $7,220,000.00

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 $8,300,000.00 -$1,000,000.00 $60,000.00 $330,000.00 $1,680,000.00 $9,370,000.00

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 $8,400,000.00 $0.00 $80,000.00 $340,000.00 $1,690,000.00 $10,510,000.00

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 $8,500,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $100,000.00 $350,000.00 $2,000,000.00 $11,950,000.00 $12,717,473.00 1657%

SU SYSTEM - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT                                                                                                                                                       

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION



87 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of Audits 

Completed Annually

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 2025 

over Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 1.0

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 3.0

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 5.0

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 6.0

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 7.0

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 8.0

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 9.0

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 10.0

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 11.0 10.0 1000%

SU SYSTEM - INTERNAL AUDIT ACCOUNTABLITY PERFORMANCE METRICS                              

NUMBER OF AUDITS COMPLETED ANNUALLY



88 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Percent of Budgets                                                    

Reviewed Annually

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 1.0%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 3.0%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 5.0%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 6.0%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 7.0%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 8.0%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 9.0%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 10.0%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 11.0% 10.0%

SU SYSTEM - INTERNAL AUDIT ACCOUNTABLITY 

PERFORMANCE METRICS - PERCENT OF BUDGETS                                                       

REVIEWED ANNUALLY



89 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX E 
 

 

Goal IV 
Commitment to Scholarly Research, 

Discovery, and Entrepreneurship 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 



90 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SU AGCENTER SU SYSTEM
Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 $24,220,864.07 $6,763,818.00 $30,984,682.07

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 $28,000,000.00 $7,000,000.00 $35,000,000.00

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 $32,000,000.00 $8,000,000.00 $40,000,000.00

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 $36,000,000.00 $9,000,000.00 $45,000,000.00

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 $40,000,000.00 $10,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 $44,000,000.00 $11,000,000.00 $55,000,000.00

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 $48,000,000.00 $12,000,000.00 $60,000,000.00

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 $52,000,000.00 $13,000,000.00 $65,000,000.00

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 $60,000,000.00 $15,000,000.00 $75,000,000.00 $44,015,317.93 142%

SU SYSTEM - SPONSORED GRANTS - DOLLAR VALUE OF PROPOSALS SUBMITTED



91 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SU AGCENTER SU SYSTEM
Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 66 25 91

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 68 26 94

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 70 28 98

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 75 30 105

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 80 32 112

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 85 34 119

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 90 36 126

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 95 38 133

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 100 40 140 49 54%

SU SYSTEM - SPONSORED GRANTS - NUMBER OF PROPOSALS SUBMITTED



92 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SU AGCENTER SU SYSTEM
Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 $18,276,045.38 $2,874,912.00 $21,150,957.38

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 $18,500,000.00 $3,000,000.00 $21,500,000.00

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 $19,500,000.00 $3,200,000.00 $22,700,000.00

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 $20,500,000.00 $3,400,000.00 $23,900,000.00

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 $22,500,000.00 $3,600,000.00 $26,100,000.00

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 $24,500,000.00 $3,800,000.00 $28,300,000.00

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 $26,500,000.00 $4,000,000.00 $30,500,000.00

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 $28,500,000.00 $4,200,000.00 $32,700,000.00

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 $30,500,000.00 $4,500,000.00 $35,000,000.00 $13,849,042.62 65%

SU SYSTEM - SPONSORED GRANTS - DOLLAR VALUE OF PROPOSALS AWARDED / FUNDED



93 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SU AGCENTER SU SYSTEM
Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 54 10 64

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 55 11 66

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 56 12 68

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 57 13 70

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 58 14 72

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 59 15 74

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 60 16 76

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 61 17 78

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 62 18 80 16 25%

SU SYSTEM - SPONSORED GRANTS - NUMBER OF PROPOSALS FUNDED / AWARDED



94 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX F 
 

 

Goal V 
Commitment to Fundraising  

and Philanthropic Support 
 
 
 

 

 
 



95 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

               

Number of DONORS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Found

ations/Other)

Number of GIFTS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Fou

ndations/Other)

$ - AMOUNT GIVEN 

(Alumni/Corporations/Foun

dations/Other)

Number of DONORS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Found

ations/Other)

Number of GIFTS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Foun

dations/Other)

$ - AMOUNT GIVEN 

(Alumni/Corporations/  

Foundations/Other)

Number of DONORS 

(Alumni/Corporations/ 

Foundations/Other)

Number of GIFTS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Found

ations/Other)

$ - AMOUNT GIVEN 

(Alumni/Corporations/  

Foundations/Other)

Number of DONORS 

(Alumni/Corporations/ 

Foundations/Other)

Number of GIFTS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Foun

dations/Other)

$ - AMOUNT GIVEN 

(Alumni/Corporations/  

Foundations/Other)

Baseline Fall 2017 192 236 $31,120.00 645 994 $1,402,858.00 15 17 $46,500.00 25 25 $2,420.00

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 271 321 $590,000.00 504 767 $1,825,000.00 20 23 $16,537.00 21 21 $5,780.00

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 285 325 $600,000.00 510 775 $1,850,000.00 22 24 $20,000.00 23 24 $20,000.00

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 290 330 $625,000.00 525 800 $1,875,000.00 24 25 $40,000.00 25 25 $40,000.00

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 295 335 $650,000.00 550 825 $1,900,000.00 26 27 $60,000.00 27 27 $60,000.00

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 300 340 $675,000.00 575 850 $1,925,000.00 28 30 $80,000.00 30 28 $80,000.00

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 305 345 $700,000.00 600 875 $1,950,000.00 30 33 $100,000.00 33 33 $100,000.00

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 310 350 $725,000.00 625 900 $1,975,000.00 32 35 $125,000.00 35 32 $125,000.00

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 315 355 $750,000.00 650 925 $2,000,000.00 35 40 $150,000.00 40 35 $150,000.00

SU SYSTEM - FUNDRAISING AND PHILANTHROPY
SU President-Chancellor & SUS Board Funds SU Baton Rouge Campus Funds SU Shreveport Campus Funds SU New Orleans Campus Funds

Number of DONORS 

(Alumni/Corporations/ 

Foundations/Other)

Number of GIFTS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Fou

ndations/Other)

$ - AMOUNT GIVEN 

(Alumni/Corporations/  

Foundations/Other)

Number of DONORS 

(Alumni/Corporations/ 

Foundations/Other)

Number of GIFTS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Foun

dations/Other)

$ - AMOUNT GIVEN 

(Alumni/Corporations/  

Foundations/Other)

Number of DONORS 

(Alumni/Corporations/ 

Foundations/Other)

Number of GIFTS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Found

ations/Other)

$ - AMOUNT GIVEN 

(Alumni/Corporations/  

Foundations/Other)

Number of DONORS 

(Alumni/Corporations/ 

Foundations/Other)

Number of GIFTS 

(Alumni/Corporations/Foun

dations/Other)

$ - AMOUNT GIVEN 

(Alumni/Corporations/  

Foundations/Other)

Baseline Fall 2017 270 386 $330,082.00 68 109 $57,610.00 82 184 $50,818.00 30 35 $544,650.00

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 198 266 $186,924.00 73 102 $51,706.00 73 172 $73,382.00 114 149 $301,050.00

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 200 270 $200,000.00 74 103 $60,000.00 77 175 $75,000.00 115 150 $325,000.00

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 215 290 $225,000.00 75 104 $85,000.00 80 180 $80,000.00 116 152 $350,000.00

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 230 310 $250,000.00 76 105 $110,000.00 84 184 $85,000.00 118 154 $400,000.00

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 245 330 $275,000.00 77 106 $135,000.00 88 188 $90,000.00 120 156 $450,000.00

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 260 350 $300,000.00 78 107 $160,000.00 92 192 $95,000.00 122 158 $500,000.00

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 280 365 $325,000.00 79 108 $185,000.00 96 196 $100,000.00 124 160 $550,000.00

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 300 385 $350,000.00 80 110 $200,000.00 100 200 $110,000.00 125 170 $600,000.00

SU Law Center Campus Funds SU Ag Center Campus Funds SU Lab School Funds SU Endowed Professorships and Scholarship Funds

SU SYSTEM - FUNDRAISING AND PHILANTHROPY

TOTAL DONORS 

Fall 2017 - Fall 

2025 

DONORS        

Fall 2025 

minus Baseline 

Fall 2017

DONORS            

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

TOTAL GIFTS       

Fall 2017 - Fall 

2025 

GIFTS                

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

GIFTS                 

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

$$$             

TOTAL 

AMOUNT 

GIVEN Fall 2017 

- Fall 2025 

$$$          

AMOUNT Fall 

2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

$$$           

AMOUNT % 

Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 1,327 1,986 $2,466,058

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 1,274 1,821 $3,050,379

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 1,306 1,846 $3,150,000

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 1,350 1,906 $3,320,000

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 1,406 1,967 $3,515,000

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 1,463 2,028 $3,710,000

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 1,520 2,093 $3,905,000

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 1,581 2,146 $4,110,000

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 1,645 318 24% 2,220 234 12% $4,310,000 $1,843,942 75%

SU SYSTEM - FUNDRAISING AND PHILANTHROPY



96 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

APPENDIX G 
 

 

Goal VI 
Commitment to Improve Campus 

Life through Infrastructural 

Development 
 
 
 

 

 

 



97 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX H 
 

 

 

Goal VII 
Commitment to Promote the 

Southern University Brand through 

Outreach and Global Engagement 
 
 
 

 



98 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA SULC SU SYSTEM

Fall 2025 

minus Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 179 51 109 0 339

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 184 53 112 0 349

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 189 55 115 0 359

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 194 57 118 0 369

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 199 59 121 0 379

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 204 61 124 0 389

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 209 63 127 0 399

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 214 65 130 0 409

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 220 67 133 0 420 81 24%

SU SYSTEM - GLOBAL ENGAGEMENT & OUTREACH                                                      

INTERNATIONAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT



99 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBR SUNO SUSLA SULC SU SYSTEM

Fall 2025 

minus Baseline 

Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 

2017

Baseline Fall 2017 891 86 136 129 1,242

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 916 90 140 136 1,282
Yr. 2 Fall 2019 941 94 144 143 1,322
Yr. 3 Fall 2020 966 98 148 150 1,362

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 991 102 152 157 1,402

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 1,016 106 156 164 1,442

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 1,041 110 160 171 1,482

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 1,066 114 164 178 1,522

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 1,091 118 168 185 1,562 320 26%

SU SYSTEM - NATIONAL ENGAGEMENT & OUTREACH                                                                                 

OUT-OF-STATE STUDENT ENROLLMENT



100 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAID 

Membership - 

Annual

PAID 

Membership - 

Life

PAID 

Membership - 

Annual & Life

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline Fall 

2017

% Increase Fall 

2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 1,570 2,805 4,375

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 1,600 2,831 4,431

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 1,650 2,850 4,500
Yr. 3 Fall 2020 1,700 2,875 4,575
Yr. 4 Fall 2021 1,750 2,900 4,650

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 1,800 2,925 4,725

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 1,850 2,950 4,800

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 1,900 2,975 4,875

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 1,950 3,000 4,950 575 13%

SU ALUMNI FEDERATION - PAID ALUMNI MEMBERSHIPS                         

ANNUAL & LIFE MEMBERS



101 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

     

                    

GROUP 

AUDIENCE 

GROWTH: 

TOTAL FANS / 

FOLLOWERS

GROUP 

MESSAGE 

VOLUME: 

TOTAL 

MESSAGES 

SENT

GROUP 

MESSAGE 

VOLUME: 

TOTAL 

MESSAGES 

RECEIVED

GROUP 

IMPRESSIONS: 

TOTAL 

IMPRESSIONS                                                  

GROUP 

ENGAGEMENT: 

TOTAL 

ENGAGEMENT

GROUP LINK 

CLICKS: 

TOTAL LINK 

CLICKS

Baseline Fall 2017 80,122 1,925 8,609 18,700,000 109,800 20,114

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 95,266 4,936 22,771 26,900,000 534,100 64,427

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 110,000 10,000 30,000 30,000,000 700,000 100,000

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 130,000 15,000 40,000 40,000,000 1,000,000 150,000

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 150,000 20,000 50,000 50,000,000 1,200,000 200,000

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 170,000 25,000 60,000 60,000,000 1,400,000 250,000

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 200,000 30,000 70,000 70,000,000 1,600,000 300,000

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 250,000 40,000 80,000 80,000,000 1,800,000 400,000

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 300,000 50,000 100,000 100,000,000 2,000,000 500,000

SU SYSTEM - SOCIAL MEDIA GROUP METRICS                                                                    

TWITTER / FACEBOOK / INSTAGRAM

Fall 2025 

minus 

Baseline 

Fall 2017 219,878 48,075 91,391 81,300,000 1,890,200 479,886

% Increase 

Fall 2025 

over 

Baseline 

Fall 2017 274% 2497% 1062% 435% 1721% 2386%



102 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Web Traffic - 

Average Session 

Duration 

(Minutes)

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 2.56

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 2.96

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 3.06

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 3.16

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 3.26

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 3.36

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 3.46

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 3.56

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 3.66 1.10 43%

SU SYSTEM - WEBSITE TRAFFIC                             

AVERAGE SESSION DURATION



103 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Web Traffic - 

Sessions per 

User

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 3.05

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 3.06

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 3.07

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 3.08

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 3.09

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 3.10

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 3.11

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 3.12

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 3.13 0.08 3%

SU SYSTEM - WEBSITE TRAFFIC                                          

AVERAGE SESSIONS PER USER



104 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Web Traffic - 

Pages per 

Session

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 2.82

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 2.83

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 2.84

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 2.85

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 2.86

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 2.87

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 2.88

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 2.89

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 3.01 0.19 7%

SU SYSTEM - WEBSITE TRAFFIC                                 

AVERAGE PAGES PER SESSION



105 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Web Traffic - 

Bounce Rate

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 49.65%

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 49.50%

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 49.25%

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 49.00%

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 48.75%

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 48.50%

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 48.00%

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 47.50%

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 47.25% -2.40% -5%

SU SYSTEM - WEBSITE TRAFFIC                    

AVERAGE BOUNCE RATE



106 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Press Releases

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 24

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 27

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 30

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 33

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 36

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 39

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 42

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 45

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 48 24 100%

SU SYSTEM - PRESS RELEASES



107 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Television ADS

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 3

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 4

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 5

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 6

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 7

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 8

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 9

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 10

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 11 8 267%

SU SYSTEM - TELEVISION ADS



108 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Radio Ads

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 1

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 2

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 4

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 6

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 8

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 10

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 12

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 14

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 16 15 1500%

SU SYSTEM - RADIO ADS



109 | P a g e  -  S o u t h e r n  U n i v e r s i t y  S y s t e m  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n  –  2 0 2 5       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bill Board Ads - 

Static & Digital

Fall 2025 minus 

Baseline Fall 2017

% Increase Fall 2025 over 

Baseline Fall 2017

Baseline Fall 2017 10

Yr. 1 Fall 2018 11

Yr. 2 Fall 2019 12

Yr. 3 Fall 2020 13

Yr. 4 Fall 2021 14

Yr. 5 Fall 2022 15

Yr. 6 Fall 2023 16

Yr. 7 Fall 2024 17

Yr. 8 Fall 2025 18 8 80%

SU SYSTEM - BILL BOARD ADS                                               

STATIC & DIGITAL



Personnel Actions













EDUCATION 

MBA Degree- Human Resource Concentration-New York Institute of Technology, 2007 

MS Degree -Sport'& Fitness Management - Troy State University, 2002 

BS Degree-Recreation Therapy-Southern University &A & M College, 2000 

PROFESSIONAL HR AFFLIATIONS 

Member-Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM) 

Member- International Public Management Association for Human Resources (IMPA- HR 

3IPage 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BATON ROUGE, LA 70813 

SUS 0 SUBR iZI SULAC O SUAREC O SUNO O SUSLA 0 
******************************************************************************************* 

POSITION VACANCY AUTHORIZATION 
******************************************************************************************* 
REQUEST THAT THE POSITION TITLE Human Resources Director - SUBR Land Mass AS DESCRIBED BELOW 

BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR Office of Human Resources ----------,--,--------------
(Depa rt men t or Unit) 

Replacement 
D Civil Service 
D Tenured 

[81 New Position X Unclassified 
D Temporary D Faculty 
D Probationary (For Faculty this is same as tenure track) 

Source of Funds 
X State 
D Grant -in-Aid 
D System Revenue 
D Agency Fund State

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION 
(Include rank (for faculty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval of salary/salary range with 
the appropriate Vice-Chancellor, Chancellor and/or President. Salaries for classified positions must be approved through 
Human Resources). 

This position is responsible for guiding and directing the daily operations for Human Resources services and 
programs for the Southern University Baton Rouge land mass. Specifically, this position oversees and directs 
all onboarding, recruiting, employee relations, and benefits administration. 

Salary/Ran e: $90,000 - 98,000 Previous Incumbent-

__ Approved __ Disapproved 

JApproved __ Disapproved 

FINANCE/BUDGET OFFICE ONLY 

Funds Available

,-/'Yes
---

No

�.

a

/_ /,f 
�

HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY 

Existing/ Approved Position

Yes
-----

___ No

Employee Class: Job Class:

__ Approved V Disapproved 

__ Approved �sapproved 

An Equal Opportunity Employer

Date:

Date 

Date 

Date 

Rev. 8/05/2013



CAMPUS: 

HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BATON ROUGE LAND MASS 

ACCOUNTABILITY: Reports to the Associate Vice President for Human Resources 

JOB SUMMARY 

This position is responsible for guiding and directing the Human Resources daily operations 
and services, and programs for the Southern University Baton Rouge land mass. Specifically, 
this position manages and directs all onboarding, recruiting, employee relations, and benefits 
administration. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

• Responsible for managing the implementing, enforcing and administering federal and
state employment regulations as well as university and system policies and procedures.

• Oversee and manage the development of a performance evaluations program for all
three (3) campuses.

• Manage, oversee and develop operational efficiencies within the HR department and
SULC and Ag Center.

• Review and develop a process for implementation for ensure accurate and written job
descriptions with clear job accountabilities, reporting structures and career paths for
employees at all three campuses.

• Provide oversight to establish salary guidelines for hiring and performance evaluations for
each positon within the organization.

• Develop and implement a centralized on boarding process for the Baton Rouge landmass
• Provide oversight for recruiting, and hiring support to SUBR, SULC and Su Ag Center's

supervisors, and mangers for classified and unclassified employees.
• Provide support by developing recruitment plans and implementing activities such as

internal communication, placement of ads; reviewing resumes, conducting screening
interviews, and reference and background checks.

• Serves as the Affirmative Action/EEOC compliance officer
• Oversee the development of an efficient process to compile current and accurate

employee files.
• Provide oversight of the administration of all corporate and employee benefits and

services to include health care programs, 401 k, life insurance, disability insurance, leave
management and benefits.
o Periodic evaluation of programs to ensure the most effective and high quality

programs; administration of all benefits.programs
o Development and distribution of employee benefits packages, handbooks and

materials
o Manages all benefits suppliers

• Manage all drug testing and substance abuse programs
• Collaborate with management and staff to drive workforce planning initiatives within

colleges and departments.
• Assist with providing proactive guidance and counsel to managers and employees on

employee relations issues.
• Introduce, lead and influence change management initiatives with SULC and SU AG

Center staff in order to address issues that will enhance overall employee performance.
• Develop and manage of workplace safety programs- at all facilities and show-site

operations and overall environmental conditional
o Develop and manage all safety programs as well as incident/accident reporting
o Ensure adherence of OSHA rules and regulations



o Provides oversight for all worker's compensation claims and represents the company
at worker's compensation hearings as needed.

• Directly manages and supervises the Human Resources and indirectly manages
designated staff at SULC and SU Ag Center.

• Performs other duties as assigned and deemed necessary under the direction of the AVP
for Human Resources.

SKILL AND EDUCATIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

• Bachelor's degree in Business Administration, Human Resources or other related field
from an accredited university is required. MBA in Human Resources preferred

• Ten (10) +years' experience of strategic Human Resource leadership experience with
recent experience supporting large, complex organizations.

• Strong working knowledge of federal and state employment regulations
• Demonstrated success in all Human Resources functional areas within a fast-paced,

technically focused environment is essential. Must be hands-on and capable of producing
work with limited support staff.

• Must be results-oriented and demonstrate strategic thinking, innovation, flexibility in
dealing with changing and ambiguous situations.

• Demonstrated success working in a highly collaborative, global environment, with a track
record of accomplishment with measurable business impact.

• Demonstrated success conducting comprehensive needs analysis, organization design
and development initiatives, implementing change models and developing organization
structures while proactively driving ongoing optimization efforts. Above average
accounting skills

• Excellent project management skills including successful leadership of projects from
planning phase through completion.

• Excellent leadership skills including; superb communication, delivery of results,
consultative skills, partnership skills and team building.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Director has the direct responsibility for the supervision of the Human Resources 
Department including completing performance evaluations, rewarding, counseling, and 
reprimanding staff members. This individual will also assist management or administer 
disciplinary action to employees in order to support policies and procedures. The individual 
will have high accountability and responsibility for the Human Resources position. 

INTER-RELATIONSHIPS 

The Human Resources Director maintains an open line of communication with all Southern 
University Land mass staff. This person interfaces regularly with other colleges and 
departments. In addition, the Director interacts with management and supervisors on a daily 
basis to ensure corporate policies are being followed. 





























October 7, 2018 

Dr. James Ammons, 

SOUTHERN 
UNIVERSITY 

AND AGRICULTURAL & MECHANICAL COLLEGE 

Executive Vice-President & Vice Chancellor 
Southern University System 
3 rd Floor, JS Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

RE: Position Appointment for Director of Student Leadership & Community Engagement 

Dear Dr. Ammons, 

On behalf of the Search Committee for the Director of Student Leadership & Community Engagement, I would 
like to recommend Tiffany Freeman to fill the current vacancy after a nationwide search, phone and campus 
interviews with the Southern University community. 

Tiffany brings over8 years of experience student activities and leadership development. Tiffany has significant 

experience developing, planning, and implementing intentionally designed student activities that enhance the 

University's mission as related to student development and learning. Ms. Freeman currently serves as Assistant 

Director of Student Activities at North Carolina A & T State University and has responsibility for implementing 

programs, activities and special projects and advised the Student University Activities Board responsible for 

developing university programs and events for the campus community. 

Tiffany is very committed to working to enhance the Southern University experience as Director of 
Student Leadership and Community Engagement. 

For your convenience I have attached the job descriptions and curriculum vitae. Thank you for your 
consideration. I look forward to your decision as I believe that we continue to be on the way to 
assembling a dynamic Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Team. 

tudent Affairs & Enrollment Management 



JOB CLASS 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

JOB.CODE 

CAL ID 
Personnel Action Form 

I �E� I I I I I I I 
CAMPUS: SUS SUBR X SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 

Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
Tenured Track 

__ Other (Specify) 

9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER (Specify) 

X Non-Academic 
Part-time ( % of Full Time)

___ Undergraduate Student 
Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 

Previo� Employee 
Date Left 

1,nas V311derboilt Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

Hew Pasitiaa 
IDIV\2018 $46,696 

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Employment , JiJ.u 4 Mzll To �:s-JILh��,e_�!;(}-=--,,�./4��/q�---
Effective Date _J

c.c
a
"'
n

-"-
oa

"'ry-=-=2."'2""01
"'
9
'---

_____ v _______ _

Name rlffanv Freeman S# Sex F Race* B 
(Luc 4 digits only) 

Position Title: _____ D_irc_ct_or_e_f_Sto_de_at_lif_._e____ _ Department: StodelltAffairs & Ennllmeat Management 

Check One X Existing Position 

New Position 

*Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

Expiration Date: ______ _ 
(Position vacancy authorization form must be processed 2nd approved to fill 
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF. if 
applit2ble.) 

Years Experience --------"-8 _______ Southern University Experience 

Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

B.A. Marketi■!I Prairie View A & M 
M.Ed.- Bigber Education Tile OoiversilY af Peoosvtvania 

Current Employer Sauthem University 

Check One 
Personnel Action 

New Appointment Continuation Sabbatical 

0 

Year: 

2013 
2010 

Leave of Absence 
---

---

Transfer -X- Replacement __ Other (Specify)

Recommended Salary $62.000.00 

Source of Funds Stadeutlssessed Fees 

Change of: 

Position 
Status 

Identify Budget: 
Form Code: 

N/A 

Salary Adjustment 

II Comments: (Use back of form) 

Salary Budgeted $60,000.00 

Location 
Page _____ _ Item# 

---�-----

To 

Chairman/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date 

------------- ·-·--- ------------



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws 
and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

___ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

___ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe. North Africa, or the Middle East. 

__ I_ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
___ regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East. Southeast Asia, the Indian 

___ Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan. Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
___ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: M-F / 8:00 a.m.-5:00 P.ID. and as needed
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: ....:Ki=m=b::..::e:.:..:nv�M.:..::S:=:co=u..=Pb=.D==-·----------
SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER _2_2 _�_TI1-_5_63�6 ____________ _ 
J',i"tJMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form are to report to and
be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before starting to work. All students are to bring 
with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective
employees/students must bring a pictured ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien 
card, Hl-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval bv Human Resources before emplovment is 

offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT fYISA STATUS): 

TYPE CODESOUTHERNUN�lsti%vsTEM I certify that !he ;;bove purchase(s) is (are) allowableler the terms and conditions of the appropriation,dget or award agreement and ,n accordance witheral, state. local. and university policies and�wcedures required for fiscal compliance.

United States Citizen/Certificate ofNaruralization 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Excbanoe Visitor Program) J!llowability/Compiiance Verifi.,.d By· "' 

F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) "f&ncumbered/F unds Available By--
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience") "PJ>c. I.D. # Date: ( I 

'-

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource and Budgetarv Control Use Onlv! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing P AF, if applicable) 

� 

�JI\ 

ijlN 

-

Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Human Resources with Criminal/Background Check form) 

___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form ( completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
___ �Xe_!P-ptions Survey Fo� (s_igp�d by employee and budget head) 
___ Proposed Employee Appointment 
___ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

REC'D IJP ffi!&BUS AFFAI 
'18 Nov 7 PM4:,n 

Rev. 07/24/2007 



Tiffany L. Freeman 
      

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: 
• Advocate for the cultivation of students outside the classroom.

Exceptional interpersonal, communication, leadership and facilitation skills.
Proficient in Microsoft Office (Access, Excel, Word); Adobe Photoshop.

EDUCATION: 
University of Pennsylvania, Graduate School of Education, Philadelphia, PA 
M.S.Ed. in Higher Education Administration

· 
May 2013 

Prairie View A&M University, Prairie View, TX
B.B.A. in Marketing May 2010 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: 
Assistant Director of Student Activities, North Carolina A&T State University 
Greensboro, North Carolina 

March 2016-Present 

• Develop, coordinate, and implement special projects for the Office of Student Activities
• Campus Coordinator for Honda All-Star Challenge, a national quiz bowl competition
• Serve as a committee member on campus committees such as Homecoming, AggieFest, and Lyceum
• Develop and maintain content for webpages for the Office of Student Activities
• Advise the Student University Activities Board (SUAB) in the creation of diverse p1-ograms and events for the campus

community

Assistant Director of Student Activities, University of Texas at Dallas 
Dallas, Texas 

• Forecast, develop, and maintain an activities budget of -over $200,000

January 2015-February 2016 

• Advise students in the planning and implementation of university sponsored large campus events
• Collaborate with university departments on university-wide events such as Homecoming and Welcome Week
• Select, train, and supervise student part-time staff and full-time professional staff 
• Assess student activities programming and operations for university student fee committee and SACS

accreditation reporting

Coordinator Residence Life Education, Tennessee State University September 2013-December 2014 
Nashville, Tennessee 

• Activity Coordinator for Title Ill grant pro grants, funding Living Learning Communities and Center for 
Student Leadership

• Designed, coordinated and implemented programs, activities and events for the Center for Student
Leadership

• Developed, analyze� and monitored different methods to engage the residential stude.llt population
• Created, developed and coordinated the pilot program for the Living Learning Communities
• Train, mana�� and advise Residence Assistants

Communications Specialist, Prairie View A&M University April 2011- June 2012 
Prairie View, Texas. 

• Collaborated. with colleges, schools and departments to develop original content for a variety of publications
• Coordinated and developed publications for university functions such as Convocation,. Commencement and
• University Gala
• Developed communications and other activities tu reach alumnii- faculty, staff and students
• Suppot'ted the Office of Development and Alumni Affairs by leading event planning activities and program

devc�opment for special events. awareness gatherings and other events directed toward PV AMU alumni

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 
National Association of Student Personnel Administrators (NASP A) 
National Association of Campus Activities (NACA) 



2018NO\I -6 PH 3: 00 
August 17, 2018 

Southern University and A & M College 
Division of Student Affairs & Enrollment Management 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

Dear Search Committee: 

l am very interested in the Director of Student Leadership & Community Engagement position at
Southern University and A & M College. An advocate for the cultivation of students outside of
the classroom, I believe I would be a great addition to the Student Affairs & Enrollment
Management division.

Throughout my time in student affairs I have served in several professional capacities, with each 
role shaping my perspective and philosophy as a practitioner. With a high interest in student 
success outside of the classroom, I have spent the last several years in roles that help to cultivate 
students in leadership, planning and execution of events, civic responsibility, and social justice. I 
have had the opportunity to serve as advisor to campus organizations, served as chair of major 
university events, assisted with university pageants, organized young alumni events, created 
curriculum, and served on campus wide committees. These duties have given me skills in 
interpersonal communication, time management, budgeting, �upervising, and project execution. 

The role of Director of Student Leadership & Community Engagement directly relates to my 
experience as the Coordinator of Residence Life Education and current position as Assistant Director 
of Student Activities and Campus Involvement and offers transferable skills that will help in the role. 
As the Coordinator of Residence Life Education, I was responsible for The Center for Student 
Leadership under the title m grant. I was charged with developing curriculum, creating learning 
objectives and outcomes, and assessment of the program. Additionally, as leadership facilitator I 
was able to help cultivate students througl1 workshops focused on key leadership areas such as 
personal development, civic engagement, lll)d interpersonal communication. In my current role, 
am charged with the task of program development, assessment & program evaluation, 
supervision of graduate assistant, leadership training, cultural enrichment activities, and student 
advising. Additionally, I oversee the operations and activities budget, totaling over $200,000. 

My goal as a student affairs professional is to provide opportunities for students to participate in 
the development and production of activities; offer opportunities for student leadership that 
develop students both personally and professionally; and networking and interpersonal 
communications skills in a co-curricular setting. 

I would appreciate the opportunity to meet and further discuss my qualifications. I look forward 
to hearing from you soon. 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BATON ROUGE, LA 70813 
. . <V 

· �lif{;J :f�,lJB� .. C8J . �i,�!i]!\,;- SUAREC O SUNO O SUS�A [J< , 
****�;�"f·!f�,.1f t,�.��-B'l:�x_*;*-lcl'.***·***** ��t:,��-� (f ��--71·?"!'. *i*t 'I!**************************** �\.li� * *."ii�*****f. ** 

"' 'C ,, r' c<.' >: ;�OSIJ:IO.N_VACANCY . .AUTHORIZATION 's; '{,; .•· 
*****�t*�i***��**�***�*****RJl�JJ**AH�St--04******************************��**��*****�* 
REQUEST THAT THE POSITION IlH.E ,· ,J;>jrec:tor of Student Leadership & AS DESCRIBED B�LOW 

'v., ' .' '- 'C:iiriliii.Viiily/E,hgi)gement - O 

. 

BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR "§rl?ddiThffair� & E,nrollmentManagement 
(Departm¢ii(or Unit) 

X Replacement 
D Civil Service 
D Tenured 

D New Position X Unclassified 
D Temporary D Faculty 
D Probationary (For Faculty this is same as tenure track)

Source of Funds !.'�-_) 
�-

x State '� 

D Grant -in-Aid 
D System Revenue 
D Agency Fund State 

' 
f 

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION 
(Include rank (for faculty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval of salary/salary range with
the appropriate Vice-Chancellor, Chancellor and/or President. Salaries for classified positions must be approved through 
Human Resources).

The Director of Student Leadership & Community Engagement is responsible for developing strategy and planning for increased 
student engagement with appropriate allocation of resources, and assessment of events, programs and initiattves to achieve 
university goals for recruitment, retention, community engagement, successful graduation and career outcomes. The position 
advises Student Government Association and provides oversight of student events and Student Activities Board and collaborates 
with internal and external constituents to oversee university-wide department events such as New Student Orientation, Welcome 
Week, Bayou Classic, Homecoming, Family Weekend, Spring Fest, major concerts and speakers and Student Leadership Awards. 

Salary/Range: ..;$:::.: 5:.:0
:..-.:::$::.:55::.,,c:0.::.00=--_____ P::.;r:.:e:...vr.:::· o:.:us=-:Ic:::n.::.cum=c:.be=n=t�(1::.·f.::re::,:P;::la=ce:::m:::e:::ntz):,___:J.:::;on:;a;:;s:...V.:.an=d::::e::.rb:::.:i:c:lt:_ ____ _ 

Kimberly M. Scott � � Approved __ Disapproved 

FINANCE/BUDGET OFFICE ONLY 
Funds Available 

V Yes 

x\::: ..:, 

--- No 

--,:- Approved 
-- , -�-

Disapproved 
c-�

�J>,roved __ Disapproved 

�roved __ Disapproved 

July 21, 2018 
Date 

Date 

HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY 
Existing/ Approved Position 

/ Yes -----

Employee Class: 

___ No 

Job Class: ZZ6"f0

l -z..lf /rt
Date: 

ly M. Scott hPf- July 21, 2018 

Date 

Date 

Date 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

Rev. 8/05/2013 



SOUTHERN 
UNIVERSITY 
AND AGRICULTURAL & MECHANICAL COLLEGE 

DIRECTOR OF STUDENT LEADERSHIP & COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

SUMMARY 

Southern University and Agricultural & Mechanical College is a comprehensive institution and 
America's oldest and only historically Black University system of schools offering academic 
programs at Baton Rouge, Shreveport, and New Orleans. For 138 years Southern has educated, 
nurtured and empowered citizens of the world focused on global change, leadership and service. 
The Division of Student Affairs and Enrollment Management seeks a Director of Student 
Leadership & Engagement who is able to establish a framework for student leadership and 
community engagement in support student leadership and community engagement, retention and 
graduation goals. 

The Director of Student Leadership & Community Engagement is responsible for developing 
strategy and planning for increased student engagement with appropriate allocation of resources, 

and assessment of events, programs and initiatives to achieve university goals for recruitment, 
retention, community engagement, successful graduation and career outcomes. 

ESSESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 

1. Oversees university wide programming including engaging undergraduate students in the
creation, planning, execution, and promotion of student-initiated programs and activities.

2. Fosters and develops a culture of increased student participation in clubs and organizations.

3. Establishes a strategic plan for the annual development of new and continuing student clubs
and organizations.

4. Responsible for advisement, assessment and expansion of the Greek community.

5. Develops, implements, and evaluates various educational training, accountability and
recognition programs in support of Greek leadership and organizational needs; develops and
manages the Greek Life budget; and reviews policies related to Greek life.

6. Ensures compliance with risk management procedures and addresses organizational conduct
issues in conjunction with upper management.

7. Directs and coordinates assigned staff to include hiring, mentoring, training, conducting
performance evaluations; and other employee related actions.

8. Advises Student Government Association; provides oversight of the Student Events and



Activities Board, and management of campus-wide student social space reservations. 

9. Collaborates with internal and external constituents to oversee and/or assist with university
wide department initiated events such as New Student Orientation, Freshmen Academy,
Welcome Week, Bayou Classic, Homecoming, Family Weekend, Spring Fest, major concerts
and speakers and Student Leadership Awards.

10. Administers student activities management software, OrgSync, while providing software
training and support for campus community.

11. Designs, plans, and implements assessment measures to evaluate the effectiveness of
programs and services offered by the Department. Asses the quality and effectiveness of Student
Leadership and Community Engagement programs and initiatives; conducts research related to
student and campus life keeping abreast of challenges, issues and campus climate concerns.
Serve as the primary administrator responsible for departmental assessment initiatives and
reporting.

12. Serves as a resource to student organization leaders and University administrators regarding
small and large program and event planning on campus. Provides specific guidance on issues
related to University policies and procedures, contract negotiation and management, and risk
assessment.

13. Oversees social media outreach for the department, and utilizes social media platforms to
promote and connect students to programming and involvement opportunities on campus.

14. Coordinates the Division of Student Affairs programming calendar, and manages event
scheduling conflicts as they arise. Ensures that key dates are programmed in an effort to maintain
a robust event calendar for students.

15. Provides coverage/supervision of student activity facilities during nights, weekends, and
other special events.

16. Performs other duties as assigned.

RELEVANT FUNCTIONS 

1. Ensure compliance with SACSOC and CAS Standards.
2. Serves on University Committees.
3. Assists staff in special project assignments.
4. Travel with students to off campus events.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS & ABILITIES 

1. Knowledge and experience working in HBCU communities.
2. Knowledge of student affairs and student activities programs.
3. Working knowledge ofNational Panhellenic Council and groups.
4. Working knowledge of higher education and diverse student populations.
5. Direct and prior involvement in staff supervision, event planning, and program development.



REQUIRED EDUCATION 

1. Master's Degree in student affairs, educational research, or a related field required.
2. EdD, JD or PhD preferred.

REQUIRED EXPERIENCE 

1. Minimum five (5) years ofrelated professional post-masters experience.
2. Direct experience in designing and implementing large scale programs.
3. Understanding of assessment strategies.
4. Must have a valid Louisiana driver's license or ability to obtain within 30 days of
employment.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS 

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee 
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to stand; walk; sit; use 
hands and arms to reach, and operate the computer and other office equipment; stoop kneel, crouch, 
or crawl; talk or hear; and taste or smell. The employee is occasionally required to climb or 
balance. The employee must regularly lift and/or move up to 10 pounds. Specific vision abilities 
required by this job include ability to adjust focus. 

WORK ENVIRONMENT 

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee 
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may 
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently exposed to outside weather 
conditions. The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate. 

SUPERVISION 

This position supervises two (2) Coordinators, one (1) Graduate Assistant, (1) Administrative 
Assistant, student employees and volunteers. 

HOW TO APPLY 

Please submit a cover letter, curriculum vitae and application to studentaffairs@subr.edu on or 
before Tuesday, July 31, 2018. 





































SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552 
FAX (225) 771-2474 

October 17, 2018 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

Dr. Ray L. Belton 

System President and Chancellor 

Southern University and A&M College System 

J. S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

RE: Announcement Waiver Request 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

e,i,) 
.. 

Tavares Walker has served the Southern University Law Center well as the Director of Career 

Services and the Title IX Coordinator. Because of a proposed promotion for him to the SU System, I would 

like to replace Tavares A. Walker, the Director of Career Services and Title IX with Kerry Landry-Thomas. 

Mrs. Thomas has the requisite experience and education to serve as a Title IX Coordinator and her 

experience as an attorney and in higher education make her an excellent candidate to replace Mr. Walker. 

The total annual compensation for both roles would be $90,000.00 effective January 1, 2019. 

Therefore, this letter is to request a Vacancy Announcement Waiver and appointment for Director 

- Office of Career Services and Title IX Coordinator, and an authorization to waive an employment search.

This would allow us to permanently appoint Mrs. Landry-Thomas to this position and negate the long and

unnecessary process of conducting interviews and screening.

Thank you and with kind regards, I am, 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



JOB CLASS 
. .

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
JOB CODE u 

CALIO 
M 

Personnel Action Form �, �-0-s-m-
E

o_
R

_N
_�

,
-

3
-�,-

M
�,-�,-�,-�,-�, 

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC � SUAREC S'UNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH _g_ OTHER __ (Specify)

Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
Tenured Track 

__ Other (Specify) 

__ X __ Non-Academic 
Part-time ( '1/o of Full Time) 

== Undergraduate Student 
Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To W ork 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

_X ___ Permanent Status 

Previous Employee _T _av_a_r_es�W_ a_l _ke_ r __________ _ 
Date Left December 31 2018 

Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

Transferred to SUS Campus 
S90 000 

Profile of Person Recommended 

Length of Employment ___..:;0
.::;l/;.;;0.::;l/ 2=01

::;:
9
'------------ To 06/30/2019 

Effective Date _0�1/'-0�1/2�0�1 �9 _____________ _ 

Name Kerii Thomas  Sex -----'F
'--

_ Race* B 
(Last 4 digits only) 

Position Title: Director office of Career Services and Title XI Department: Southern University Law Center 
Coordinator 

*Visa Type (See Reverse Side): Check One _K_ Existing Position 

New Position Expiration Date: ______ _ 
(Position noncy aatborizalioa form must be proassed and approved to fill 
aistmg: aad new positions. Position must be advertised bd'orc processing PAF, if 
applicable.) 

Years Experience _1::.c0:....... ____________ Southern University Experience 4 

Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): lustitution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 
J.D. Southern University Law Center 

Current Employer LexisNexis Practice Area Consultant 

Check One __ New Appointment 
Transfer 

Personnel Action 

Continuation Sabbatical 
� Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Recommended Salary _S9=-:0c,.0:.;0;.;:0 _______ _ Salary Budgeted $90,000 

Year. 
2008 

Leave of Absence 

Source of Funds _ S_ta_te ___________________________________ _ 

Change of: 

Position 
Status 

Identify Budget: 
FoX"!DCode: 

Salary Adjustment 

Grant 
BORIO 

List total funds currently paid this employee by 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side 

I Comments: (Use back of form) 

Location 311001-38130-ol 002-35000 
Item# 1 

---------

Page _1 ____ _ 

To 

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 

Chairman/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights
Laws and does not affect employment consideration.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one):
__ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino

RACE (Please check all that apply):
__ White, not of Hispanic origin. A pe,son having origins in any of the original people of Europe. North Africa. or the Middle East.
....L_ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanisb culture or origins,
__ regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, Cbina, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.
American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who
maintains cultural identification through tn"bal affiliation or community recognition.

COMMENTS: 
Kerii Thomas will replace Tavares Walker because of a proposed promotion for him to the SU System, effective
January 01, 2019.

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE:
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR:
:NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any)

Dail
Chancellor, John Pierre
100 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.
Documentation must be provided for review and approval bv Human Resources before emplovment is
offered.
CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT MSA STATUS):
TYPE
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) 
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) 

Pl=C� ,Qf!4=,,LVisa.Jh!S �ior Approval-"Practical Work Experience")-� u V, f-11't&l:RG-AFFAi 
'lu v I ..!..u "M :.!)!j 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

EN�ERED/FUN�BLE 

�· 1){/IB BY �I ___Ii�_a,� 
Fl 

FO 

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)

Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing P AF, if applicable) 
--- Application for Employment Fann Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) · Authority to Releas� (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check form)
-_-. -. -.- . Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor)
== Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head)
__ Proposed Employee Appointment

Proposed Employee Clearance 
==·Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justifica!ion (for classified, if applicable)

CONTINGENT L"'PON AV AlLABILITY OF FUNDS
Rev. 10/J 812018 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BA TON ROUGE, LA 70813 

SUS □ SUBR O SULAC [Z] SUAREC O SUNO 0 SUSLA 0 
******************************************************************************************* 

POSITION VACANCY AUTHORIZATION 
******************************************************************************************* 

REQUEST THAT THE POSITION TITLE Director, Office of Career Services & 
Title IX Coordinator 

AS DESCRIBED BELOW 

BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR Southern University Law Center 
---::=----,------'-".'----:-:--:--:-:------------------

(Depa rt men t or Unit) 

['ZI Replacement 
D Civil Service 
D Tenured 

D New Position ['ZI Unclassified 
D Temporary D Faculty 
D Probationary (For Faculty this is same as tenure track) 

Source of Funds 
l'ZI State 
0 Grant -in-Aid 
0 System Revenue 
0 Agency Fund State

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION 

(Include rank (for faculty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval of salary/salary range with 
the appropriate Vice-Chancellor, Chancellor and/or President. Salaries for classified positions must be approved through 
Human Resources). 

Hold primary responsibility for operation of office and supervision of staff. Plan, organize, and present seminars, workshops, panel presentations, and other programming. 
Counsel students and alumni regarding short-term and long-term professional development. Counsel students and alumni on resume and cover letter preparation. Plan and 
organize on and off -campus recruiting and national job fair programming. Gather and report all required data and statistics for reporting agencies, including, but not limited 
to, NALP, the ABA, and SACSCOC accreditation. Draft and implement strategic plans for the office. Lead the Office of Career Services in developing strategic initiatives, 
employer relations, and marketing strategies. Educate employers about the skills, abilities and experience possessed by SULC students and alumni, to emphasize the 
services the office provides, and to encourage an expanding array of employers to recruit from SULC. Work to establish strong relationships with other departments 
throughout the school to promote the best interest of students. Participate in professional development activities, including, but not limited to, membership in professional 
organizations and travel to conferences for training and development. Teach courses at the Law Center as an adjunct professor as requested. 

Providing information and assistance to those who wish to raise a complaint or have concerns relating to the University's compliance with Title IX. Facilitating the 
University's compliance with Title IX, including responding effectively to each complaint. Providing assistance and support to University programs responsible for 
responding to and investigating complaints. Identifying and addressing any patterns or systemic issues relating to Title IX compliance. Facilitating University-wide training 
and outreach. Where appropriate, responding to or conducting an investigation of complaints. Participating in and providing support for committees and other programs 
dedicated to Title IX compliance. 

Salary/Range: 90,000.00 -90,000.00 

_x __ Approved __ Disapproved

X 

X 

X 

X 

Approved __ Disapproved

FINANCE/BUDGET OFFICE ONLY 
Funds Available 

Yes No 

Approved Disapproved

Approved Disapproved

�proved __ Disapproved

Tavares Walker 

10,!1f/tf
Date 

HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY 
Existing/ Approved Position 

✓ Yes No 

Employee Class: 
M 

Job Class: 
10 

Rev. 8/05/2013 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM 

OFFICE OF THE 

PRESIDENT - CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-4680 

October 17, 2018 

Dr. Ray L. Belton 

President-Chancellor 

Southern University System 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

J.S. CLARK ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

4TH FLOOR 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813 

RE: Position Vacancy Authorization and Announcement Waiver Request 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

FAX NUMBER 

(225) 771-5522 

This letter is submitted to request authorization to waive the search for the position of System Director 

of Compliance & Ethics/ Associate General Counsel for the Southern University System. It is imperative 

that this position be filed immediately due to the growing volume of federal and state regulatory 

compliance matters and the structuring of the General Counsel's Office to best serve the legal needs of 
the entire Southern University System. 

The System Director of Compliance & Ethics/Associate General Counsel will serve to reduce liabilities and 

losses associated with failures to comply with applicable laws and regulations, and to fulfill other legal 

duties as assigned. Reporting to the General Counsel, the position is responsible for overseeing and 
coordinating system-wide compliance activities, including the evaluation and monitoring of the 

university's operational and strategic risks, as well as seeking to ensure that the university and its 

employees are complying with federal and state regulatory requirements, as well as internal policies and 

procedures. 

I am available to clarify any inquiries you may have. 

Best regards, 

Deidre Deculus Robert 
General Counsel 
Southern University Syste 

Approved: 

Dr. Ray L. Be on 

President-Chancellor 

Southern University System 

"Five Campuses, One Vision ... Global Excellence" 
WWW.SUS.EDU 



JOB CLASS
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

JOB CODE
CALID 

Personnel Action Form.�, �-sm-�-N�, -,�, �, -,�, �, 

CAMPUS: SUS _x_ SUBR

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY:

SULAC

9-MONTH

SUAREC SUNO SUSLA

12-MONTH ...x._ OTHER __ (Specify)

Academic
Temporary

-- Tenured
Tenured Track

= Other (Specify)

NIA

__ X_ Non-Academic
___ Part-time ( % of Full Tune)

Civil Service
Restricted

___ Job Appointment
Probationary--

- Permanent Status

Undergraduate Student-
-- Graduate Assistant

Retiree Return To Work

Reason Left NIA Previous Employee
Date Left _N""'/"'"Ac....-_______________ _ Salary Paid

_
N/ ___ A

___
_

______
_

Profile of Person Recommended 

Len,,,otb of Employment -'J=--'ulc.y'--l"',"'2""01=-c8'----------
Effective Date January 1, 2 019

To June30,2019

Name Tavares A. Walker SS# Sex -----'-M"--_ Race* _B __
(Last 4 digits only)

Position Title: System Director or Compli:ance & Ethics/ Associate General Department: SUS - Office of the President/ChancellorCounsel 

Check One __ Existing Position *VJSa Type (See Reverse Side):
X New Position
(Position ""cancy authorization Corm must be processed and approved to fill
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if
applicable.)

Expiration Date: ______ _

Years Experience �1 0 ______________ Southern University Experience _7.5 ___ -=------
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location Year:
BA Communications Louisiana State Universitv and A&M College 2005
JD Law Southern Universitv Law School 2008 

Current Employer Southern.Universitv Law Center

Personnel Action 

Check One � New-A:ppointment __ Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence
__ T_ransfer __ Replacement __ Other (Specify)

Recommended Salary _$�1_0�5,�00_ 0 ______ _ Salary Budgeted $105 000 

Source ofFunds .....;:;.Sta=te;;..;B;;;..u;c;�c.:""'et.;;._ ______________________________ _

Change of:

Identify Budget:
Form Code:

. From

Location
Page _____ _ Item# _______ _

To
Position' l>�ector & Trtle IX Coordinator

> • 

Status ., '·. ' 

System Director of Compliance & Ethics
/Associate General Counsel

Salary Adjustment _$�90_, �0_00 ___ ___,Finan
"'·--cial--,-Ai'""'·..,....,,--- $10 5,000 

d �oru1ture (if, :mnlicable):
List total funds currently paid this employee by
Southern University:
*See Reverse Side

Source of Funds 
SULC-311001-38 130 

SUS- 111005-11157-61002-16000 

Chairman/S.U. Board
of Supervisors

Amount
$90,000
$15.000 

Date

Date
1Dzt?l1¥1 Date

Date



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and does not affect employment consideration. ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): __ Hispanic or Latino X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino RACE (Please check all that apply): __ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa. or the !',fiddle East. _X __ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. H"xspanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, __ regardless of race. Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia. the Indian __ Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who __ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. COMMENTS: Tavares Walker will transfer from SULC to SUS as the System Director for Compliance and Ethics/Associate General Counsel effective January 1, 2019. 
EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 8:00 AM- 5:00 PM Monday thrn Friday EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Deidre D. Robert. General Counsel SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER ""'225--'--"--._7�71-'--.40�93-'----------------NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) _4.:__ _______________ _ 
BRUSE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the nse of this form are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any �lpY,JDeqf)� llff�,l!AA��to work. All students are to bring with th� clearance from the Finan�;::.¥,� o�c_Kl��ht btiao'ottf'(i"f{'recei:11t),and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students musf··bnag a;{)�fii1Nli)&AYAHrA-f3t,id, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, m�B.-anct-J-1 'tjsas, passport. and F-l/I-94. The latter six ( 6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. Documentation must be provided for review and approval bv Human Resources before employment is offered. 

sour-i:::;::;�,• Ll"ilVE!,S!TY LAW CENTEr CLASS OF EMPLO� OOSA:S'fATUS}: , . ,. v"''""J/ ..: .: y.;·JOS AVAIUBLt TYPE DOC :.o" /7eM/-°'7gr/'Jtj -°C/e?t>,?- ,¼'"�lhri""1 s,.., Citi=iCJ:m...��g )g US Resident Alien BY._� r RA H-1 v;,a (Disting,rlsbod M"" & Ahili� -"------ Hl J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) J1 F-1 Visa (StudentEmp. FT Student at S.U.) Fl OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"PracticaI Work Experience") FO 
FUND�BLE OFFICE OF THE VICE PRESiDEITT FOR FINANCE & BUS!NESS AFFAIRS SOUTHERN UNIVER:S,TY SYSTEM 

� 1Qj1'7ll0 
SIGNED DATE 

· 111005-1115'1-blaJfJ. � 15
1
/Jf}O

Do Not Write Below This Area 
For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): ___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) ___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Applicai;ion for classified employees) ___ Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Human Resources with Criminal/Background Check form) ___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) ___ Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) . . Proposed Employee Appointment 

== Proposed Employee Clearance ___ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 
Rev.(l]l2AnJJIJ7 

---------�-------·----



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BATON ROUGE, LA 70813 

SUS rgj SUBR SULAC O SUAREC O SUNO O SUSLA 0
******************************************************************************************* 

POSITION VACANCY AUTHORIZATION 
******************************************************************************************* 

REQUEST THAT THE POSITION TITLE System Director for Compliance & Ethics/ 
Associate General Counsel 

AS DESCRIBED BELOW

BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR President's Office 
(Department or Unit) 

x New Position D Unclassified 
D Temporary D Faculty 

Source of Funds 
[8::1 State 
D Grant -in-Aid 

D Replacement 
D Civil Service 
D Tenured D Probationary (For Faculty this is same as tenure track) D System Revenue 

D Agency Fund State

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION 

(Include rank (for faculty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval of salary/salary range with 
the appropriate Vice-Chancellor, Chancellor and/or President. Salaries for classified positions must be approved through 
Human Resources). 

See Attached Job Description 

Salary/Range: 105,000 - 130,000 Previous Incumbent (ifreplacement): 

Approved Disapproved 

Approved Disapproved 

FINANCE/BUDGET OFFICE ONLY 
Funds Available 

/ Yes 
----'--

No ---

______vApproved __ Disapproved 

--�ved __ Disapproved 

Dean 

Department Head 
President/ ancell Dr. y Belton

isor of Budget Unit 

Date 
10/17/2018 

;p--i1-1e 
Date 

HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY 
Existing/ Approved Position 

Yes No 

Employee Class: I l Job Class:

Verified Bv: Date: 
v·A J IA.rJ e .so ,Zt:?/'7 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Rev. 8/05/2013



Job Description 

System Director for Compliance & Ethics/ Associate General Counsel 

Purpose: 

To support Southern University and A&M College System's leadership in fulfilling its mission 

and commitments to the highest standards of ethics and integrity and to the principles of equal 

access and equal opportunity. To that end, the candidate will work cooperatively with 

campuses within the system to: 

1. Promote and enhance a climate that ensures equal access and equal opportunity for all

members of the University community and participants in its activities and services.

2. Promote and enhance a culture of ethical behavior and compliance with applicable

policies, laws and regulations.

3. Reduce liabilities and losses associated with failures to comply with applicable laws and

regulations.

Reporting to the General Counsel, the position is responsible for overseeing and coordinating 

system-wide compliance activities, including the evaluation and monitoring of the university's 

operational and strategic risks, as well as seeking to ensure that the university and its 

employees are complying with federal regulatory requirements, as well as internal policies and 

procedures. 

Knowledge, Skills, Abilities: 

1. Working knowledge of higher education laws and regulations, including: Title IX, FERPA,

Clery Act, and ADA;

2. Experience in state and federal regulatory oversight;

3. Knowledge in conducting risk assessments;

4. Excellent written and verbal communication skills;

5. Fosters a university culture that does not tolerate illegal or unethical behavior and

prompts faculty and staff to consider the potentially adverse consequences of unethical

conduct;

6. Solves problems by improving collaboration, and communication;

7. Demonstrated skill in multi-tasking, organization, and planning;

8. Demonstrated fiscal responsibility;

9. Reduces the risks of non-compliance, while increasing the likelihood of early detection

and correction; and

10. Provides a source of best practices and assistance for the entire university community.

Page 1 of4 

OGC - October 16, 2018 



Minimum Qualifications: 

1. JD degree and a licensed member in good standing with the Louisiana State Bar

Association;
2. 2+ years of relevant experience as inside or outside counsel, ideally supporting

universities;
3. Experience in structuring, drafting and negotiating a wide variety of commercial

contracts;
4. Demonstrated ability to prioritize and handle multiple tasks, and deliver results in a fast

paced, deadline-driven environment;

5. Experience working on compliance with Title IX regulatory requirements in a higher
education environment will be considered highly valuable;

6. Investigatory experience, excellent verbal and written communication skills required as
are strong presentation, interpersonal skills, and an ability to work collaboratively with
various campus representatives. Member in good standing of the Georgia Bar
Association;

7. Previous experience as a Title IX Coordinator;
8. Successful record resolving Title IX issues; and
9. Energetic, self-starting problem-solver who can work collaboratively and autonomously.

Compensation: 

$105,000 - $130,000 - Based on a review of similarly situated universities, both in size and scale 

of operations. 

Job Duties and Responsibilities: 

1. Develop and modify as appropriate the compliance and ethics organizational structure,

establish practices, and lead the development of policies to implement and manage a
comprehensive compliance and ethics program;

2. Build collaborative relationships with compliance personnel across the university

system, and in collaboration with Internal Audit, Risk Management, and others, develop,
update and maintain the university's compliance efforts associated with Title IX and
ADA;

3. Monitors the internal and external compliance environments to identify potential risks
and vulnerabilities across the university system in order that the university is compliant

with federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, as well as institutional policies;
4. Participation in the design of enterprise risk assessments and lead implementation of

such assessments;

5. Oversee the development of the annual compliance work plan that reflects the
institution's compliance and regulatory risks that will be monitored by the compliance

function as determined by conducting a periodic system-wide risk assessment;

6. Institute and maintain an effective compliance communications strategy for the
university, including developing, coordinating, and participating in a multifaceted
educational and training program that focuses on the elements of the compliance

Page 2 of4 

OGC - October 16, 2018 



program, and seeks to ensure that all appropriate employees and management are 

knowledgeable of, and comply with, pertinent federal and state standards; 

7. Advise senior leadership and the Board of Supervisors on the operation and

effectiveness of the university's compliance efforts; prepare and present the results of

university compliance activities to the President and to the Board of Supervisors, or its

designee;

8. As assigned, respond to government investigations and inquiries;

9. Coordinates and monitors a prompt and equitable Title IX investigatory process in cases

of sexual misconduct, including assignment and supervision of Title IX investigators in

accordance with University policy;

10. Meets with complainants and respondents to provide information regarding the Title IX

complaint process, available resources, interim measures, and reporting and resolution

options;

11. Provides training and technical assistance on University policies and develop programs,

such as assemblies or trainings, on issues related to Title IX to assist the University in

making sure that students and staff are aware of their rights and obligations under Title

IX. Also regularly assess the adequacy of current training opportunities and programs

and propose improvements as appropriate;

12. Maintains and monitors data related to complaints and investigative activities, and

provides periodic and annual reports as appropriate. This responsibility includes

monitoring outcomes, identifying and addressing any patterns, and assessing effects on

the campus climate;

13. Maintains and updates Title IX content for the University's web page in collaboration

with the IT Department;

14. Participates in the drafting and revision of University policies and procedures to help

ensure that they comply with the requirements of Title IX;

15. Continuously identifies and integrates Title IX best practices into the campus knowledge

base and practice;

16. Regularly attends Title IX education programs to understand best practices as they

relate to Title IX and sexual misconduct issues;

17. Monitors students' participation in athletics and across academic fields to ensure

compliance with Title IX;

18. Reviews recruitment materials, admission forms, and policies and practices in these

areas to ensure compliance with Title IX; and

19. Insures that the University maintains the appropriate number of well-qualified, trained

Title IX deputy coordinators, investigators and hearing officers.

ADDITIONAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Draft terms and conditions in agreements;

2. Research legal issues impacting the organization by identifying applicable statues,

judicial decisions, and codes;

3. Perform pre-litigation work to minimize risks and maximize legal rights;

4. Develop solutions to legal questions;

Page 3 of4 

OGC - October 16, 2018 



5. Provide training to company and its affiliates on substantive legal topics;

6. Assumes additional responsibilities and performs special projects as needed or

requested;

7. Anticipates, listens to, understands and responds to the needs of members of the

University community; and

8. Delivers work products and services in a way that reflects positively upon the

department and the University.

Page4of4 

OGC - October 16, 2018 



TAVARES A. WALKER, ESQ. 
 
 

EDUCATION 
Certificate, Judge Advocate Officer Basic Course June 2012 
The Judge Advocate General's Legal Center and School, Charlottesville, Virginia 

Juris Doctor May 2008 
Southern University Law Center, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

Bachelor of Arts, Communications August 2005 
Louisiana State University and A&M College, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

BAR ADMISSIONS/SECURITY CLEARANCES 
• Louisiana
• Secret, US Government
• US Courts of Military Justice
• US District Court, Middle District - Louisiana

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPERIENCE 
Director & Title IX Coordinator 
Interim Director 
Office of Career Services 
Southern University Law Center 

October 2008 

July 2011 

April 2012 

March2015 

November 2016 - present 
September 2015 - November 2016 

• Primary supervisor for 6 employees; responsible for training, development, and assignments of each
employee. Serves a member of the Chancellor's management team.

• Acts as lead administrator for career services operations and policy development including goals,
vision, marketing, budgeting, and strategic planning.

• Assists Law Center management team in the resolution of student issues.
• Works independently to identify external programs with potential employers and stakeholders.
• Directs the development of professional development activities and programs.
• Responsible for managing the compilation and submission of all career service data reporting

including ABA, SASCOC, NALP, and all state regulatory reporting requirements.
• Created and manages law school funded summer fellowships opportunity program for current

students.
• Primary interface with faculty, staff, and alumni regarding development of career service strategy

and opportunities.
• Manages and develops a comprehensive employer relations and development plans.
• Collaborates with senior management to identify resources and constituencies that are dedicated to

the employment our graduates and student.
• Serves as the advisor for SULC Chapter of American Inns of Court and Lenoir Senate, Delta Theta

Phi Fraternity, International.
• Serves as the primary administrator for Title IX issues and investigations.
• Tracks and monitors incidents, including sex discrimination and sexual misconduct ensuring that

the University responds effectively to each complaint; and where appropriate, conducting
investigations of particular situations.

• Provides information and assistance to those who wish to raise a complaint or have concerns
relating to the University's compliance with Title IX.

• Facilitates the University's compliance with Title IX, including responding effectively to each
complaint by providing assistance and support to University programs responsible for responding
to and investigating complaints.

• Identifies and addresses any patterns or systemic issues relating to Title IX compliance and
facilitates university-wide training and outreach.



Coordinator/ Counselor 
Office of Career Services 
Southern University Law Center 

March 2011 -August 2015 

• Responsible for the delivery of career advising of students providing tools, resources and career
strategies.

• Primary advisor for third law students and recent graduates.
• Assisted the director the overall operation of the Career Services office.
• Managed the career services management database, marketing and recruiting materials.
• Collaborated with faculty regarding the development and execution of externship opportunities.
• Managed the Chancellor's Public Service Fellowship Stipend Program.

TEACfilNG EXPERIENCE 

Adjunct Professor of Law June 2012 -Present 
Southern University Law Center 
• Courses taught: Legal Research, Family Law, Conflicts of Law, Education Law, Constitutional Law

II, Lawyering Process, and Statutory Analysis.
• Prepares analytical lessons and assessments that cover course topics.
• Responsible for development assessment methods and tools for learning outcomes.

Writing Fellow -Supplemental Bar Prep Program May 2011 -August 2013 
Southern University Law Center 
• Assists with the development of bar exam writing strategies and analysis techniques.
• Facilitates individual counseling sessions with students.
• Responsible for providing the students with an assessment of writing samples and exams.

LEGAL EXPERIENCE 

Staff Attorney July 2010 - March 2011 
Acadiana Legal Services Corporation 
• Represented indigent clients in family law matters in a 9 parish districts and city courts.
• Handled and managed a caseload of approximately 60 cases from inception to conclusion.
• Display maturity, judgment and knowledge necessary to advocate or formulate policy options

clients.
• Handled unit administrative matters such as intake process, case management and review.

Conflicts Attorney June 2010 -August 2010 
17th Judicial District Indigent Defender 
• Possess a broad knowledge of and expert experience necessary to serve as a recognized authority on

legal issues, programs and policies, and of relevant practices related to indigent defense.
• Litigated felony grade case with minimal supervision and oversight.
• Identified potential defenses and negotiated resolutions to various criminal matters.

Attorney & Notary Public October 2008 -June 2010 
Law Office of Tavares A. Walker, Attorney at Law, LLC 
• Prepared and notarized official and legal documents for clients.
• Represented clients in family, civil, personal injury, minor criminal law matters.
• Drafted and argued pleadings and motions before courts of law and administrative agencies.

Law Clerk February 2007 -May 2008 
LA State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education 
• Prepared legal memoranda on issues related to school accountability, choice, and charter schools.
• Assisted the Policy Development Attorney Director with various legal research projects and board

related issues.
• Drafted documents and executive recommendations for board consideration.



MILITARY EXPERIENECE 

Captain -Senior Trial Counsel July 2015 - Present 
225th Engineer Brigade, U.S. Army, La National Guard 
• Serves as senior judge advocate on brigade staff advising commander and subordinate commanders

regarding all matter related to equipment, assets, and personnel.
• Provides advice to various commanders on issues related to federal and state regulations, military

justice, operations, and fiscal law.
• Services as tbe recorder of all administrative boards and separation proceedings.

Captain-Defense Counsel January 2018 -June 2015 
899th Regional Trial Defense Service Team, U.S. Army, La National Guard 
• Served primarily as legal counsel to soldiers involving military justice matters.
• Provided advice for issues dealing with adverse administrative & personnel actions.
• Served as defense counsel for military tribunals and Court Martials.

1st Lieutenant-Operational Law Counsel July 2011 - December 2012 
256th Infantry Brigade Combat Team, U.S. Army, La National Guard 
• Served primarily as legal advisor to the command to which assigned.
• Provided advice for issues dealing with fiscal, administrative, military, & personnel law.
• Responsible for providing legal assistance to soldiers in all areas oflaw.
• Served as an investigating officer for various administrative, codes of conduct, and criminal

mqmnes.

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS 

• American Bar Association

• Louisiana State Bar Association (Board of Governors 2015-2017)
• Baton Rouge Bar Association SUNBELT Minority Law Regional Job Fair Committee
• American Inns of Court
• National Bar Association - Region V
• Louis Martinet Society of Greater Baton Rouge
• Delta Theta Phi Law Fraternity, Int.
• National Association of Law Career Professionals
• Louisiana National Guard Officers Association
• Thurgood Marshall College Fund, Campus Coordinator
• Southeastern Minority Job Fair and Recruitment Consortium (Executive Board 2017-2018)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
• Parliamentarian, Xi Nu Lambda, Alpha Phi Alpha Fraternity, Inc.
• Member, Louisiana State Bar Association 2014-2015 Leadership Class
• Regional Coordinator/Chair, Baton Rouge Bar Association Mock Trial Committee
• Member, Baton Rouge Bar Association Teen Court Committee
• Member: Louisiana State Bar Association Bar Governance Committee, Committee on the

Profession, Practice Assistance and Improvement Committee, and Publications Subcommittee

UNIVERSITY SERVICE 
• Member, SU System Wide Title IX Committee
• Chair, SU System Wide Grievance Committee
• Member, SU Police Department Hiring Board
• Member: SULC Loan Reduction Assistance Program Committee, Institutional Effectiveness

Committee, and Strategic Planning Committees



TAVARES A. WALKER, ESQ. 
 
 

REFERENCES 

Colonel Connell L. Archey, Esq. 
State Judge Advocate 
Louisiana National Guard 
U.S. Army. Judge Advocate General's Corps 
6400 Saint Claude Avenue -Jackson Barracks 
New Orleans, Louisiana 70 I 17 
(225) S8S-470S
connell.archey.mil@mail.mil

Mr. Donald R. Cravins, Jr., Esq. 
Senior Vice President for Policy & Executive Director 
National Urban League Washington Bureau 
1805 7th Street, NW, Suite 520 
Washington DC 20001 
(202) 629-5755
dcravins@nul.org

Ms. Alfreda S. Diamond, Esq. 
Vice Chancellor for Institutional Accountability & Professor of Law 
Southern University Law Center 
Office of the Chancellor 
2 Roosevelt Steptoe Drive, Suite 261 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 708 IS 
( 225) 771-2552
adiamond@sulc.edu

Ms. Michelle A. Jackson, Esq. 
Director of Diversity Education, Outreach & Alumni Advising 
Vice President for Member Services and Education, National Association ef Law Placement (NALP) 
Northwestern Pritzker School of Law 
McCormick Hall - Room 166 
S75 E. Chicago Avenue 
Chicago, IL 60611 
(S!2) 503-0785

michelle.jackson@Iaw.northwestern.edu 

Ms. Andrea Horton 
Vice President of Programs 
Thurgood Marshall College Fund 
901 F. Street NW, Suite SOO

Washington, DC 20004 
(202) 507-4851
Andrea.horton@tmcforg



POSCLASS 

EMPCLASS SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

HI I 
\RT I 

LV I
Personnel Action Form ,....I �-o-sm-�-N-bf<.----.-l-tJ----.-l o/-, ..... 

1
---.-

,-�
----.-

[dj-
/ 

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR .?(. SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGOR� 
-- 12-MONTH 

TYPE OF APPOINTMENT: 
OTHER _ (S�y�..z;;;;c1---

- Civil Service £ / \I C:-D __ Academic (Fae) ___ Non-Academic (Uncl) 
Part-time ( % of Full Time) Restricted Der t..:::: 

DetaiDM�/mos 12 201p __ Temporary (must be indicated if Jess than 100%) --- Job A..,,, · 0�• 
-

'0 Tenured ___ Undergraduate Stndent 
Tenured Track Grad uate Assistant 

-- yy���� Probationar?''IVcAff.,, e v,c., p. ---
q- -� ..25_ Other (Siiecify) ___ Retiree Retnrn To Work 

-:S::.�ri;.Jo,r 

. Permanent Status d Provost f:n/

Previo us Employee -She-n,.1 yJqj I,.,""-"> ( hr::-s;S 
Date Left D5" /2 I /zotBd-t-::::31-, 

Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Employment ce/DI f'?Q In To -•'--'•-t.."'-+

/_3>-.!1-1-/_,,,z..-t:,=.._/_.,13'---------
Effective Date of Employment _• �O�f,::,.

1
-1-
/001.!-1-/�:z:.ccCJ.1�a1--------

I 

Name 5bt-iroJv ',,/; I l.1<5M") ( h..-,•�s SS# -===.:..-xx::::..-______ Sex __,f:'---- Race* fJ.Y... 
Position Title: 

(Last 4 digits only) 

�-==--==' :!.N"--5T!«....::....,..::....:::"'�c'.t.ie!.:e�t'�-------- Department: t:5'.�".5':ec-i 5c '·•otcr-s MJ, lh:en,'5
Check One __ Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side): 1 I I I 

New Position Visa Expiratioa Date: ___ ___ _ 
(Position vacancy authoriution form must be processed and approved to fill 
existing and new positions. Position must be 2dvcrtised before processing PAF, if 
applicable.) 

Years Experience ----i::��:f:
..,_ 

___________ Southern University Experience
Degree(s): Type/Disciplfo� ?3�-Educati�n): Institutio

���n (SU-Baton Rouge): B-5- t$•�--,J--Sc,,..v:ss �LA� ?drc.-<S M. S. W,..,� :S.!b. � u.'� 
Current Employer 

Check One __ New Appointment 
Transfer 

Personnel Action 

Continuation 
__ Replacement 

Sabbatical 
� Other (Specify) 

37: 
Year.

,q-,7 

Leave of Absence 

Annual Salary Salary Budgeted -j � .eco ; Hourly Rate, if applicable: 

Pay Cycle: _ _  Biweekly 

Source of Funds: 

Change of: 

Position: 

__ Monthly 

Identify Budget: 

_2L_ Faculty 

t.l]oc,J ,z.pm., <.lll67Location:
Z.tll=. 

Stat us: :,r,--

Salary Adjustment: 
Financial Aid si!mature if. a licable : 

List total funds currently paid this employee by nm,;,.f-i-,f Fc.=,un
;;:

ds
;;;.,��==jh-�;;-:::;----rAm=.::.oun=t'----....-::,--...,'="

·
.;:..;'=--

;..'-'--i 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side 

I Comments: (Use back of form) 

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signatnre (if, applicable): 

Date 

Vice President/Finance 
Business Affairs/Comptroller 

Cbairman/S.U. Board ofSnpervisors 

.. ----- ······-··•--·--··----- ··--·--···-·······-·'"•··•-······- ----·-··------ - --·------·-•···· ------

_, 

Date 

Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws 
and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

___ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino
RACE (Please check all that apply): 

---- Whi�,' not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people offa1rope, Nonh Africa. or the Middle East.
�-B1ack, �ot of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa

.·: ·. :. Hispanic, a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins,
__ · · _� regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander, a person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
___ Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.

American Indian or Alaskan Native, a person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who
___ maintains cultural identification through tn"bal affiliation or community recognition.

COMMENTS: 

Must be completed by hiring supervisor: 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: 

SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (check one): ___ EXEMPT ___ NON-EXEMPT
GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form are to 
report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before starting to work. 
All students are to �ring _wi!li �em clearance from the Financial Aid offic� Statement_ 4?! Account ��receipt),
and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured ID, social security card, birth 
certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-1/I-94/I-20. The 
latter seven (7) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.
Documentation must be provided for review and approval bv Human Resources before employment is 

offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS): 

TYPE J8�� 
United States Citizen/Certificate ofNaturalization.
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) 
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.)
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience")

us 

RA
Hl
Jl
Fl
FO

NOV 112016 

� 

Do Not Write Below This Area -For Human Resource Use Only 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below, the forms are
located at Downloadable Forms on the HR website at www.subr.edu\humanresources).
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form ( applicable for new and replacement positions)
___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing P AF, if applicable)
___ Application for Employment Form-Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions (Civil Service Application for classified employees)

Reference Check Form (reference check performed by hiring supervisor)
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to HR with Verification ofFingerprints fonn signed by State Police)

--- Criminal/Background Check Process (fo�· completed by employee/ submitted to State Police)
---.. Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head)
___ Proposed Employee Appointment Form (completed by hiring supervisor)
___ Proposed Employee Clearance Form ( completed by hiring supervisor) _. Letter of Justification for Restricted/ Job Appointment/Detail/CS Rule 6.5g appointments
== CitizenshipNisa Status Verified, 1-20/1-94 provided, if applicable

----------~---------------·•--· ············-··-------� ·----

Rev. 0S/12 



CAMPUS: SUS 
Name of Employee: 

REQUEST FOR LEA VE OF ABSENCE FORM 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM -Sr;.i_i-,r:� nn vn• _:__·.:",, .

HUM.�.-� �-·:-i·�:·,�(�Sl 1 

SUBR A SULAC SUAREC -&Y.NQ_ SUSLALU IO UI,; 1-=Jrf1 I: 30 
S'i-tRRoN W� C..HRiss SSN: 

Address:     Phone:  
Title: I AJS,r-t., c. ,or Highest Degree: fV1 � 5 , 

Birth Date: 
NO. OF CONSECUTIVE FISCAL YEARS ACTIVE SERVICE AT THIS INSTITUTION: 3� 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF LEA VE: $? /z.o /z 6 ;g ANTICIPATED RETURN DATE:

Purpose ofleave Requested (click one): a. - Professional or Cultural Improvement (Must have prior approval from Chancellor)b. Rest and Recuperation (Statement from two (2) physicians* must be attached)c. Independent Study or Research Statementd. Militarye. Maternity (Statement from one (1) physician* must be attached)*must be attending physician
TYPE OF LEA VE REQUESTED ( check one):a. withpayb. without pay
LENGIB OF LEA VE REQUESTED: (No. of weeks, not to exceed 36 weeks) 

MANNER IN WHICH TIDS LEA VE, IF GRANTED, WILL BE SPENT: 

****************************************************************************************** DO YOU WISH TO RETAIN FRINGE BENEFITS? (if yes, total contribution of premium must be paid to 
Human Resources/Comptroller's Office in Advance) 

Teacher Retirement 
State Retirement 

Yes 
Yes 

No 
No 

Group Insurance Yes No _'{; 
Elected Supplemental Benefits Yes __ No __ � S� 

0 ::::.::-

--:; ., 

1 hereby agree to comply with the provisions of the Southern u�-·ty Board �f Supe · ors' :::?.. 7::\-:policy on leaves of absence. 1 /2 � f-'· s 8 LZ Z �Oj 8' _____________ 'S�DATE ' SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT � �:-°-***********************************************************************************�**#*:-S 
PRIOR LEA VE RECORD FROM TIDS INSTITUTION: � -�;.,:::: Date ofLast Leave: S:fieMber 2ot7 (3 cb/ffiJ= CE I VF o-· Purpose of Last Leave: -�'�"� .o�e�S�S ______ _
TYPE OF LAST LEA VE: SEP Z & 2018 With pay ✓ Amount: 

• ------ Officeo1 �:"'= =xe--, , .. � . .... . Without Pay i - -_ ·---·- v,ce "resident-- I or AcaoerrncA/;'3,r, 2nd Prn,osrLength oflast leave: 3 C\� Y S ********��****** **************** *****************,(*****************:�*******

DATE 

tare of College Dean �l@�r�� Chief Academic Officer 

DATE 
**********************************************************************�******************* 

Signature of Appropriate Committee Chairperson Signature of Chairman of the Board 
Date Date 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray Belton 
President/Chancellor 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

November 7, 2018 

Southern University and A&M System 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 
4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813

RE: Professor Stanley Halpin Medical Leave 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

(: 

( . .Iii 

'• 

<.f' 
-< 

U:· 
_,._ 

!:. 

-=== 

I 

CX> 

-

Professor Stanley Halpin is requesting medical leave for the 2019 spring semester. Professor 
Halpin has been a faculty member for over 25-years. The documentation required to initiate a 
medical leave request is attached. 

I hereby request that the medical leave sought by Professor Halpin be presented to the Southern 
University Board of Supervisors to be on the board's November 23, 2018 agenda for approval. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

n/11 · p 
'f!t7fJ:L K �
Jhancellor and Vanue B. Lacour 

�ndowed Law Professor 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



JOB CLASS 3 8 1 0 0 
: 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
JOB CODE F 
CALID 

1.c: M 

Personnel Action Form
/
.-
�

-0-
�

-
E

-
�

-N
--,

1
-

3
--.-,-F__,l-

9
-�l-

9
--,

j
,...

s
-�

j
-

5
---.

J

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC X SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH _x_ 12-MONTH -- OTHER -- (Specify)

Non-Academic ..L Academic
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
Tenured Track 

__ Other (Specify) 

___ Part-time ( % of Full Time) 
Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 

___ Undergraduate Student 
Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Previous Employee -=-N"'/A"'----------------
Date Left NIA

Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

Medical Leave 
S135 000 

Profile of Person Recommended 

Length of Employment -=O:.::;llc::0:.::;
l/'2=0

:.:
19

'-----------
Effective Date ....::.01=/-=-0=l/'2-=0l::.:9'-----------------

To 06/ 01/2019 

Name Stanley Halpin  Sex M Race* W 
(Last 4 dieits only) 

Position Title: ....!c.P.:.;ro:,:i:=es::::s:::.or,._ _____________ Department: Law Center-Instruction 

Check One _L_ Existing Position 

New Position 

*Visa Type (See Reverse Side): 

(Position vae2ocy autboriz:.a.tion form must be processed and approved to fill 
existing: and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if 
2pplicablc.) 

Expiration Date: ______ _ 

Years Experience _::,4:,:.6 _____________ Southern University Experience .....a.26.:-... ________ _ 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

J.D. Tulane Law School/Institution Location SU-BR 

Current Employer Southern University Law Center 

Personnel Action 

Year: 
1965 

Check One __ New Appointment 
Transfer 

Continuation Sabbatical 
__ Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Leave of Absence 
Medical Leave 

Recommended Salary ....::cS::;13:;.:Sci0
:::.;

0
:..:

0
:...._ ______ _ Salary Budgeted Sl35 000 

Source of Funds _,S:'.!ta:::t:,:ec_....,.. _________________________________ _

Change of: 

Position 
Status 

Identify Budget: 
Form Cq_d�: 

Salary Adjustment 

Grant Location 
_\BORIO Page ....::.I ____ _ 

... _; 

d si11:nature (if, annlicable): Financial Ai 
List total funds currently paid this employee by 
Southern University: 

Source of Funds 
311001-32020-61003-31000 

*See Reverse Side 
I Comments: (Use back of form) 

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 

311001-32020-61003-31000 

Item# .....a.1 _______ _ 

Amount 
$135,000 

Chairman/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights 
Laws and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

__ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

_X __ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people ofEurope, North Africa, or the Middle EasL 

Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
__ regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
__ Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian oi- Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
___ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 
Professor Stanley Halpin will be on Medical Leave for the period of January 01, 2019 through June 01, 2019 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Dail 
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: V/C Roederick White 
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, {if any) 50 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-l/I-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval bv Human Resources before emplovment is 
offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT MSA STATUS): 

TYPE coef>UTHERN UNIV��LAW CENTE?.
---e.JCUMBERED / FUNDS AVAILABLE.

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) �

=

�1 r\ ::TE fqtJ/ 
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience") FO 

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 

___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing P AF, if applicable) 
Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check form) 

· ,Supervisory Criminal/Ba1,kground Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor)
· "·Exemptions Survey Form: (signed by employee and budget head)

___ Proposed Employee Appointment 
___ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

CONTINGENT UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

Rev. ll/5/2018 



/ 
5vLC. --

CAMPUS: · SUS 
REQUEST FOR LEA VE OF ABSENCE FORM SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

SUBR SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

Name ofEmployee: '(-f A Iv f � A E1 t>;_,_ 

Address:           Phone:   
Title: f O Q F-e;:<u � V •k CA W High est Degree: 
Birth Date:   
NO. OF CONSECUTIVE FISCAL YEARS ACTIVE SERVICE AT THIS INSTITUTION:� '2 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF LEA VE: /10'.:n } z-o {UA NTTCIP A.TED RETURN DATE: 
0 I 

r•u Purpose ofleave Requested (click one): a Professional or Cultural Improvement (Must have prior approval from Chancellor) 
® Rest and Recuperation (Statement from two (2) physicians* must be attached) c. Independent Study or Research Statementd. Militarye. Maternity (Statement from one (1) physician* must be attached)*must be attending physician
TYPE OF LEA VE REQUESTED (check one): 1 .-,--a withpay V" b. without pay

f j i:l 'J fP½ D 

::Jl>f!)< //-zo� 

LENGTH OF LEA VE REQUESTED: (No. of weeks, not to exceed 36 weeks) � f l,vµl...,::i
MANNER IN WIIlCH THIS LEA VE, IF GRANTED, WILL BE SPENT: (J S"-" i'\M..'b. j
****************************************************************************************** DO YOU WISH TO RETAIN FRINGE BENEFITS? (if yes, total contribution of premium must be paid to
Human Resources/Comptroller's Office in Advance)

Teacher Retirement 
State Retirement 
Group Insurance 
Elected Supplemental Benefits 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

No 
No 
No 
No I hereby agree to comply with the provisions of the Southern University Board of Supervisors' policy on leaves of absence. / / �� J;/, to 2tf J::13 ,, dfJ-b-DATE I I S'!GNA PL ANT 

****************************************************************************************** 

PRIOR LEA VE RECORD FROM THIS INSTITUTION: Date of Last Leave: Purpose of Last Leave: 
TYPE OF LAST LEA VE: With pay Without Pay Length of last leave: 

�ount: 

Signao/e of C�rson Signature of College Dean 
r:l,L/1,ldl f-JJ Q� -----�{ti&mpus Chancellor Signature of System President 
V iV/4�/;� Ti · DATE 
*******************************�********************************************************** 

Signature of Appropriate Committee Chairperson Signature of Chairman of the Board 
Date Date 

·-·-·--· - -- ·-·----�-



0 FFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552 

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray Belton 

President/Chancellor 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

November 7, 2018 

Southern University and A&M System 

J. S. Clark Administration Building 
4th Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: Request for Sabbatical Leave - Professor Russell L. Jones 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

Professor Russell Jones submitted a letter dated October 29, 2018 requesting a Research Sabbatical 

Leave for the 2019 fall semester: (a) to conduct research on racial profiling, police misconduct, 

and criminal justice reform, and (b) to continue research on African American legal pioneers in 

Louisiana. His request is appropriate. 

Professor Jones has been a faculty member for many years and has never been granted a sabbatical 

leave to engage in research and scholarly writing. I hereby recommend and request that Professor 

Jones be granted research sabbatical leave. I am asking that this request for sabbatical leave be 

placed on the Southern University Board of Supervisors agenda for the November 23, 2018 

meeting for approval. Should this request be approved, the leave will be granted with pay for the 

fall 2019 semester. 

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 
Posr OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON RouGE, Lours1ANA 70813-9294 

FACULTY 

Mr. John K. Pierre, Chancellor 
Southern University Law Center 
P.O. Box 9294 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813-9294 

October 29, 2018 

RE: Request for Sabbatical Leave Fall 2019 

Dear Chancellor Pierre: 

TEL (225) 771-4900 
FAX (225) 771-5913 

I request a research sabbatical leave for the fall 2019 semester. During the 34 years, that I 
have been employed at the Law Center I have not had a sabbatical leave to engage in research and 
scholarly writing. I spent nine years in administration from January 2007 -August 2016. Since my 
return to the faculty in spring 2017, I have taught a full course load of required courses and summer 
school. During this period I have continuously updated the evidence treatise that I co-author, and. 
I have published an article. However, the course load and other duties have hampered my ability 
to produce research that will inform my teaching, and impact the law in significant areas. 

My current long-term research agenda includes two major projects. First, I have begun a 
study of Terry v. Ohio, and how it has influenced policing in America. The project had it genesis 
in an article and presentation that I made at the University of Idaho Law School in spring 2018. I 
am currently working on a second article that investigates the historical perspective of Terry v.
Ohio, and how the case has morphed into a hotbed for racial profiling and police misconduct. 
Racial profiling, police misconduct, and criminal justice reform are the foremost issues in the 
American criminal justice system today. To bolster my research in the area, I will travel to present 
my findings at appropriate forums. The exposure from the presentations, and the contacts that will 
develop from this research can make SULC a vanguard in the discussions of criminal justice 
reform. The goal is to bring ideas and scholars to the Law Center in search of solutions to a current 
civil rights issue. 

Second, I have an interest in a project that highlights the accomplishments of the 
outstanding lawyers that Southern University Law Center has produced. This is a continuation of 
a project started several years ago entitled African American Legal Pioneers in Louisiana. I plan 
to conduct oral histories of prominent SULC graduates, and perform thorough research of cases 
and actions for which these pioneers were the torchbearers. The oral histories and detailed research 
will show how SULC lawyers have helped shape the rule oflaw in Louisiana and nationally. The 
research will result in a book including chapters on SULC attorney-leaders in general practice, 
government employment, legislative leadership, successions, and criminal law. 



Both of the above projects are long term and they can be fully completed in 18 months to 
three years. A research sabbatical will allow me the time required to firmly place these projects in 
the proper context. They will result in scholarly and cutting edge works that are mission driven 
and will significantly benefit SULC. 

Thank you very much for supporting research that will advance SULC. 

Sincerely yours, 

�:;l� 
Russell L. Jones 
The Jesse N. Stone Professor of Law 









0 FFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552

FAX (225) 771-2474 

November 7, 2018 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

Dr. Ray L. Belton, President/Chancellor 
Southern University System & Baton Rouge Campus 
4th Floor- J.S. Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: Adoption of Policy for Classified Civil Service Employee Salary 
and Wage Increases 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

At the September 2018 Board of Supervisors meeting, the Board of Supervisors granted a 
salary and wage increase to faculty and unclassified staff members at the Southern University 
Law Center. I was informed by the Southern University Office of Human Resources that a 
policy would have to be adopted to allow classified Law Center civil service employees to 
receive the same salary and wage increase granted to faculty and unclassified staff members. 
The policy would allow for a nonperformance based salary and wage increase to be granted to all 
Law Center classified employees adjusted by any and all "Market Adjustments" granted by the 
Louisiana Department of Civil Service within the last six months. 

The policy, if approved would allow the Law Center to grant the salary and wage 
increase in January 2019. The Law Center seeks Board approval of the hereinafter referenced 
policy at its November 23, 2018 board meeting. 

If you have any questions related to this request, please feel free to contact me. 

Yours sincerely, 

K,'f UM-Q_. ierre, Chancellor & 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



Southern University Law Center 

Policy on Classified/Civil Service Employees Salary and Wage Increases 

Policy Overview 

The purpose of this policy is to articulate rules governing salary and wage (S&W) increases to 

classified civil service employees on a non-performance basis. 

Policy 

The Southern University Law Center (SULC) may offer to classified civil service employees non

performance based S&W increases in the same manner as it does to faculty employees and unclassified 

staff employees. The S&W increases if approved by the Southern University Board of Supervisors would 

be (1) granted to all classified employees on a non-performance basis and (2) adjusted by any and all 

prior "Market Adjustments" granted by the Louisiana Department Civil Service within six months of the 

S&W increase approved by the Southern University Board of Supervisors. 

Date of Southern University System Board of Supervisors Approval: _____ _ 

Responsibility for administration of the policy lies with the Chancellor and the Vice Chancellor for Fiscal 

Affairs. 

Responsibility for periodic review of the policy with the Chancellor and Vice Chancellor for Fiscal Affairs. 

The policy is effective December 1, 2018. 



Priority Projects Updates

























Interim Financial Report



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

10/31/2018 Projected FY 2018-2019 FY 2018-2019 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $8,909,460  $34,256,762  $43,166,222  $43,166,222 20.6% $0

Statutory Dedicated  -00  4,624,272 4,624,272  4,624,272 0.0% 0

Funds Due From BOR

Federal  -00  3,654,209  3,654,209  3,654,209 0.0% 0

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2018  33,573,971  (253,562) 33,320,409  32,862,015 102.2% 458,394

    Tuition - Spring 2019  738,478  30,731,871 31,470,349  30,591,183 2.4% 879,165

    Tuition - Summer  1,088,590  3,872,829 4,961,419  4,712,191 23.1% 249,227

    Out-of-State Fees  5,314,021  4,570,196 9,884,217  8,725,448 60.9% 1,158,769

    Other  4,207,257  9,667,636 13,874,893  12,113,462 34.7% 1,761,431

InterAgency Transfer  -00  2,998,233 2,998,233  2,998,233 0.0% 0

Total Revenues  $53,831,777  $94,122,445  $147,954,222  $143,447,235 37.5% $4,506,987

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $23,370,377  $48,484,845  $71,855,222  $69,403,641 33.7%  $2,451,581 

  Other Compensation  83,871  167,506 251,377  251,377 33.4% 0

  Related Benefits  8,841,865  23,899,744  32,741,609  32,282,642 27.4%  458,967 

Total Personal Services  $32,296,113  $72,552,094  $104,848,208  $101,937,660 31.7%  $2,910,548 

Travel  $115,624  $701,706  $817,331  $697,600 16.6% $119,731

  Operating Services  $4,107,864  $9,247,840  $13,355,704  $13,075,499 31.4%  280,205 

  Supplies  452,857  1,025,884 1,478,741  1,624,304 27.9% (145,563)

Total Operating Expenses  $4,560,722  $10,273,724  $14,834,445  $14,699,803 31.0% $134,642

  Professional Services  $153,588  $2,102,568  $2,256,156  $2,162,114 7.1% $94,042

  Other Charges  371,912  9,191,774 9,563,686  9,552,447 3.9% 11,239

  Debt Services 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 0  6,392,641 6,392,641 6,392,641 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $525,500  $17,686,983 18,212,483  $18,107,202 2.9% $105,281

  General Acquisitions  $9,587  $182,115  $191,702  $146,032 6.6% 45,670

  Library Acquisitions 38,074 549,575 587,649  437,649 8.7% 150,000

  Major Repairs 0 5,000 5,000  5,000 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $47,661  $736,691  $784,351  $588,681 8.1% $195,670

Scholarships  $4,245,014  $3,898,697  $8,143,711  $7,416,289 57.2% $727,422

Total Expenditures  $41,790,634  $105,849,894  $147,640,528  $143,447,235 29.1%  $4,193,293 

Southern University System

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

As of  October 31, 2018

1



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

10/31/2018 Projected FY 2018-2019 FY 2018-2019 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $622,741 $2,536,444  $3,159,185  $3,159,185 19.7% $0

Statutory Dedicated

Funds Due To/ From Mgmt 

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2018

    Tuition - Spring 2019

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $622,741  $2,536,444  $3,159,185  $3,159,185 19.7% $0

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $503,720  $1,069,940  $1,573,660  $1,573,660 32.0% $0

  Other Compensation 29,333  58,667 88,000 88,000 33.3% 0

  Related Benefits 174,751 570,476 745,227 745,227 23.4% 0

Total Personal Services  $707,804  $1,699,083  $2,406,887  $2,406,887 29.4% $0

Travel  $16,290  $138,710  $155,000  $155,000 10.5% $0

  Operating Services  $27,793  $75,546  $103,339  $103,339 26.9% $0

  Supplies 3,440 55,560 59,000 59,000 5.8% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $31,233  $131,106  $162,339  $162,339 19.2% $0

  Professional Services $0 $129,000  $129,000 $129,000 0.0% $0

  Other Charges 0 280,959 280,959 280,959 0.0% 0

  Debt Services 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $-00  $409,959  $409,959  $409,959 0.0% $0

  General Acquisitions $1,303  $18,697  $20,000  $20,000 0.0% $0

  Library Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

  Major Repairs 0 5,000                  5,000 5,000 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $1,303  $23,697  $25,000  $25,000 0.0% $0

Scholarships  $-00  $-00  $-00  $-00 0.0% $0

Total Expenditures  $756,630  $2,402,555  $3,159,185  $3,159,185 24.0% $0

Southern University Board and System Administration

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

As of  October 31, 2018

2



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

10/31/2018 Projected FY 2018-2019 FY 2018-2019 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct $2,607,781 $15,646,684  $18,254,465  $18,254,465 14.3% $0

Statutory Dedicated 0 1,849,219  1,849,219  1,849,219 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2018 21,219,165 (291,272)  20,927,893  19,804,147 107.1% 1,123,746

    Tuition - Spring 2019 18,086 19,105,686  19,123,772  18,096,899 0.1% 1,026,872

    Tuition - Summer 136,606 2,624,813  2,761,419  2,613,141 5.2% 148,277

    Out-of-State Fees 3,595,535 3,175,440  6,770,975  6,188,056 58.1% 582,919

    Other 1,665,379 6,880,731  8,546,110  8,546,110 19.5% 0

InterAgency Transfer 0 2,998,233  2,998,233  2,998,233 0.0% 0

Total Revenues  $29,242,552  $51,989,533  $81,232,085  $78,350,270 37.3% $2,881,815

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries $12,668,664 $25,994,105  $38,662,769  $36,851,188 34.4% $1,811,581

  Other Compensation 37,871 73,506  111,377  111,377 34.0% 0

  Related Benefits 4,721,667 13,504,078  18,225,745  17,738,430 26.6% 487,315

Total Personal Services  $17,428,203  $39,571,688  $56,999,891  $54,700,995 31.9% $2,298,896

 Travel $19,784  $251,616  $271,400  $271,400 7.3% $0

  Operating Services 2,281,356 5,171,550  7,452,906  7,180,075 31.8% 272,831

  Supplies 263,400 613,411  876,811  876,811 30.0% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $2,544,756  $5,784,961  $8,329,717  $8,056,886 31.6% $272,831

  Professional Services 28,991 1,262,386  1,291,377  1,291,377 2.2% 0

  Other Charges 307,243 3,166,928  3,474,171  3,474,171 8.8% 0

  Debt Services 0 0

  Interagency Transfers 0 3,805,821  3,805,821  3,805,821 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $336,234  $8,235,135  $8,571,369  $8,571,369 3.9% $0

  General Acquisitions 3,396 68,286  71,682  71,682 4.7% 0

  Library Acquisitions 21,326 116,323  137,649  137,649 15.5% 0

  Major Repairs 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $24,721  $184,610  $209,331  $209,331 11.8% $0

Scholarships $3,582,032 3,268,345  $6,850,377  $6,540,289 54.8% $310,088

Total Expenditures  $23,935,731  $57,296,354  $81,232,085  $78,350,270 30.5% $2,881,815

Southern University - Baton Rouge 

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

As of  October 31, 2018

3



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

10/31/2018 Projected FY 2018-2019 FY 2018-2019 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $573,761 3,442,567  $4,016,328  $4,016,328 14.3% 0

Statutory Dedicated 201,881  201,881  201,881 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2018  3,455,479  3,455,479  3,180,015 108.7% 275,464

    Tuition - Spring 2019 3,190,522  3,190,522  2,944,129 0.0% 246,393

    Tuition - Summer  236,348 463,652  700,000  700,000 33.8% 0

    Out-of-State Fees  1,161,750 951,300  2,113,050  1,537,200 75.6% 575,850

    Other  1,181,280 1,130,578  2,311,858  1,635,931 72.2% 675,927

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $6,608,618 9,380,500  $15,989,118  $14,215,484 46.5% $1,773,634

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $2,624,179 5,388,637  $8,012,816  $7,394,456 35.5%  $618,360 

  Other Compensation 0

  Related Benefits  816,491 2,269,034  3,085,525  $2,866,099 28.5% 219,426

 Total Personal Services  $3,440,670 7,657,671  $11,098,341  $10,260,555 33.5% $837,786

 Travel  $12,221 237,779  $250,000  $100,000 12.2% $150,000

  Operating Services  $117,658 2,141,418  $2,259,076  $1,868,900 6.3%  $390,176 

  Supplies  50,843 99,157  150,000  100,000 50.8% 50,000

Total Operating Expenses  $168,501 2,240,575  $2,409,076  $1,968,900 8.6% $440,176

  Professional Services  $70,423 641,045  $711,468  $665,795 10.6%  $45,673 

  Other Charges 367,357  367,357  367,357 0.0% 0

  Debt Services 0

  Interagency Transfers 302,877  302,877  302,877 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $70,423 1,311,279  $1,381,702  $1,336,029 5.3%  $45,673 

  General Acquisitions

  Library Acquisitions 16,748 433,252  450,000  300,000 5.6% 150,000

  Major Repairs

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $16,748 433,252  $450,000  $300,000 5.6% $150,000

Scholarships $208,103 191,897  $400,000  $250,000 83.2% $150,000

Total Expenditures  $3,916,665 12,072,453  $15,989,118  $14,215,484 27.6% $1,773,634

Southern University Law Center

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

As of  October 31, 2018

4



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

10/31/2018 Projected FY 2018-2019 FY 2018-2019 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $3,841,708  $5,050,251  $8,891,959  $8,891,959 43.2% 0

Statutory Dedicated 578,577 578,577 578,577 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR 0 0.0% 0

Federal 0 0.0% 0

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2018 5,179,738 0 5,179,738 6,000,000 86.3% (820,262)

    Tuition - Spring 2019 5,614,300 5,614,300 5,858,400 0.0% (244,100)

    Tuition - Summer 235,209 364,791 600,000 499,050 47.1% 100,950

    Out-of-State Fees 206,745 243,447 450,192 450,192 45.9% 0

    Other 1,300,132 1,177,563 2,477,695 1,392,191 93.4% 1,085,504

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $10,763,532  $13,028,929  $23,792,461  $23,670,369 45.5%  $122,092 

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $3,705,267  $7,367,255  $11,072,522  $11,050,882 33.5% $21,640

  Other Compensation 0 0 0.0% 0

  Related Benefits 1,530,409 3,454,679  4,985,088 5,232,862 29.2% (247,774)

Total Personal Services 5,235,676 10,821,934 16,057,610 16,283,744 32.2% ($226,134)

Travel $17,505 $32,495 $50,000 $50,000 35.0% $0

  Operating Services 596,217 1,116,265  $1,712,482  $1,945,284 30.6% ($232,802)

  Supplies 103,088 146,912 250,000 250,000 41.2% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $699,305  $1,263,177  $1,962,482  $2,195,284 31.9% ($232,802)

  Professional Services 18,429 16,311  $34,740  $34,740 53.0% $0

  Other Charges 68,628 4,237,723  4,306,351 4,306,351 1.6% 0

  Debt Services 0 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 450,250  450,250 450,250 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $87,057  $4,704,284  $4,791,341  $4,791,341 1.8% $0

  General Acquisitions $0 $0 0.0% $0

  Library Acquisitions 0 0 0.0% 0

  Major Repairs 0 0 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% $0

Scholarships $351,395 $265,939 $617,334 $350,000 100.4% $267,334

Total Expenditures  $6,390,938  $17,087,829  $23,478,767  $23,670,369 27.0% ($191,602)

Southern University at New Orleans

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

As of  October 31, 2018

5



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

10/31/2018 Projected FY 2018-2019 FY 2018-2019 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $770,866 $4,625,197  $5,396,063  $5,396,063 14.3% $0

Statutory Dedicated 0 189,181 189,181 189,181 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2018 3,719,589 37,710 3,757,299 3,877,853 95.9% (120,554)

    Tuition - Spring 2019 720,392 2,821,363 3,541,755 3,691,755 19.5% (150,000)

    Tuition - Summer 480,427 419,573 900,000 900,000 53.4% 0

    Out-of-State Fees 349,991  200,009 550,000 550,000 63.6% 0

    Other 60,466 478,764 539,230 539,230 11.2% 0

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $6,101,731  $8,771,797  $14,873,528  $15,144,082 40.3% ($270,554)

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $2,430,159  $5,611,027  $8,041,186  $8,041,186 30.2% $0

  Other Compensation 0 0 0.0% 0

  Related Benefits 1,041,635 2,578,273 3,619,908 3,619,908 28.8% 0

Total Personal Services  $3,471,794  $8,189,300  $11,661,094  $11,661,094 29.8% $0

Travel  $13,931  $13,931  $44,200 31.5% ($30,269)

  Operating Services  $902,641  $593,315  $1,495,956  $1,645,956 54.8%  $(150,000)

  Supplies 9,900 18,637 28,537 224,100 4.4% (195,563)

Total Operating Expenses  $912,541  $611,952  $1,524,493  $1,870,056 48.8% ($345,563)

  Professional Services  $33,049  $26,320  $59,369  $11,000 300.4%  $48,369 

  Other Charges (5,610) 547,073 541,463 530,224 -1.1% 11,239

  Debt Services 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 0 773,508 773,508 773,508 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $27,439  $1,346,901  $1,374,340  $1,314,732 2.1% $59,608

  General Acquisitions  $3,414 $46,256  $49,670  $4,000 85.4% $45,670

  Library Acquisitions 0 0 0.0% 0

  Major Repairs 0 0 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $3,414  $46,256  $49,670  $4,000 85.4% $45,670

Scholarships  $78,215  $171,785  $250,000  $250,000 31.3% $0

Total Expenditures  $4,507,334  $10,366,194  $14,873,528  $15,144,082 29.8% ($270,554)

Southern University at Shreveport 

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

As of  October 31, 2018

6



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

10/31/2018 Projected FY 2018-2019 FY 2018-2019 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $492,603  $2,955,619  $3,448,222  $3,448,222 14.3% $0

Statutory Dedicated 1,805,414  $1,805,414 1,805,414 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR 0

Federal 3,654,209  $3,654,209 3,654,209 0.0% 0

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2018

    Tuition - Spring 2019

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $492,603  $8,415,242  $8,907,845  $8,907,845 5.5% $0

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $1,438,388  $3,053,881  $4,492,269  $4,492,269 32.0% $0

  Other Compensation 16,667 35,333  $52,000 52,000 32.1% 0

  Related Benefits 556,912 1,523,204  $2,080,116 2,080,116 26.8% 0

Total Personal Services  $2,011,967  $4,612,418  $6,624,385 $6,624,385 30.4% $0

Travel  $35,894  $41,106  $77,000  $77,000 46.6% $0

  Operating Services  $182,199  $149,746  $331,945  $331,945 54.9% $0

  Supplies 22,186 92,207  $114,393 114,393 19.4% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $204,385  $241,953  $446,338  $446,338 45.8% $0

  Professional Services  $2,696  $27,506  $30,202  $30,202 8.9% $0

  Other Charges 1,651 591,734  $593,385 593,385 0.3% 0

  Debt Services  $-00 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 1,060,185  $1,060,185 1,060,185 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $4,347  $1,679,425  $1,683,772  $1,683,772 0.3% $0

  General Acquisitions  $1,474  $48,876  $50,350  $50,350 2.9% $0

  Library Acquisitions  $-00 0 0.0% 0

  Major Repairs  $-00 0 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $1,474  $48,876  $50,350  $50,350 2.9% $0

Scholarships $25,269 $731  $26,000 $26,000 97.2% $0

Total Expenditures  $2,283,336  $6,624,509  $8,907,845  $8,907,845 25.6%  $-00 

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

As of  October 31, 2018

7



Chancellor's Reports










































































































	Board of Supervisors November 23, 2018 meeting
	Untitled



